City Council Regular Meeting

Thursday, June 15, 2023 Chandler City Council Chambers
6:00 p.m. 88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ
42> CHANDLER

warlzona

Community of Innovation



Back row
Councilmember OD Harris, Mayor Kevin Hartke, Councilmember Mark Stewart

Front row
Councilmember Jane Poston, Councilmember Angel Encinas, Vice Mayor Matt
Orlando, Councilmember Christine Ellis

Our Vision
We are a world class City that provides an exceptional
quality of life.

Our Brand

A safe, diverse, equitable and inclusive community that
connects people, chooses innovation and inspires
excellence.

Innovative Focus

Innovation is the lifeblood of our community. The
introduction of new ideas and methods is rooted in
Chandler's culture and heritage. This thread of innovation
embodies how we connect, plan and serve our city to be a
contemporary, financially responsible and safe place to live
and work.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the
members of the Chandler City Council and to the general public that the Chandler City Council will hold a
REGULAR MEETING open to the public on Thursday, June 15, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., in the Chandler City Council
Chambers, 88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona. One or more members of the Chandler City Council may

attend this meeting by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and services by contacting
the City Clerk’s office at 480-782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make requests in advance as it affords the City

time to accommodate the request.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.

.\' g e, o

Page 2 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



Regular Meeting Agenda

City Council Strategic Framework Focus Areas: Legend

i,
w Community Safety fﬂ‘{\\ Meighborhoods -Q Quality of Life

‘f Sustainability and Technology Qf;@ Connectivity m’ Economic Vitality

Call to Order

Roll Call

Invocation - Dr. Roy Cheriyan, International Assembly of God
Pledge of Allegiance

Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the governing body, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.

Proposed Motion: Move to approve the Consent Agenda of the June 15, 2023, Regular
Meeting, Items 1 - 23.

Y

L
: :

P

-
™ _aliia
City Clerk

Page 3 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



1. Approval of Minutes

Move City Council approve the Council meeting minutes of the Study Session of May 22,
2023; and the Regular Meeting of May 25, 2023.

2. Board and Commission Appointments
Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended.

bommunity Services

3. Resolution No. 5693 Authorizing the Intergovernmental Agreement Between the
City of Chandler and Maricopa County Library District for the Library Assistance
Program

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5693, approving the Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) between the City of Chandler and the Maricopa County Library District
(MCLD) for the Library Assistance Program (LAP).

Council Focus Area(s): == ()

Cultural Development

Page 4 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



4. Professional Services Agreement No. CA2202.501, with Arizona Public Service
Company (APS), for the Wall Street Overhead Power Conversion to Underground
Design and Construction Services

Move City Council approve Professional Services Agreement No. CA2202.501, with
Arizona Public Service Company, for the Wall Street Overhead Power Conversion to
Underground Design and Construction Services, in an amount not to exceed
$1,251,239.72.

Council Focus Area(s): e g@m

5. Professional Services Agreement No. ST2203.451, with Consultant Engineering,
Inc., for the Boston Street Improvements Construction Management Services
Move City Council Award Professional Services Agreement No. ST2203.451 to
Consultant Engineering, Inc., for the Boston Street Improvements Construction
Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $153,395.

: : 0.
Council Focus Area(s): /ﬁﬁ\:ﬁ e®

Development Services

6. Introduction of Ordinance No. 5053 Adoption of Historic Preservation District
Landmark Zoning Overlay for the McCullough-Price House, a City-Owned Property
Located at 300 S. Chandler Village Drive, near the Southwest Corner of West Frye
Road and South Chandler Village Drive

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5053 approving
PLH23-0028, McCullough-Price House Historic Preservation District Landmark zoning
overlay subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning
Commission and the Historic Preservation Commission.

Council Focus Area(s): /ﬁﬁ\

Page 5 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



7. Introduction of Ordinance No. 5058 Adoption of Historic Preservation District
Landmark Zoning Overlay for the Goodyear Canal, Located Along the West Side of
Basha Road Between Ocotillo Road and Snedigar Park

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5058 approving
PLH23-0034, Goodyear Canal Historic Preservation District Landmark zoning overlay
subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission and the
Historic Preservation Commission.

Council Focus Area(s): 4§\ é—,"g’

8. Entertainment Use Permit PLH22-0061 Modern Margarita Plant Shops, LLC, for
Indoor Live Entertainment and Outdoor Patio Speakers, Located at 4165 S. Gilbert
Rd, Suite 5, Generally Located South of the Southeast Corner of Gilbert and
Ocotillo Roads

Move City Council approve Entertainment Use Permit, PLH22-0061 Modern Margarita
Plant Shops, LLC, subject to the conditions recommended by Planning and Zoning
Commission.

Council Focus Area(s): g m’"

9. Use Permit, PLH23-0016 AT&T El Lobo WCF, for Installation of a Wireless
Telecommunication Facility, Located on the North Side of the Hartford Street and
Fairview Street intersection, Approximately s Mile North of Pecos Road

Move City Council approve Use Permit PLH23-0016 AT&T El Lobo WCF, for the
installation of a wireless communication facility, subject to the conditions as
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Council Focus Area(s):

Facilities and Fleet

Page 6 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



10.

Informatin Technology

11.

12.

13.

Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, Amendment No. 2, for Auto Body Repair Services

Move City Council approve Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, Amendment No. 2, with
Allard Collision, LLC, for auto body repair services, in an amount not to exceed
$250,000, for the period of July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024.

Council Focus Area(s): «

Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 2, for Business License Portal
Applications and Managed Support Services

Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 2, with
Parsus Solutions, LLC, for business license portal applications and managed support
services, in an amount not to exceed $300,000, for the period of one year, beginning
June 15, 2023, through June 14, 2024.

Council Focus Area(s): ¥ g0 4"

Purchase of Information Technology Research Subscription Services

Move City Council approve the Purchase of Information Technology Research
Subscription Services, from Gartner, Inc., utilizing the State of Arizona Contract No.
CTR053240, in an amount not to exceed $217,700, for the period of one

year, beginning July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024.

Council Focus Area(s): ¥ g

Purchase of Enterprise Asset Management (EAM) System Annual Support and
Maintenance

Move City Council approve the purchase of enterprise asset management (EAM)
system annual support and maintenance, from CentralSquare Technologies, LLC, in an
amount not to exceed $112,124, for the period of one year, beginning July 1,

2023, through June 30, 2024.

Page 7 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



Council Focus Area(s):

i

Management Services

14. Purchase of Office Supplies

Move City Council approve the purchase of office supplies, from Staples Business
Advantage, utilizing the Sourcewell Contract No. 012320-SCC, for the period of April 1,
2023, through March 31, 2024, in an amount not to exceed $240,000.

Council Focus Area(s):

15. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License Application for Robert Earl
Matthew, Agent, BYOV, LLC, DBA BYOV
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for
approval of the State Liquor Job No. 238015, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License,
for Robert Earl Matthew, Agent, BYOV, LLC, DBA BYOQOV, located at 777 N. Arizona
Avenue Suite #3, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor
License No. 305245.

Council Focus Area(s): m)'

Page 8 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



Neighborhood Resources

16. Resolution No. 5700 Approving Amendment No. 4 to the Intergovernmental
Agreement Between Maricopa County and the City of Chandler to Receive
Federal HOME Investment Partnerships Program Funds and HOME Investment
Partnerships American Rescue Plan Program Funds

Move that City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5700, Approving Amendment No.
4 to the Intergovernmental Agreement Between Maricopa County and the City of
Chandler to receive Federal HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program Funds in
the amount of $1,273,594 and HOME Investment Partnerships American Rescue Plan
(HOME-ARP) Program Funds in the amount of $1,717,654; authorizing the City
Manager to sign all related documents and assurances on behalf of the City of
Chandler; and further authorizing the City Manager to take all action necessary or
prudent to implement the City’s HOME and HOME-ARP Program activities.

Council Focus Area(s): /ﬁﬁ\

17. Agreement No. NR3-952-4604, with Resurrection Street Ministry, Inc., and The
Salvation Army for Heat Relief Services

Move City Council approve Agreement No. NR3-952-4604, with Resurrection Street
Ministry, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $454,312, and The Salvation Army, in an
amount not to exceed $127,407.17, for heat relief services, for the period of one
year, beginning June 15, 2023, through June 14, 2024, with the option of up to four
one-year extensions.

Council Focus Area(s): @

Police Department

Page 9 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



18.

19.

20.

Resolution No. 5673 Acceptance of FY 2023 Anti-Human Trafficking Grant Fund
Program from the Department of Emergency and Military Affairs

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5673 authorizing and approving the
award of the FY 2023 Anti-Human Trafficking Fund Program from the Department of
Emergency and Military Affairs in the amount of $499,480.00; and authorizing the Chief
of Police, as designated by the City Manager, to conduct all negotiations and to execute
and submit all documents necessary in connection with such grant.

Council Focus Area(s): &

Introduction of Ordinance No. 5052 Declaring Certain Real Property as No Longer
Necessary for Use as a Public Roadway

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5052 declaring certain
real property as no longer necessary for use as a public roadway; vacating the roadway
located north and west of lots 586 through 594 in the Colonia Coronita Unit Four
subdivision; quitclaiming any remaining City interest in the vacated roadway to the
abutting private property owners of lots 586 through 594; and authorizing the execution
of all documents necessary to complete the abandonment and quitclaim.

Council Focus Area(s): .4

Resolution No. 5697, Authorizing the City of Chandler to Enter into an Agreement
to Share Costs for the Technical Review of the SRP-CAP Interconnection Facility
Among Cost-Share Partners and Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and
Power District

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5697, authorizing the City of Chandler
to enter into an agreement to share costs for the technical review of the SRP-CAP
Interconnection Facility among cost-share partners and Salt River Project Agricultural
Improvement and Power District.

Council Focus Area(s):

Page 10 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



21.

22.

23.

Project No. ST2203.401 with Sunland Asphalt & Construction, Inc., Pursuant to
Job Order Project No. JOC1909.401, for the Boston Street Improvements

Move City Council Award Project No. ST2203.401 to Sunland Asphalt & Construction,
Inc., Pursuant to Job Order Project No. JOC1909.401, for the Boston Street
Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $1,943,984.03.

- . ©
Council Focus Area(s): g 42" 9P

Project Agreement No. WA2303.401, with B&F Contracting, Inc., Pursuant to Job
Order Contract No. JOC2101.401, for the Hahn Reservoir Main Repair

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2303.401 to B&F Contracting, Inc.,
Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC2101.401, for the Hahn Reservoir Main Repair,
in an amount not to exceed $349,494.23.

Council Focus Area(s): ==&

Sole Source Purchase of Supervisory Control & Data Acquisition (SCADA)
Maintenance Services

Move City Council approve Agreement No. 4521, with Schneider Electric Systems USA,
Inc., for the sole source purchase of SCADA maintenance services, in an amount not to
exceed $139,620, for the period of one year, beginning June 15, 2023, through June
14, 2024.

Council Focus Area(s):

Public Hearing

24.

ANX21-0005 Harris Place, Annexation of Approximately 3.4 Acres West of the
Southwest Corner of Ocotillo and McQueen Road

Open Public Hearing

Staff Presentation

Council Discussion
Discussion from the Audience
Close Public Hearing

ablhwN=

Council Focus Area(s): g

Page 11 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



25.

Public Hearing on Adoption of the FY 2023-24 Annual Budget and 2024-2033
Capital Improvement Program (CIP), and Setting of Property Tax Levies

Open Public Meeting

Staff Presentation

Council Discussion
Discussion from the Audience
Close Public Hearing

aorwON -~

Council Focus Area(s): @ & v 39“

Informational

26.

27.

28.

Special Event Liquor Licenses and Temporary and Permanent Extensions of
Liquor License Premises Administratively Approved

Study Session & Regular Minutes of April 5, 2023, Planning and Zoning
Commission

Study Session & Regular Minutes of April 19, 2023, Planning and Zoning
Commission

Unscheduled Public Appearances

Adjourn

Page 12 of 12 Council Regular Meeting



ITEM 1

‘ .CHANDLER
ﬁw"‘arlzona

Community of Innovation
City Council Memorandum  City Clerk's Office Memo No. N/A

Date: June 15, 2023

To: Mayor and Council
From: Dana DelLong, City Clerk
Subject: Approval of Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the Council meeting minutes of the Study Session of
May 22, 2023; and the Regular Meeting of May 25, 2023.

Attachments

Minutes of the Study Session of May 22, 2023
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 25, 2023



Meeting Minutes
City Council Study Session

May 22, 2023 | 6:00 p.m.
Chandler City Council Chambers ‘ l gl'l!l'l\lylgl-nEgn

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ c(,mmun.tyof.nnovat.on

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:00 p.m.

Roll Call

Council Attendance Appointee Attendance
Mayor Kevin Hartke Josh Wright, City Manager
Vice Mayor Matt Orlando Kelly Schwab, City Attorney
Councilmember OD Harris Dana DelLong, City Clerk

Councilmember Mark Stewart
Councilmember Christine Ellis
Councilmember Jane Poston

Councilmember Angel Encinas

Scheduled Public Appearances
MAYOR HARTKE invited Councilmember Stewart to join him for the recognitions.

1. Recognition - Basha High School Marching Band State Championship
MAYOR HARTKE recognized the Basha Bear Regiment for their Marching Band State
Championship.

SHAWN SHIVE, Associate Director of Bands, thanked the City of Chandler and the community for
their support for the students.

2. Recognition - Chandler Fire Department Lifesaving Awards
MAYOR HARTKE invited Tom Dwiggins, Fire Chief; Carlos Vargas, Fire Battalion Chief; Sean Duggan,
Police Chief; and Superintendent Frank Narducci to present awards.



CHIEF VARGAS recognized Principal Mary Ann Rezzonico and Officer Megan Fritz. Jay Evans
presented the award.

CHIEF VARGAS recognized Staff Sergeant Obryan Benally and representatives from the U.S.
Marine Corps.

3. Proclamation - Centennial Year for Arizona Lions Club International
MAYOR HARTKE read the proclamation and invited Farhana Shifa, District Governor-Elect and
members of Sun Lakes, Chandler Sunbird, and Chandler Lions to accept.

DISTRICT GOVERNOR-ELECT FARHANA SHIFA thanked Mayor and Council for the support for the
Lions Club in Chandler.

4. Joshua Cotner, Concerns Regarding Police Response
Joshua Cotner not in attendance.

Consent Agenda and Discussion

Discussion was held on Items No. 4, 10, and 11.

Airport

1. Construction Agreement No. AlI2203.401 with Diamond Ridge Development, for the
Chandler Municipal Airport Wildlife Exclusion Perimeter Fence
Move City Council award Construction Agreement No. Al2203.401 to Diamond Ridge
Development, for the Chandler Municipal Airport Wildlife Exclusion Perimeter Fence, in an
amount not to exceed $796,965.07.

City Clerk

2. Approval of Minutes
Move City Council approve the Council meeting minutes of the Study Session of May 8,
2023, and the Regular Meeting of May 11, 2023.

3. Board and Commission Appointments
Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended.

City Manager

4, Professional Services Agreement No. TP2202.201, with Kimley-Horn & Associates, for the
Kyrene Branch and Highline Canal Shared Use Path Design Services
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. TP2202.201 to Kimley-Horn
& Associates for the Kyrene Branch and Highline Canal Shared Use Path Design Services, in
an amount not to exceed $574,883.11.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO asked staff to explain the type of surface area utilized in the canal path.
Page 2 of 11



JASON CRAMPTON, Transportation Planning Manager, explained that the path would be 10 feet
of concrete and 10 feet of dirt.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO asked about the method of crossing at Ray Road.
MR. CRAMPTON answered that the concept plans called for a traffic signal crossing. There will be

additional design considerations and public outreach to see what the best solution is. There is a
crossing at Kyrene and Knox in Tempe.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO asked about how to prevent vehicles from entering the area, but still
allowing for fire access as needed.

MR. CRAMPTON said the concern has been shared. The Salt River Project (SRP) can install gates to
restrict vehicular access. SRP maintenance vehicles and City vehicles would need access to the
canal.

MAYOR HARTKE asked if SRP has agreed to install gates to restrict access.
MR. CRAMPTON said that SRP has not formally agreed but it has been discussed, SRP is agreeable
to the concept. We are working on developing a full plan to incorporate the gates and then will

work on an agreement.

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said that it is important to involve community members and stakeholders
in planning. Councilmember Ellis asked what is being done to involve community members.

MR. CRAMPTON said this is a key consideration during design. The preliminary design of the
project, an extra step in the process has been completed. Public outreach is a key component of

the design.

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if we have paths that are half-and-half surfaces and if it is
practical.

MR. CRAMPTON said that these paths typically do have both concrete and dirt.

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if the size allowance leaves enough room for bicyclists to pass
each other.

MR. CRAMPTON said the design minimum is 10 to 12 feet - 10 feet does allow for passing distance.

MAYOR HARTKE invited speakers.

Page 3 of 11



LINDA KALAF, 1133 N Roosevelt Ave., noted she has witnessed an increase in unauthorized
vehicular activity along the canal. Ms. Kalaf asked staff to review videos submitted of unauthorized
vehicle use. Unauthorized vehicle use is dangerous to pedestrians, bicyclists, and those who live
by the canal. Ms. Kalaf also noted that there would be responsibility for sanitation along the canal.
Intersections like Ray Road and Kyrene Road are unsafe, taking shortcuts along canals are even
more unsafe. Ms. Kalaf said coordinating with SRP to install gates or physical barriers to restrict
vehicle access is of critical importance.

MAYOR HARTKE thanked Ms. Kalaf.

THIERRY MARIN-MARTINOD, 1132 N Roosevelt Ave., spoke about safety precautions in this project.
It is important to protect pedestrian use of the canal paths.

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked what is being done to make the pathway more secure.

MR. CRAMPTON said the intention is to conduct lighting analysis to add lighting to the path, while
working with neighbors to ensure the lighting is shielded appropriately to avoid light pollution.

Development Services

5. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5051 Adoption of Historic Preservation Code Amendments
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5051 approving PLH23-0010 Historic Preservation
Code Amendments related to terms of Historic Preservation Commission members,
regulations for the creation of historic preservation districts, and application of design
guidelines for historic preservation districts, as recommended by the Planning and Zoning
Commission and the Historic Preservation Commission.

Facilities and Fleet

6. Purchase of Carpet Installation Services for Main Police Station Carpet Replacement Project
Move City Council approve the purchase of carpet installation services, from Continental
Flooring Company, utilizing the State of Arizona Contract No. CTR043427, in an amount not
to exceed $143,000, for the Main Police Station carpet replacement.

Information Technology

7. Purchase of Information Technology Temporary Staffing Services
Move City Council approve the purchase of information technology temporary staffing
services, from Computer Aid, Inc., utilizing the Sourcewell Contract No. 071321-CAl, in the
amount of $507,600.

Page 4 of 11



Management Services

8. Agreement No. WH3-890-4597 for Waterworks Supplies
Move City Council approve Agreement No. WH3-890-4597, with Core and Main, LP, and
Ferguson Enterprises, LLC, for waterworks supplies, in an amount not to exceed $500,000,
for the period of June 1, 2023, through May 31, 2024.

9. Purchase of Janitorial and Sanitation Supplies
Move City Council approve the purchase of janitorial and sanitation supplies, from Waxie
Sanitary Supply, utilizing the City of Tucson Contract No. 202329-01, in an amount not to
exceed $250,000, for the period of June 1, 2023, through May 31, 2024.

Police Department

10.  Resolution No. 5690 Intergovernmental Agreement with Chandler Unified School District
No. 80 for Police Department Security Camera System Emergency Access
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5690 pertaining to an Intergovernmental
Agreement granting the Chandler Police Department emergency access to the Chandler
Unified School District No. 80 Security Camera System; and authorize the Chief of Police, as
designated by the City Manager, to conduct all negotiations and to execute and submit all
documents necessary in connection with such agreement.

SEAN DUGGAN, Police Chief, explained that this item is a request to agree to a memorandum of
understanding with the Chandler Unified School District to allow the Police Department’s 911
emergency communication center to access in real time the 2,000 cameras that the school district
has across school campuses. This would allow our dispatchers to provide critical information to
responding officers. The quicker officers engage threats is the best possible outcome.

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS thanked Chief Duggan for being proactive during an emergency.
MAYOR HARTKE asked when does the communication center have access to the cameras.

CHIEF DUGGAN answered that the communication center only has access to the cameras when
granted permission by the school district who owns and operates them.

Public Works and Utilities

11.  Resolution No. 5683 Authorizing the Acquisition of Real Property Rights Required for the
Water Main Replacement Project WA2203
Move Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5683, authorizing the acquisition of real
property rights required for the Water Main Replacement Project WA2203 within
Arrowhead Meadows, Tyson Manor, and Sunset Manor neighborhoods, as shown on the
attached map; authorizing the City's Real Estate Administrator to sign, on behalf of the City,
the purchase agreements, authorizations to access property, and any other documents
necessary to facilitate these acquisitions and access the properties; authorizing eminent

Page 5 of 11



domain proceedings as needed to acquire said real property and obtain immediate
possession thereof; and authorizing relocation assistance as may be needed and required
by law.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO asked about the area of Chandler being served by these water mains.

JOHN KNUDSON, Public Works and Utilities Director, explained that the next water main
replacements to be conducted are in the area of Chandler Boulevard and Alma School. In those
neighborhoods, all utilities run through the alleys. As the water mains age, it is difficult to reinstall
the water mains in the alleyways since the other utilizes still run through the alleys. The practice
is to move the pipelines from the alley out to the city street on the front of the home. This is time
consuming and involves lots of coordination with property owners.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO said that is why this requires consent of the property owners.

MR. KNUDSON said that in the design process oftentimes there might uncover a piece of land that
is fee ownership in the right of way. At times we must acquire the piece. Right of entry must be
completed with each property owner. Easements and some property purchase where pipeline is
needed may be necessary. This item is to get the authority to act upon real estate needs as they
come up in the design process.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO asked if it was possible to attach the new pipeline to the front of the house.

MR. KNUDSON said attaching the new pipeline to the front of the house would require replumbing
the entire house. This project maintains the flow of plumbing inside the home.

12. Agreement No. PW9-962-4035, Amendment No. 4, with Eurofins Environment Testing
Southwest, LLC; Legend Technical Services of Arizona, Inc.; and Radiation Safety
Engineering, Inc., for Laboratory Testing Services
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW9-962-4035, Amendment No. 4, with Eurofins
Environment Testing Southwest, LLC; Legend Technical Services of Arizona, Inc.; and
Radiation Safety Engineering, Inc., for laboratory testing services, in a combined amount
not to exceed $479,000, for the period of May 1, 2023, through April 30, 2024.

13.  Agreement No. PW3-918-4551, with Arcadis U.S., Inc., for Advanced Metering Infrastructure
Consultant Services
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW3-918-4551, with Arcadis U.S., Inc., for
Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Consultant Services, in an amount not to exceed
$662,065.

Page 6 of 11



14.

Construction Manager at Risk Agreement No. WW2005.403, Change order No. 1 - GMP2,
with B&F Contracting, Inc., for the Chandler Boulevard and Dobson Road Sewer and Water
Improvements

Move City Council award Construction Manager at Risk Agreement No. WW2005.403,
Change Order No. 1 - GMP2, to B&F Contracting, Inc., for the Chandler Boulevard and
Dobson Road Sewer and Water Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $7,202,897.39.

Action Agenda Item 15

15.

Resolution No. 5694, Adopting the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-24 Tentative Budget and 2024-2033
Tentative Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and Giving Notice of the Dates and Times for
Hearing Taxpayers for Final Adoption of the Budget and for setting the Tax Levies and Tax
Rates

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5694, adopting the FY 2023-24 Tentative
Budget and 2024-2033 Tentative CIP and giving notice of the dates and times for hearing
taxpayers for final adoption of the budget and for setting the tax levies and tax rates.

Public Hearing and Action Item 17

16.

17.

Public Hearing for Resolution No. 5692 Approving the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Annual
Assessment for the City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal
Services District

Open Public Hearing

Staff Presentation

Council Discussion
Discussion from the Audience
Close Public Hearing

uhwbN =

Resolution No. 5692 Approving the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Annual Assessment for the City
of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services District

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5692 approving the Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Annual Assessment for City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal
Services District.

Briefing and Discussion

18.

Briefing and Discussion Regarding Group Homes and Recent Actions by the State of Arizona
in Response to Fraudulent Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) Claims

LEAH POWELL, Neighborhood Resources Director, presented the following presentation.

Briefing on Group Homes and State of Arizona Actions on Fraudulent AHCCCS Claims
History

Page 7 of 11



o On May 17, 2023, Governor Hobbs and Attorney General Mayes announced a
suspension of payments and potential criminal charges against group homes
suspected of Medicaid (AHCCCS) fraud

o Facilities were to provide behavioral health services, however over 100 statewide
have been identified as fraudulent

o As early as January 2020, the FBI began seeking victims who had been recruited to
live in group homes

o Claims for service dating back to 2019 are being audited and at least 152 licenses
have been suspended or terminated
Primary target is Native Americans from Arizona, New Mexico and South Dakota
Residents were enrolled in the American Indian Health Plan which is funded through
the state

e Group Homes in Chandler

o Definition: a residential dwelling unit for a group of no more than five (5) unrelated
non transient persons, excluding staff, who do not have a disability, and are not living
together as a single housekeeping unit.

Categories - group homes and residential care homes for people with disabilities
Registration - group homes must be registered with the City of Chandler

Maximum occupancy - homes are limited to 5 residents except protected classes
may request an administrative waiver from the City to have as many as 10 residents

o Location - no two homes may be located within 1200 feet of each other, except an
administrative waiver may be granted by the City for protected classes (no min.
separation)

o Licensing - may or may not be licensed by the state or another governmental
authority

o Currently in Chandler, there are 276 Group Homes registered or in process of
applying for registration - 20 are listed as sober living homes

e Chandler's Response

o Immediately upon notification from the State, City staff began researching group
homes in Chandler

o Staff has connected with Solari 211 which the State has contracted to provide the
first level of intervention

o The City's Homeless Navigation Team is monitoring known locations and the areas
around them for individuals who may have been displaced

o If Chandler victims are identified, the Navigation Team will work to connect
individuals to new services and reunification with family, if applicable

o Staff will continue to monitor for additional fraudulent group homes

e Questions

COUNCILMEMBER POSTON said this is a large project and the City only has so much control over
the situation. Councilmember Poston asked for an estimate of how many of the homes in
Chandler may be part of this, and how are we addressing transportation needs.

Page 8 of 11



MS. POWELL said this is a still developing situation - it has been difficult to identify ownership of
the homes. The first interaction with someone who may be experiencing this is to attempt to
connect them to appropriate services an reunify with family members. The Navajo Nation
community does have specific crisis team that would transport members back to the Navajo
Nation, and we would work with other communities to reunite people. ChangeUp funds are
available to assist with transportation costs. Investigations of this situation are ongoing, and we
will continue to monitor this situation.

COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked what would happen if a group home was not registered in
Chandler.

MS. POWELL said that group homes in Chandler that are under this investigation have not been
registered with the City. Any home-based business not registered with the City of Chandler would
go through a normal inspection process with the City.

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS commented that assisted living homes are different than group homes.
Assisted living homes are licensed by the state of Arizona and Department of Health Services and
monitored and registered with the City. Councilmember Ellis asked how many sober homes are
registered in Chandler in comparison to unregistered group homes.

MS. POWELL said that there are currently 20 sober living homes registered with the City, we have
identified at least six homes associated with fraudulent cases which have been unregistered.

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS shared that this investigation has been going on since 2019.

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked about what actions we have taken with the six unregistered
fraudulent homes.

MS. POWELL said that we compared the list released by the state of suspended or terminated
clinics with the database of ownership in Chandler, finding they were owned by the same entity,
and finding none of the homes were on the list of registered group homes in Chandler. Billing
takes place in a clinic, then clinics place individuals in unregistered homes. A navigation team will
investigate people displaced by fraudulent group homes. Some homes suspected to be fraudulent
are vacant, but some are active - we will continue to monitor activity.

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS asked about homeowners and tenants.

MS. POWELL said that those identified were listed as rentals.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO asked what happens to the residents of the homes under investigation.

Page 9 of 11



MS. POWELL answered that at this point the response has been to treat this issue like a
humanitarian issue of homelessness. We are monitoring for people being displaced and
reentering homelessness because of suspension of payments to homes. We do not have
jurisdiction to enforce services provided.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO asked who investigates the homes themselves.

MS. POWELL said that people are being displaced because payments are being cut off, and
homeowners or companies are immediately displacing people. The 211 system is in use to
connect displaced people with service, they are receiving a high demand for service related to this
issue. The police department responds if there is a crime. Through that, some homes have been
identified, which then the police department turns over information to the FBI or whoever the
appropriate authority is. The state, law enforcement and FBI, and community resources are all
working together.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO shared concerns on who is taking care of the group homes residents.
MS. POWELL said that Solari is the primary response for people experiencing this.
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked if the group homes could displace their residents at any time.
MS. POWELL said yes, group homes could displace their residents at any time.

COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked if the Navigation Team is monitoring identified homes to see if
people are displaced from those homes at any given time.

MS. POWELL said that is correct.

COUNCILMEMBER POSTON said this is an ongoing issue.

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said that the authority to shut the homes down would be whoever gave
the contract to the clinic, the clinic then finding homes and placing people. The clinic is the one
managing the care of the client. The home is the third party in the transaction between the client

and clinic. When our navigators encounter people displaced, what do they see.

MS. POWELL answered that our one encounter was using substances but wanted to pursue
treatment and detox.

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS explained our goal as a city is to not make the situation worse, but we are

not responsible to fix it as it is out of our hands. What can do is be a safety net for those
experiencing homelessness because of this crisis.

Page 10 of 11



MAYOR HARTKE asked for continued information as this situation develops.

Informational
19.  Contracts and Agreements Administratively Approved, Month of April 2023

Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned at 7:03 p.m.

ATTEST:

City Clerk Mayor

Approval Date of Minutes: June 15, 2023

Certification

| hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Study
Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 22nd day of May 2023. | further
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

DATED this day of June, 2023.

City Clerk

Page 11 of 11



Meeting Minutes
City Council Regular Meeting

May 25, 2023 | 6:00 p.m.
Chandler City Council Chambers ‘ l gl'l!l'l\glgLnEgn

88 E. ChlcagO St., Chandler, AZ Communltyoflnnovatlon

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:00 p.m.

Roll Call

Council Attendance Appointee Attendance
Mayor Kevin Hartke Josh Wright, City Manager
Vice Mayor Matt Orlando Kelly Schwab, City Attorney
Councilmember OD Harris Dana DelLong, City Clerk

Councilmember Mark Stewart
Councilmember Christine Ellis
Councilmember Jane Poston
*Councilmember Angel Encinas

*Councilmember Encinas attended telephonically.

Invocation
The invocation was given by Pastor Victor Hardy, Congregational Church of the Valley.

Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilmember Poston.

Consent Agenda and Discussion

Airport

1. Construction Agreement No. Al2203.401 with Diamond Ridge Development, for the
Chandler Municipal Airport Wildlife Exclusion Perimeter Fence



Move City Council award Construction Agreement No. Al2203.401 to Diamond Ridge
Development, for the Chandler Municipal Airport Wildlife Exclusion Perimeter Fence, in an
amount not to exceed $796,965.07.

City Clerk

2.

Approval of Minutes

Move City Council approve the Council meeting minutes of the Study Session of May 8,
2023, and the Regular Meeting of May 11, 2023.

Board and Commission Appointments
Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended.

City Manager

4,

Professional Services Agreement No. TP2202.201, with Kimley-Horn & Associates, for the
Kyrene Branch and Highline Canal Shared Use Path Design Services

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. TP2202.201 to Kimley-Horn
& Associates for the Kyrene Branch and Highline Canal Shared Use Path Design Services, in
an amount not to exceed $574,883.11.

Development Services

5.

Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5051 Adoption of Historic Preservation Code Amendments
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5051 approving PLH23-0010 Historic Preservation
Code Amendments related to terms of Historic Preservation Commission members,
regulations for the creation of historic preservation districts, and application of design
guidelines for historic preservation districts, as recommended by the Planning and Zoning
Commission and the Historic Preservation Commission.

Facilities and Fleet

6.

Purchase of Carpet Installation Services for Main Police Station Carpet Replacement Project
Move City Council approve the purchase of carpet installation services, from Continental
Flooring Company, utilizing the State of Arizona Contract No. CTR043427, in an amount not
to exceed $143,000, for the Main Police Station carpet replacement.

Information Technology

7.

Purchase of Information Technology Temporary Staffing Services

Move City Council approve the purchase of information technology temporary staffing
services, from Computer Aid, Inc., utilizing the Sourcewell Contract No. 071321-CAl, in the
amount of $507,600.

Page 2 of 12



Management Services

8.

Agreement No. WH3-890-4597 for Waterworks Supplies

Move City Council approve Agreement No. WH3-890-4597, with Core and Main, LP, and
Ferguson Enterprises, LLC, for waterworks supplies, in an amount not to exceed $500,000,
for the period of June 1, 2023, through May 31, 2024.

Purchase of Janitorial and Sanitation Supplies

Move City Council approve the purchase of janitorial and sanitation supplies, from Waxie
Sanitary Supply, utilizing the City of Tucson Contract No. 202329-01, in an amount not to
exceed $250,000, for the period of June 1, 2023, through May 31, 2024.

Police Department

10.

Resolution No. 5690 Intergovernmental Agreement with Chandler Unified School District
No. 80 for Police Department Security Camera System Emergency Access

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5690 pertaining to an Intergovernmental
Agreement granting the Chandler Police Department emergency access to the Chandler
Unified School District No. 80 Security Camera System; and authorize the Chief of Police, as
designated by the City Manager, to conduct all negotiations and to execute and submit all
documents necessary in connection with such agreement.

Public Works and Utilities

11.

12.

Resolution No. 5683 Authorizing the Acquisition of Real Property Rights Required for the
Water Main Replacement Project WA2203

Move Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5683, authorizing the acquisition of real
property rights required for the Water Main Replacement Project WA2203 within
Arrowhead Meadows, Tyson Manor, and Sunset Manor neighborhoods, as shown on the
attached map; authorizing the City's Real Estate Administrator to sign, on behalf of the City,
the purchase agreements, authorizations to access property, and any other documents
necessary to facilitate these acquisitions and access the properties; authorizing eminent
domain proceedings as needed to acquire said real property and obtain immediate
possession thereof; and authorizing relocation assistance as may be needed and required
by law.

Agreement No. PW9-962-4035, Amendment No. 4, with Eurofins Environment Testing
Southwest, LLC; Legend Technical Services of Arizona, Inc.; and Radiation Safety
Engineering, Inc., for Laboratory Testing Services

Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW9-962-4035, Amendment No. 4, with Eurofins
Environment Testing Southwest, LLC; Legend Technical Services of Arizona, Inc.; and
Radiation Safety Engineering, Inc., for laboratory testing services, in a combined amount
not to exceed $479,000, for the period of May 1, 2023, through April 30, 2024.

Page 3 of 12



13.

14.

Agreement No. PW3-918-4551, with Arcadis U.S., Inc., for Advanced Metering Infrastructure
Consultant Services

Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW3-918-4551, with Arcadis U.S., Inc., for
Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Consultant Services, in an amount not to exceed
$662,065.

Construction Manager at Risk Agreement No. WW2005.403, Change order No. 1 - GMP2,
with B&F Contracting, Inc., for the Chandler Boulevard and Dobson Road Sewer and Water
Improvements

Move City Council award Construction Manager at Risk Agreement No. WW2005.403,
Change Order No. 1 - GMP2, to B&F Contracting, Inc., for the Chandler Boulevard and
Dobson Road Sewer and Water Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $7,202,897.39.

Consent Agenda Motion and Vote

Councilmember Ellis moved to approve the Consent Agenda of the May 25, 2023, Regular City
Council Meeting; Seconded by Councilmember Harris.

Motion carried unanimously (7-0).

Action Agenda Item 15

15.

Resolution No. 5694, Adopting the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-24 Tentative Budget and 2024-2033
Tentative Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and Giving Notice of the Dates and Times for
Hearing Taxpayers for Final Adoption of the Budget and for setting the Tax Levies and Tax
Rates

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5694, adopting the FY 2023-24 Tentative
Budget and 2024-2033 Tentative CIP and giving notice of the dates and times for hearing
taxpayers for final adoption of the budget and for setting the tax levies and tax rates.

MATT DUNBAR, Budget and Policy Assistant Director, presented the following presentation.

Res. No. 5694 Tentative Budget Adoption
Statutory Budget Process A.R.S. 42-17101 to 17108
o Adopt a tentative budget that sets forth the different amounts that will be required
to meet the political subdivision’s public expense for the fiscal year
» Enter into the minutes or the governing body
» Prepare according to forms supplied by the auditor general
= Publish on the website for public review
* Once tentatively adopted, budget cannot increase
o After tentative adoption, a public hearing shall be had wherein any taxpayer may be
heard in favor of or against any proposed expenditure or tax levy (set for June 15,
2023)

Page 4 of 12



o Hold Special meeting after public hearing to adopt the budget
o Adopt final tax rate on or before 4 days before taxes are levied, but after the public
hearing (set for June 29, 2023)
FY 2023-24 Proposed Budget “Innovation at Work”

0O O 0O O 0O O 0 O O O

Total budget $1,656,274,385 (all funds)

General Fund Only $610,510,158

22.5% increase overall: $800M operating (+5.9%), $856M capital (+43.4%)

23.8% increase in General Fund $483M operating (+16.9%), $128M capital (+59.2%)
Adheres to financial policies

Structurally balanced

Uses Strategic Framework to guide decisions

Provides for cost-effective, quality services

Maintains long-term financial sustainability

Engaged Residents through input opportunities

Budget Survey, Kickoff, & Two Workshops
All-day Budget Briefing
Tentative and Final Adoption

FY 2023-24 Proposed Budget Increase Drivers (all funds)
o Revenues

Increased revenues to reflect actual economic environment

Increases are coming from continued development, inflation and strong
consumer spending

Increased state shared revenues with updated projections

o Expenditures

Inflation increasing operations and capital budgets

Personnel costs increasing to invest in City workforce and retain employees;
market, merit, and healthcare

Capital projects increased to address aging infrastructure, bond authorized
projects, and grant funded projects

Infrastructure projects to support Intel expansion (FY 2022-23 $148M & FY
2023-24 $30.5M)

o Grants

o Debt

Includes $20M in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds included in FY 2023-
24 budget as carryforward

Continued focus on Grant opportunities and having “shovel ready” projects
that may qualify

Additional one-time payment of $73M to pay-off the Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System (PSPRS) unfunded liability and generate ongoing savings

Total Annual Proposed Budget
Operating Budget Highlights

Page 5 of 12



Reduces City property tax rate for the 8" consecutive year, no charge to Transaction
Privilege Tax (TPT)

Anticipates water, wastewater, and solid waste rate changes to continue to move
toward Cost of Service recommendations

Budget maintains existing service levels and enhances programs tied to strategic
framework

Adds funding for labor association commitments and general employee
merit/market

Plans towards debt reduction: $73M in one-time funding for pay-off of PSPRS liability
Maintains strong reserves (includes 15% General Fund contingency reserve and
$20M budget stabilization reserve)

e Average Annual Residential Cost Comparison for Direct Services

(@)

The average annual cost of services across the Valley is $2,217

MAYOR HARTKE asked if these are current real numbers.

MR. DUNBAR said that is correct, this includes our anticipated rate changes in the current fiscal
year, but it does not reflect rate changes for other communities.

MAYOR HARTKE said then our numbers will be significantly lower once FY 2023-24 budgets for
other communities are approved.

MR. DUNBAR added that other communities are sharing that their water and wastewater utility
rates are growing at a larger percentage than ours.

MAYOR HARTKE commented that this is because of great water planning by Chandler.

MR. DUNBAR confirmed that water policy and infrastructure has been wisely planned for by
Chandler over time.

MR. DUNBAR continued the following presentation.
e Average Residential Cost Comparison for Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste
e 2024-2033 CIP Highlights

O O O O

2024-2033 CIP total is $1,963,967,457 ($299M more than the 2023-2032 CIP)
Updated to reflect inflationary pressures

Increased focus on aging infrastructure

Includes $178.5M in projects for infrastructure to support Intel expansion
Bond authorization longevity shortened by inflation and additional projects

MAYOR HARTKE asked if the Intel expansion would be a reimbursement from Intel not taxpayer
funds, but we do have to account for it.

Page 6 of 12



MR. DUNBAR said for that partnership, Intel, and a tax rebate for infrastructure through the State
of Arizona pays for this Intel expansion. The City provides the investment in infrastructure
projects, we need the authorization to spend it - which will then be reimbursed to the City later.

MR. DUNBAR continued the following presentation.

e Proposed FY 2023-24 CIP Appropriation (all funds)
o Capital Carryforward $497.7M
o Contingency & Reserves $0.45M
o New Funding $358.3M
o $856.5M Total CIP Appropriation

e Key Budget Dates

e Questions

MAYOR HARTKE asked what money in the budget is set for transportation.

MR. WRIGHT said there is nothing in this budget for lane removal or road diet projects. Arterial
road construction is ongoing throughout southeast Chandler. Bus Rapid Transit is not planned for
in the 10-year capital plan. One recently released recommendation from Maricopa Association of
Governments (MAG) is for a Bus Rapid Transit, but it and other recommended transit models
would not be planned for until 2045.

MAYOR HARTKE said we had investigated light rail and did not pursue it. Any future conversations
on MAG recommendations will not be coming up soon.

MR. WRIGHT added that it took many public hearings and public input to establish
recommendations and action, and additional study and research.

MAYOR HARTKE asked for speakers.

JANET ACKERMAN, 6320 N 16" St., Phoenix, spoke on public transportation and lightrail. Ms.
Ackerman said an issue with public transit in Phoenix is that the summer heat makes it difficult to
commute. It is hard to use public transit in high temperatures because of the time spent outdoors
waiting for transportation. Reducing roadways leads to congestion.

Action Agenda Item 15 Motion and Vote

Vice Mayor Orlando moved to pass and adopt Resolution No. 5694, adopting the FY 2023-24
Tentative Budget and 2024-2033 Tentative CIP and giving notice of the dates and times for hearing
taxpayers for final adoption of the budget and for setting the tax levies and tax rates.; Seconded
by Councilmember Ellis.

Page 7 of 12



Motion carried unanimously (7-0).

Public Hearing and Action Agenda Item 17

16.  Public Hearing for Resolution No. 5692 Approving the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Annual
Assessment for the City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal
Services District

Open Public Hearing
MAYOR HARTKE opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

Staff Presentation
KIM MOYERS, Cultural Development Director, presented the following presentation.
e Enhanced Municipal Services District
e Enhanced Municipal Services District (EMSD) Overview
o Created in 2005 - 18" Year
o Covers 61.4 Acres and over 1 million square feet of commercial space
o Formed to provide public services over and above typical public services elsewhere
in the City
o Services are provided by the Downtown Chandler Community Partnership (DCCP)
through an annual contract with the City

REBECCA HILL, Downtown Chandler Community Partnership Executive Director, continued the
presentation.
e DCCP Mission Statement
o The Downtown Chandler Community Partnership (DCCP) is a 501( ¢ ) 6 not-for-profit
corporation whose mission is to mobilize leadership and resources to advance the
development of Downtown Chandler as a regional destination for shopping, dining,
living, culture and the arts.
e 2023 DCCP Board of Directors
o 2023-2024 DCCP Services
o Management
» Board And Stakeholder Engagement, Strategic Planning, Destination
Management
o Events
» Farmer's Market, Wedding Walk, Small Business Saturday, Crawls Including
Sippin’ Santas, Brunch Crawl, and hosted partnered events such as the Fine
Arts & Wine Festival, Beer, Bourbon & BBQ and Oktoberfest with our partners
at San Tan Brewing and Pedal Haus Brewery
o Marketing
= Promoting Downtown Chandler via social media, monthly newsletters, event

branding and stakeholder notifications. Creating a stay and play campaign,
Page 8 of 12



Channel Your Chill to attract both residents and visitors during the summer
months.
o Placemaking
= Planting flowers, placing American flags for holidays, holiday lights and
displays, and roof top lighting. Providing the overall feel of a welcoming and
inviting downtown. Partnering with local businesses and community groups to
build community.
o Clean Team
= Removes litter, graffiti, stickers, trash cans and wipe down surfaces. Serves as
a downtown ambassador.

MS. MOYERS continued the following presentation.
e EMSD Process & Next Steps

o Process
» Assessment was authorized by property owners
* 100% of assessment proceeds paid to the district
= City Council officially enables the district
= District must be renewed each year

o Next steps
= Contract with DCCP brought forward at June 22 Council Meeting

e Voluntary City contribution: $124,744

Council Discussion
VICE MAYOR ORLANDO thanked Ms. Hill for the work being done and the input provided from
councilmembers.

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART said our downtown is a destination because of what is being done at
the DCCP. We are grateful.

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS thanked Ms. Hill and staff. The partnership we have with DCCP is
valuable.

MAYOR HARTKE said that at the Chandler International Film Festival, the feedback towards
Downtown Chandler was great.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO asked if any new members have joined the DCCP.
MS. MOYERS shared the Maple House as an example.

Discussion from the Audience
MAYOR HARTKE asked if there was any discussion from the audience. There was none.

Page 9 of 12



Close Public Hearing
MAYOR HARTKE closed the public hearing at 6:42 p.m.

17.  Resolution No. 5692 Approving the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Annual Assessment for the City
of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services District
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5692 approving the Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Annual Assessment for City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal
Services District.

Action Agenda Item 17 Motion and Vote

Vice Mayor Orlando moved to pass and adopt Resolution No. 5692 approving the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 Annual Assessment for City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal
Services District; Seconded by Councilmember Poston.

Motion carried unanimously (7-0).

Informational
19.  Contracts and Agreements Administratively Approved, Month of April 2023

Unscheduled Public Appearances

CLOVIS HUNGATE, 21837 S. 140%™ St., presented and requested work on Ocotillo and 140" St. be
suspended until resolved. A temporary easement from 2020 grants a five-foot temporary
construction easement for the widening of Ocotillo Road. A vinyl fence is located on the temporary
construction easement on property.

JANET HOO, 21632 S. 140%™ St., shared that the Ocotillo Road Widening project has impacted the
entrance and exit of the neighborhood. Left turn lane onto 140" St. has been closed since
construction. It is a safety issue for the neighborhood. We need to work to get this resolved.

JEAN DIXON, 65 N. Hamilton #19, spoke against the proposed MAG Road Diet Plan.

DEREK LOGAN, Lot 96 Pinelake Estates, shared that Chandler should be considering the proposed
MAG transportation when considering density in the future. Chandler should consider what we
can do now.

JEFF CALDWELL, 15236 N. 215t St., Phoenix, shared that decades of planning effects outcomes that
come up. Mr. Caldwell spoke against the proposed MAG Road Diet Plan; decisions should be left
to cities and their residents.

Page 10 of 12



MARISSA HAMILTON, 625 W. Citrus Way, spoke against the proposed MAG Road Diet Plan and
encouraged people to have a direct relationship with their elected officials.

Current Events

Mayor's Announcements
MAYOR HARTKE wished everyone a happy Memorial Day.

MAYOR HARTKE congratulated Micah Miranda, Economic Development Director, and the
Economic Development department as Chandler is being recognized for the Arizona Chambers
2023 Best City for Business.

MAYOR HARTKE congratulated Hamilton High School Students for winning 4% in the nation in the
National Economics Challenge.

Council's Announcements
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS shared she attended a Haitian Flag Day celebration and read a
proclamation on May 18.

VICE MAYOR ORLANDO announced the 2023 Memorial Day Observance Event at Valley of the Sun
Cemetery on Monday, May 29 at 9:00 a.m.

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART shared that he went through a public safety demonstration at the
Chandler Public Safety Training Facility and thanked public safety staff.

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART thanked the audience for attending and speaking.

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS shared that we will honor and remember our military servicemembers
this Memorial Day.

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS recognized Armed Forces Day on May 20.

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS congratulated his daughter for graduating Arizona State University
(ASU) Class of 2023.

COUNCILMEMBER POSTON shared that it was the last day of school in Chandler Unified School
District (CUSD) and wished everyone a safe and happy summer and announced the Summer
Reading Program starts June 1.

COUNCILMEMBER POSTON said our Chandler Chamber Economic Development Update shared
some great news for Downtown Chandler. Downtown businesses are seeing an increase in

business over the summer season, and new businesses are opening this summer.
Page 11 of 12



COUNCILMEMBER POSTON recognized the Recycling Solid Waste Collection Center and Public
Works team for doing a great job.

City Manager's Announcements

MR. WRIGHT shared it was Public Works week this week and recognized Public Works staff for
doing a great job keeping Chandler safe and beautiful.

Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 p.m.

ATTEST:

City Clerk Mayor

Approval Date of Minutes: June 15, 2023

Certification

| hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of Regular
Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 25th day of May 2023. | further
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

DATED this day of June, 2023.

City Clerk

Page 12 of 12



ITEM 2

‘ .CHANDLER
ﬁw"‘arlzona

Community of Innovation
City Council Memorandum  City Clerk's Office Memo No. N/A

Date: June 15, 2023

To: Vice Mayor and City Council

From: Mayor Kevin Hartke

Subject: Board and Commission Appointments

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as
recommended.

Mayor's Committee for People with Disabilities
Reappoint Jeff Deaver




ITEM 3

‘ .CHANDLER
ﬁwﬁarlzona

Community of Innovation

City Council Memorandum  Community Services Memo No. CS23-037

Date: June 15, 2023
To: Mayor and Council

Thru:  Joshua H. Wright, City Manager
Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
John Sefton, Community Services Director

From: Courtney Allen, Management Assistant

Subject: Resolution No. 5693 - Intergovernmental Agreement Between the City of
Chandler and Maricopa County Library District for the Library Assistance
Program

Proposed Motion:

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5693, approving the
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the City of Chandler and the
Maricopa County Library District (MCLD) for the Library Assistance Program (LAP).

Background/Discussion:

A.R.S. §§ 48-3901 and 11-903 allows the City to participate in the MCLD, which is
a political taxing subdivision of this state for purposes of providing library services
to district residents. As a member of the Library District program, the City
participates in the LAP. The Library District has established a LAP for the benefit
of its members in order to expand the availability of Library Services. The benefits
include library materials assistance, provision of integrated Library System,
materials sharing, access to digital resources, inter-system delivery service and
Summer Reading Program resources.

On May 14, 2015, City Council adopted Resolution No. 4854, authorizing the First
Amendment to the IGA with MCLD for the LAP for a three-year term of July 1,
2015, through June 30, 2018. On April 26, 2018, City Council adopted Resolution
No. 5151, authorizing the Second Amendment to the IGA with MCLD for the LAP
for a five-year term of July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2023. Under this IGA, the
Chandler Public Library received $253,853 in FY 2018-19, $333,421 in FY
2019-20, $327,067 in FY 2020-21, $293,126 in FY 2021-22, and $356,397 in FY



2022-23 as a credit for the purchase of library materials through vendors on
contract with MCLD.

Under provisions of the IGA, residents of Chandler may obtain library cards free of
charge from any other library in Maricopa County. In return, the Chandler Public
Library also issues cards free of charge to all Maricopa County residents. The IGA
will be administered by MCLD.

Financial Implications:

MCLD allocates $3,700,000 that is split among participating valley libraries. Each
library’s portion is based on a formula of 40% Primary Assessed Valuation (limited
property value) and 60% Non-resident Gross Library Cards Issued. The Chandler
Public Library is estimated to receive $350,653 for FY 2023-24 as a credit for the
purchase of library materials through vendors on contract with MCLD under this
IGA, which is effective July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2028, and is renewable only
upon written amendment executed by both parties.

Attachments
LAP IGA
Resolution No. 5693 Library Assistance Program



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE
MARICOPA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
AND THE CITY OF CHANDLER
FOR THE LIBRARY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Agenda #

The governing bodies of the CITY OF CHANDLER (hereinafter "City") and the Maricopa County Library
District (hereinafter "Library District") authorize and approve this Intergovernmental Agreement
("Agreement") to be effective on the 1st of July, 2023 for provision of certain library services and
reimbursements.

WHEREAS A.R.S. §§ 48-3901 and 11-903 allow a City to elect to become a part of, or participate in a
county library district, which is a political taxing subdivision of this state for purposes of providing library
services to district residents;

WHEREAS the City is a member of the Library District program and wishes to participate in the Library
Assistance Program of the Library District;

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 9-411 et seq., the City has established and provided for a City library and
library facilities and services which are owned and funded by the City and its governing body;

WHEREAS, the Library District has established a Library Assistance Program for the benefit of its
members in order to expand the availability of Library Services;

WHEREAS, the City and the Library District are authorized to act and enter into this intergovernmental
agreement regarding the Library Assistance Program pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952; and

WHEREAS the City wishes to have its municipal library participate in and benefit from the Library
Assistance Program through library materials assistance, provision of Integrated Library System,

materials sharing, access to digital resources, inter-system delivery service and Summer Reading
Program resources.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows:

SECTION | - OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY

1. Services Offered. The City shall provide the following library services to persons who are
not residents of the City but entitled to the benefits of the Library District (hereinafter referred
to as "Non-Residents") to the same extent and pursuant to the same rules and regulations as
the City provides these facilities and services to City residents. "Non-Residents" as used in this
Agreement means only those persons entitled to Library District benefits, and does not include
other non-City residents. The services include access to and use of City library facilities,
materials and services.




2. Accounting and Documentation. The City agrees to identify Non-Residents utilizing the
services listed in paragraph 1 hereof and provide within thirty-one (31) days after the end of
each calendar year an accounting and documentation as described in Attachment "A" to this
Agreement.

3. Sharing of Materials. The City agrees to allow additional software (Inn-Reach) to search
the library catalogue and request materials to be shared with other library systems within
Maricopa County. Policies and procedures associated with this program are decided by a
committee with representatives from every library system in Maricopa County. This program
will be referred to as MAX (Maricopa Access) for the purposes of identification within the
Agreement and in communications.

SECTION Il - OBLIGATIONS OF THE LIBRARY DISTRICT

1. Library Materials Assistance

a. Allotment to City. The Library District shall make an allotment to the City based on the
percentage of the assessed valuation from the preceding February State Abstract and on the
percentage of gross cards issued to Non-Residents of the City that are entitled to the
benefits of the Library District. This allotment will be a not to exceed amount at a library
materials vendor that is on contract with the Library District. The allotment will be
calculated as follows:

i. Assessed Value Allocation (40% of Total) — The sum total of primary net
assessed value for all participating municipal libraries will be calculated. Then,
the percentage for each municipality will be calculated using the
aforementioned total. Forty percent (40%) of the total allocated for the Library
Assistance Program will be multiplied by each municipal percentage to find the
individual assessed value allocation.

ii. Cards Issued Allocation (60% of Total) — Each Library will submit to the Library
District accounting and documentation as required in Section |.2. This report
will be submitted on or before January 31 of each year, for the CALENDAR YEAR.
The submissions will be totaled and the percentage for each participating
municipality will be calculated. The Allocation for each library system will be
calculated by multiplying their percentage times 60% of the funding available
for the Library Assistance Program.

b. Vendor and Account Set Up. The Library Assistance Program accounts will be set up for
each participating library system as follows:

i. Library materials purchase only

i. Library District contracted vendors

iii. Accounts set up at vendor through Library District only

.E.

Up to two (2) vendors



2. |Integrated Library System

a. Cloud Hosting — Hosting of the Integrated Library System by provider

b. Public Core Bundle Licenses — necessary base licenses for use of Integrated Library System
by city library system as determined by Library District

c. Staff Licenses — required licenses for staff to use Integrated Library System

d. Additional software, features and support may be purchased by the City to enhance the City
operations

3. Materials Sharing (MAX)

a. Provision of the operating software, Inn-Reach, including installation, configuration, and any
maintenance.

b. Provision of a courier service to move the materials to assigned locations within Maricopa
County within an agreed upon timeline and via the request of the Maricopa County resident.

4. Digital Resources

a. Funds the Maricopa County share of the Statewide access to online databases and
electronic resources.

b. Purchases digital resources for the participating public libraries in Maricopa County.

5. Inter-System Delivery Services — library materials and resources moved between the various
system by Library District courier or delivery service.

6. Summer Reading Program

a. Summer Reading Program Software
b. Training & Support

c. Events

d. Countywide Reading Incentives

e. Prize Books

SECTION Ill - OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Term. This Agreement shall terminate June 30, 2028, unless sooner terminated by the parties
hereto and is renewable only upon written amendment executed by both parties.

2. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon 90 days' notice to the other
party.

3. Severability and Savings. If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable,
such holding will not affect the validity or enforceability of any other part of this Agreement so
long as the remainder of the Agreement is reasonably capable of completion without inequity to
the party(ies). If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such holding




10.

11.

and any actions taken subsequent thereto shall not require a return or reimbursement, nor
affect in any way, the receipt or expenditure by the City, of tax revenues paid or payable as of
the date of such holding pursuant to this or any similar Agreement. The provision of this
Agreement for payment of funds by the Library District shall be effective when funds are
appropriated for purposes of this Agreement and are actually available for payment. The Library
District shall be the sole judge and authority in determining the availability of funds under this
Agreement and the Library District shall keep the City fully informed as to the availability of
funds for its program.

Entire Agreement Supersedes Any Other. This Agreement comprises the entire agreement of the
parties and supersedes any and all other agreements or understandings, oral and written,
whether previous to the execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.

Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
of the State of Arizona and the laws, rules and regulations of the City and the Library District.

Cancellation. The parties hereto acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to cancellation
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511.

E-Verify. The parties verify compliance with the requirements in A.R.S. § 41-4401 and A.R.S. §
23-214.

Indemnification. Each party (as “indemnitor”) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
the other party (as “indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or
expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, (hereinafter collectively referred to as “claims”)
arising out of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the
extent that such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee are caused
by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the indemnitor, its officers,
officials, agents, employees, or volunteers.

Records. The Library District will comply with A.R.S. § 41-151.22 regarding the confidentiality of
the user records it receives pursuant to this Agreement.

Boycott of Israel. Each party certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and for the duration of
this Agreement agrees not to engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined in A.R.S. § 35-393.

Uyghur Forced Labor

Each party warrants and certifies that for the duration of the Agreement that it will not use any
contractors, subcontractors or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services
produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China. If a party
becomes aware during the term of the Agreement that any contractors, subcontractors or
suppliers are not in compliance with this paragraph, the party shall notify the other party within
five business days after becoming aware of the noncompliance. Upon failure of the party to
provide a written certification that the party has remedied the noncompliance within one
hundred eighty (180) days after notifying the other party of its noncompliance, this Agreement
shall terminate unless the Term of this Agreement shall end prior to said one hundred eighty
(180) day period. A.R.S. § 35-394




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY OF CHANDLER and the MARICOPA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT have
executed this Agreement effective on the date first above written.

CITY OF CHANDLER MARICOPA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
By: By:

Mayor Chairman, Board of Directors

City of Chandler Maricopa County Library District
ATTEST: ATTEST:
By: By:
City Clerk Date Clerk of the Board Date

In accordance with A.R.S., Section 11-952, the foregoing Agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned counsel who has determined that it is in proper form and within the power and authority
granted under the laws of the State of Arizona.

By: By:

Attorney Attorney

City of Chandler Maricopa County Library District
pig



ATTACHMENT A

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MARICOPA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT AND THE
CITY OF CHANDLER FOR THE 2023 - 2028 LIBRARY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM POLICY AND PROCEDURES

Policy:

Any resident of Maricopa County may obtain a free library card from a participating library upon
presentation of current identification and proof of residence. Any borrower participating in this project
must conform to the rules, policies, and regulations of the library from which the materials are
borrowed. Non-Resident library cards will be issued from January 1 through December 31 each fiscal
year covered by the Agreement.

Procedures:

A. Issuance of a Non-Resident Library Card.

a. Aresident of Maricopa County must present current identification and proof of residence.
Resident is defined as any individual showing proof of residence, business ownership or
property ownership in Maricopa County. Visitors who are in Maricopa County for less than a
month do not qualify as residents.

b. A card will be given with an expiration date, which is one year from date of issue.

B. Statistical Reporting.

a. Inorderto be eligible for the Library Assistance Program, each participating library must
submit an Annual Non-Resident Report to the Library District by January 31 for the prior
calendar year. The report must provide the following information for each borrower:

i. Name
ii. Street Address
iii. City/Town and ZIP code of residence
iv. Date of registration/renewal
v. Card number

b. This information can be a computer report prepared by the City Library automation system.
Additionally, a summary sheet totaling the number of Non-Resident library cards issued per
Municipality/Unincorporated County for the year submitted must be included.

d. The County will prepare and distribute an annual statistical report



RESOLUTION NO. 5693

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER,
ARIZONA APPROVING AN INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE MARICOPA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT AND THE
CITY OF CHANDLER FOR THE LIBRARY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, pursuant to its charter and A.R.S. Section 9-411 et seq., the City has established
and provided for a City library and library facilities and services which are owned and funded by
the City and its governing body; and

WHEREAS, A.R.S. Section 48-3901 and Section 11-903 allow a City to elect to become part of,
or participate in a county library district, which is a political taxing subdivision of this state for
purposes of providing library services to district residents; and

WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Maricopa County Library District (“MCLD”) program,
and wishes to continue participation in the MCLD’s Library Assistance Program (“LAP”’) which
offers assistance to participating libraries in providing library services and materials to patrons;
and

WHEREAS, the City and MCLD are authorized to act and enter into this Intergovernmental
Agreement (“IGA”) regarding the LAP pursuant to A.R.S. Section 11-952; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to have its municipal library participate and benefit from the LAP
by purchasing library materials in an amount to be determined based on the percentage of
assessed valuation and the percentage of cards issued for the use of its library and library
services by Non-Residents of the City who are entitled to the benefits of the MCLD and by
receiving access to various software, digital resources, training, and other benefits.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona
as follows:

Section 1. Approves the IGA between the City of Chandler and the Maricopa County
Library District in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated
herein by reference.

Section 2. Authorizes the Mayor of the City of Chandler to execute the IGA on behalf of the
City of Chandler.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this
day of , 2023.

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK MAYOR



Resolution 5693
Page 2

CERTIFICATION

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5693 was duly passed and
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the

day of , 2023 and that a quorum was present thereat.
CITY CLERK
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
CITY ATTORNEY

PG



Exhibit “A”



ITEM 4

‘ .CHANDLER
ﬁwﬁarlzona

Community of Innovation

City Council Memorandum  Cultural Development Memo No. CP23-152

Date: June 15, 2023
To: Mayor and Council
Thru:  Joshua H. Wright, City Manager
Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
Kim Moyers, Cultural Development Director
Kimberly Moon, Capital Projects Manager
From: Hafiz Noor, Construction/Design Project Manager
Subject: Professional Services Agreement No. CA2202.501, with Arizona Public

Service Company for the Wall Street Overhead Power Conversion to
Underground Design and Construction Services

Proposed Motion:

Move City Council approve Professional Services Agreement No. CA2202.501,
with Arizona Public Service Company, for the Wall Street Overhead Power
Conversion to Underground Design and Construction Services, in an amount not
to exceed $1,251,239.72.

Background/Discussion:

This project is for improvements to Wall Street between Chicago Street and Frye
Road in Downtown Chandler to enhance pedestrian and cyclist connectivity and
safety. This area is the final section of an important pathway across Downtown
Chandler, connecting Chandler Boulevard to Frye Road. As part of the work,
above-ground utilities will be relocated underground with an additional transformer
placed to allow for future development.

This agreement with APS will convert existing overhead 12kV power lines to
underground on the east side of Wall Street from Chicago Street to Frye Road.
Additionally, APS will design and construct trenching and conduit for APS, City
streetlights, and telecommunications. The scope of work also includes removal of
old infrastructure, modification of electrical panels, and installation of steel poles,
switching cabinets, capacitor bank(s), single phase transformers, three-phase
transformers, conductors, terminations, and associated appurtenances.



The construction timeline is estimated at 84 calendar days upon commencement
of the project by APS.

Evaluation:

The selection process was conducted in accordance with City policy and
procedure and State law.

Financial Implications:

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon City Council adopting the FY
2023-24 budget. APS is the electrical utility serving this area of Chandler and
owns the infrastructure to be reconstructed.

Fiscal Impact

Account No. Fund Program Name Dollar CIP
Name Amount Funded
YI/N
401.4320.5219.0.6CA669 General Wall Street $1,251,239.72 Y
Gov't Improvements
Capital
Attachments

Project Agreement
CA2202.501 Location Map



D aps

Sta. 3177
P.O. Box 53933

May 11, 2023 Phoenix, AZ 85072

Hafiz Noor

City of Chandler
215 E Buffalo St
Chandler, AZ 85225

PROJECT: City of Chandler #6620061-161CA2202.501
LOCATION: Wall Street - Chicago St to Frye Rd

Dear Hafiz,

This letter serves as a letter of agreement for Arizona Public Service Company ("APS")
Work Authorization No. WA517840 relating to the above-mentioned project. The
following is an outline of the costs and responsibilities of APS and the City of Chandler
("City").

1) To be provided and/or installed by City contractor

a) All trench material and trench related work including, but not limited to; trenching, spoils removal,
asphalt cutting, milling, boring, backfill material and compaction per APS Transmission and
Distribution Construction Standards (T.A.D.C.S.) manual, section 8601. All surface restoration (i.e.
landscaping, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, pavement, driveways, valley gutters, etc.) as it relates to
work performed on this project by the APS contractor.

b) All conduit, conduit related material, labor to install all associated conduit, including but not limited
to; 17, 2", 2.5” 3", 4" and 5" PVC conduit, conduit sweeps, conduit caps, conduit plugs, primer,
glue, conduit spacers, rebar, concrete encasement, and mandrelling of the conduit system.

c) Labor to install communications conduits provided by COX & LUMEN.

d) All trench, bell holes and backfill as required to splice APS cables to the APS equipment cabinet
(surface restoration is to be provided by the City contractor).

e) All miscellaneous material and work including, but not limited to, barricading, shoring, steel plating,
and traffic control.

f)  Where duct banks are required: labor and 2-sack material for the concrete encasement of the duct
bank, unless otherwise specified.

g) Labor to install APS provided manholes, pull boxes, transformer pads, box pads, j-boxes and
ground rods (or alternate grounding material).

h) All conduits shown to be ending in energized APS equipment shall be stubbed 4 feet from either the
equipment or the Blue Stake marking for underground electric cables in the vicinity. The conduit is
to be capped and marked for APS crews to connect to the equipment. NOTE: CAUTION DO NOT
ENTER - ENERGIZED APS EQUIPMENT.

i) Labor to expose and attach to/or re-route existing empty conduit. Re-routing of conduit presently

in use shall be performed by the City contractor after the existing electrical cable has been removed
by APS forces.

Page 1 of 3



2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

b))

k)

Construction centerline staking, all vertical control and staking of depth requirements for all APS
equipment and trenches. Trench alignment and depths shall be adjusted to provide a minimum of
two (2) feet vertical clearance from proposed conflicts, and one (1) foot vertical clearance from
existing conflicts. APS requires two-(2) feet horizontal alignment from all existing and proposed
conflicts.

All ground rods, junction boxes, pull line, transformer pads, box pads, pull boxes, manholes and
electronic markers. The APS contractor must schedule with the APS warehouse for material pickup.
Contact Lauren Bridwell (602) 371-6049 to schedule an appointment. A late arrival time of more
than ten minutes from your scheduled time, may result in an APS cancellation of the appointment,
depending on the congestion and workload present at the APS warehouse.

To be provided by APS and installed by the City contractor

a) All ground rods, junction boxes, pull line, transformer pads, box pads, pull boxes,
manholes and electronic markers. The APS contractor must schedule with the APS
warehouse for material pickup. Contact Lauren Bridwell (602) 371-6049 to schedule an
appointment. A late arrival time of more than ten minutes from your scheduled time, may
result in an APS cancellation of the appointment, depending on the congestion and
workload present at the APS warehouse.

To be provided and installed by APS

a) Survey for horizontal control of APS related trenching and equipment. City contractor to
call 602-371-7010 ten (10) working days in advance to needing control for trenching.

b) Conduit system inspection including; trench work, conduit installation, miscellaneous work
and installations. City contractor to call (602) 371-6512 a minimum of five (5) working
days prior to the start of trenching.

c) APS Transmission and Distribution Construction Specifications as related to the project.
d) All trench, bell holes and backfill as required to splice APS cables from the point at which

the APS contractor ended to the APS equipment cabinet (surface restoration is to be
provided by the City contractor).

e) Connections to the APS contractor’s conduit after the system has been mandrelled and
accepted.
f) All conduit and sweeps, as required, from the point at which the APS contractor’s conduit

ended, to the existing energized electrical equipment.

g) All secondary cable, primary cable, terminations, sweeps into energized transformers,
mandrelling of conduit into energized equipment and fuses in street light j-boxes.

The City has requested that APS convert the existing overhead 12kV lines to
underground on the east side of Wall St Alley from Chicago St to Frye Rd for
aesthetic purposes.

The City has requested that APS provide all trench and conduit for installation
of APS, City streetlights, COX and Lumen.

All trench and conduit installations will be invoiced to the City as part of this
agreement. APS to provide joint trench breakout costs via Western
Underground Formula (WUF). City to collect trench and conduit costs from
joint trench participants without Prior Rights via the WUF.

This conversion will provide trench and conduit (into energized electrical
equipment), electrical materials and electrical man hours to convert/modify 7
electrical panels, install 2 primary dips, install 4 secondary dips, install 2 steel

Page 2 of 3



poles, install 2 switching cabinets, install 1 capacitor bank, install 2 single
phase transformers, install 3 three phase transformers, install approx. 1,218’ of
3-UA750 conductor, install approx. 4,376' of 1-UA1/0T, install approx. 500" of
1-UA4/0D, install approx. 1,398' of 1-UA4/0A, install approx. 704’ of 1-UA1/0A,
install all primary and secondary terminations, remove 2 primary dip, remove 8
secondary dips, remove down guys, remove 4 steel poles, remove 6 wood
poles, remove OH capacitor bank, remove 2 OH duplex transformer, remove 2
OH three phase transformers, remove OH single phase transformers, remove
approx. 1,030' of 3-UA1/0T, remove approx. 480' of 1-UA1/0A, remove approx.
780" of OH #6, remove all primary and secondary terminations. The City shall
reimburse APS $1,251,239.72 for the design and construction of the above
described conversion.

8) The project cost breakdown is as follows:
OH to UG 12kV Conversion $1,251,239.72
Total City of Chandler Cost $1,251,239.72

9) A.R.S. § 38-511 applies to this Agreement.

Please sign the enclosed letter and return it to me to indicate your approval of the
above costs and responsibility. All final billings will be based on actual costs at the end
of construction. If you have any questions, please call me at 602-320-7069.

Sincerely,

Kon Gandara

Ron Gandara
Customer Project Manager, Consultant

Enclosure

The City of Chandler agrees to reimburse APS the amount of $1,251,239.72
for all the work APS performed in association with the City’s project.

Approved and accepted this day of , 2023, on behalf
of the City of Chandler

Printed Name:  gee signature page attached

Title: see signature page attached

Signature: see signature page attached

The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City represents and
warrants: (i) that he or she is authorized to do so on behalf of the City; (ii)
that he or she has full legal power and authority to bind the City in
accordance with the terms herein and, if necessary, has obtained all required
consents or delegations of such power and authority.

Page 3 of 3



“CITY” CITY OF CHANDLER

“APS” ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

MAYOR

RECOMMENDED BY:

)

m'”(ﬁ( 4

Signature

Date

Kimberly Moon, P.E.
CIP City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Print Name

City Attorney W\/O

ATTEST:

City Clerk Seal

Title

Signer Email Address



v wmw -/--” ‘..,J

[ ELLIOTRD

/ ] WARNER RD
/

RAY RD

s / _
| V. CHANDLER BL
T ’, /
G /
S e T -
N PECOS RD
2 g 5 S /
I3 i 2 2
g 2 z s
- g 3 § GERMANN RD
g
5 y
QUEEN CREEK RD

/ | OCOTILLO RD
T i
? \ ( CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD
[
b

RIGGS RD

fove!
|
\,'\ £

4
a4 Nossoq|
m
o 4

\ HUNT HW

4 ¥3d00D)|
[EEREET
QY AVSANI

¥AVISIA

o

[N o]
o
N2
o0
S

- LA

\V YNOZINV—

ad N33NOOL

NN N NN
« -

G 3= ”
CHICAGOIST

L

A
o |

WALL STREET OVERHEAD
POWER LINES CONVERSION
TO UNDERGROUND

PROJECT NO. CA2202.501

MEMO NO. CP23-152

PROJECT SITE

\\ENGINEER\GENSERV\ ArcGISPro_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\2023\Capital_Projects_Map_Requests_2023\Capital_Projects Map_Requests_2023.aprx 4/21/2023 maricelah

=7 An e o=
= Ul TRV VT TR T
il

A

NTS

Chan®IS




ITEM 5

‘ .CHANDLER
ﬁwﬁarlzona

Community of Innovation
City Council Memorandum  Cultural Development Memo No. CP23-155

Date: June 15, 2023

To: Mayor and Council

Thru:  Joshua H. Wright, City Manager
Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
Kim Moyers, Cultural Development Director
Kimberly Moon, Capital Projects Manager

From: Hafiz Noor, Construction/Design Project Manager

Subject: Professional Services Agreement No. ST2203.451, with Consultant
Engineering, Inc., for the Boston Street Improvements Construction
Management Services

Proposed Motion:

Move City Council Award Professional Services Agreement No. ST2203.451 to
Consultant Engineering, Inc., for the Boston Street Improvements Construction
Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $153,395.

Background/Discussion:

The Boston Street Project, located between Arizona Avenue and California Street
in Downtown Chandler, consists of improvements to the existing two travel lanes
as well as the parallel parking on the north side of the street and the angled
parking on the south side of the street. This work is intended to repair the road
surface of Boston Street, widen the northern sidewalk east of Oregon Street and
the southern sidewalk west of Oregon Street, and improve the pedestrian
crossings.

Boston Street has seen the deterioration of asphalt from poor drainage,

causing the street to crack and become unlevel at the crosswalk at San Marcos
Place. The project also includes raised bulb-outs to make it safer for pedestrians
to see oncoming vehicles before crossing, a drop-off zone to support area
restaurants and shopping, and a consistent and unified look from historic
downtown west to the new DC Heights multifamily complex. Upon completion,
wayfinding signage and placemaking elements will be added as called for in the



recently-completed Pedestrian and Wayfinding Study. The recommendations of
this study, along with other planned improvements in Downtown Chandler, were
presented to the City Council Neighborhoods Subcommittee (Vice Mayor Orlando,
Councilmembers Poston and Harris) on February 9, 2023.

Due to the high volume of pedestrian and vehicular traffic along Boston Street and
the impactful nature of this project, staff has been communicating with the
downtown business community and affected businesses through emails, phone
calls, Downtown Chandler Community Partnership (DCCP) e-blasts, and in-person
meetings to discuss timing, layout design and aesthetic features. Additionally, a
public relations firm will be contracted to assist with communication prior to and
during construction.

The project scope of work consists of construction management services for
removal and replacement of travel lanes in the eastbound and westbound
directions, curb, gutter, sidewalk, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) upgrades,
striping, utility adjustments, and landscape improvements. The Agreement
completion time is 210 calendar days following Notice to Proceed. The project will
begin in mid-June and should be substantially complete by the first part of
November 2024.

A related Construction Agreement with Sunland Asphalt Construction, Inc., for the
Boston Street Improvements, is also scheduled for this City Council meeting.

Evaluation:

The selection process was conducted in accordance with City policy and
procedure and State law. This project is being performed under the On-Call
Consultant Pre-Qualified List for Construction Management Services. Staff
recommends approval of this agreement with Consultant Engineering, Inc., based
on qualifications, relevant firm experience, team experience, project
understanding, and project approach.

Financial Implications:

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon City Council adopting the FY
2023-24 budget.

Fiscal Impact

Account No. Fund Program Name Dollar CIP
Name Amount Funded
Y/N



411.3310.5219.0000.6ST773 General Boston Street $153,395 Y

Gov't Improvements
Capital
Attachments

ST2203.451 Location Map P23-155
Agreement



CALIFORNIA ST

e

57 R
i b

¥

J

BT

BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS
CONSTRUCTION MANGEMENT SERVICES
PROJECT NO. ST2203.451

LA g .
B (& 3 - ~Ey ﬂ | o - :"q‘,'
] 2 w4 : : ;
- : e Sl ATRE
] 41 = g ELAG
— iy o o N <
= O e 1] & 4 T 2 7 X ¢ A
e ! £ 58 A ‘\i
54 T ) | o g
X i i o 2,
= . s
e A . i - = 9 | 5 4 qa
o) 24 Z s
VA 3 25
.,7“,, b i sy N 'yﬁl‘ ”
: 3 L § (TY :‘- s = o, 2
& _ A . (7 TA
— ool el ¥ — oo, TEE ¥
I > o
7 7 ]
/BOSTONST//2
S S S

T - [ I 1 J
| K ',';;..;, ot : ‘ ‘_,:, I ) i 4
v" 1 E’\""‘T / 2 " . k) L v
f 'r: 9 ;§< ;ﬁ 1¢ s -
/| K Rt L 2| dal L
VP A P v ‘B | -
2 = e
y iy L e\ W\ B RN T B R e
@‘a . & | T e S
— Ll ¢

"

N 3

b
2 o AN
h‘,‘ h‘\i«ﬁ@‘?u‘hi

£

ﬁ{__; _‘44
<

o

F\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcGISPro_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\2023\Capital_Projects_Map_Requests_2023\Capital_Projects_Map_Requests_2023.aprx 5/18/2023 MaricelaH

ARIZONA AV-—

i - I
i o
o b

SIEAEE auier

ooooooooo

MEMO NO. CP23-155

PROJECT SITE

RRRRRRR

i -
/
/ b | T warnerrD
1 /
RAY
J
[ V2N R O N N N A N A L PRV 5
I
J
=5 — / 07
N
/ ) / /
— 9 GERMANN RD
/
QUEEN CREEK RD
& - ’
/ |
3 7 v
=y IR CrpnoLen
B [ )
i »
\
5
53 €
£ 7
| 3

NTS




’.,‘ CHANDLER
W arlzona

Community of Innovation

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Construction Management Services
BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS

Project No. ST2203.451
Council Date: June 15, 2023 Item No.

This Agreement (“Agreement”)is made and entered intoonthe_____ dayof , 2022
(‘Effective Date”), by and between City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, ("City"),
and Consultant Engineering, Inc., an Arizona corporation, ("Consultant") (City and Consultant
may individually be referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties”).

RECITALS

A. City proposes to engage Consultant to provide Construction Management Services for
BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS project as more fully described in Exhibit "A", which is
attached to and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

B. Consultant is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” for
the compensation and fees set forth and as described in Exhibit "B”, which is attached to
and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

C. City desires to enter into an Agreement with Consultant to provide these services under
the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises contained in this
Agreement, City and Consultant agree as follows:

SECTION I--CONSULTANT'S SERVICES

Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit “A” to City’s satisfaction within the
terms and conditions of this Agreement and within the care and skill that a person who
provides similar services in Chandler, Arizona exercises under similar conditions. All work or
services furnished by Consultant under this Agreement must be performed in a skilled and
workmanlike manner. All fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant as
part of the work or services under this Agreement must be new, or the latest model, and of
the most suitable grade and quality for the intended purpose of the work or service.

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 1
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



SECTION II--PERIOD OF SERVICE

Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit “A” for the term of this
Agreement. Unless amended in writing by the Parties, the Agreement term expires 250
calendar days after the Notice to Proceed (NTP) Date.

SECTION I1I--PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES

Unless amended in writing by the Parties, Consultant's compensation and fees as more fully
described in Exhibit “B” for performance of the services approved and accepted by City
under this Agreement must not exceed $153,395 for the full term of the Agreement.
Consultant may not increase any compensation or fees under this Agreement without the
City's prior written consent. Consultant must submit monthly requests for payment of
services approved and accepted during the previous billing period and must include, as
applicable, detailed invoices and receipts, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished
during the billing period, a list of any deliverables submitted, and any subconsultant's or
supplier's actual requests for payment plus similar narrative and listing of their work.
Consultant must submit an Application and Certification for Payment Sheet with the monthly
request for payment to: CapitalProjects.Payables@chandleraz.gov. Payment for those
services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage of the
work completed during the preceding billing period. Services negotiated as a not-to-exceed
fee will be paid in accordance with the work effort expended on the service during the
preceding month. All requests for payment must be submitted to City for review and
approval. City will make payment for approved and accepted services within 30 calendar days
of City's receipt of the request for payment. Consultant bears all responsibility and liability for
any and all tax obligations that result from Consultant’s performance under this Agreement.

SECTION IV--CITY'S OBLIGATIONS

As part of Consultant’'s services under this Agreement, City will provide furnished items,
services, or obligations as detailed in Exhibit “D".

SECTION V--GENERAL CONDITIONS

5.1 Notices. Unless otherwise provided herein, demands under this Agreement must be in
writing and will be deemed to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of
service if personally served on the party to whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the third day
after the date of the postmark of deposit by first class United States mail, registered or
certified, postage prepaid and properly addressed as follows:

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 2
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



To City: City of Chandler - Public Works & Utilities Department

Attn: CIP City Engineer: Kimberly Moon, P.E.

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407

Chandler, AZ 85244-4008

Phone: 480-782-3349 Email: kimberly.moon@chandleraz.gov
With a copy to: | City of Chandler - Public Works & Utilities Department

Attn: Scott Riter, Construction Project Manager

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407, Chandler, AZ 85244-4008

Phone: 480-782-3328 Email: scott.riter@chandleraz.gov

To Consultant: . )
LEGAL COMPANY NAME: |Consultant Engineering, Inc.

Mailing Address: |PO Box 37167, Phoenix, AZ 85069

Physical Address: |10625 N. 25th Ave, Suite 200, Phoenix, AZ 85029

Statutory Agent Name: |John Patterson

Statutory Agent Mailing Address: |PO Box 37167, Phoenix, AZ 85069

10625 N. 25th Ave, Suite 200,
Statutory Agent Physical Address: |Phoenix, AZ 85029

CONSULTANT'S AUTHORIZED PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE

Name: |[Brian Lizzet

Title: Project Manager/Principal

Phone: (480.689.6472

Email: |blizzet@cei-az.com

5.2 Records/Audit. Records of Consultant’s direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses
pertaining to this Agreement and records of accounts between City and Consultant must be
kept on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles and must be made available to
City and its auditors for up to three years following City's final acceptance of the services
under this Agreement (this requirement is increased to five years if construction of this
project is federally funded). City, its authorized representative, or any federal agency,
reserves the right to audit Consultant's records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of
all cost and pricing data, including data used to negotiate this Agreement and any
amendments. City reserves the right to decrease the total amount of Agreement price or
payments made under this Agreement or request reimbursement from Consultant following
final Agreement payment on this Agreement if, upon audit of Consultant’s records, the audit
discloses Consultant has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing data.
Consultant will include a similar provision in all of its Agreements with subconsultants who
provide services under the Agreement to ensure that City, its authorized representative, or
the appropriate federal agency, has access to the subconsultants’ records to verify the
Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 3

Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



accuracy of all cost and pricing data. City reserves the right to decrease Agreement price or
payments made on this Agreement or request reimbursement from Consultant following
final payment on this Agreement if the above provision is not included in subconsultant
agreements, and one or more subconsultants refuse to allow City to audit their records to
verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data. If, following an audit of
this Agreement, the audit discloses Consultant has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate
cost and pricing data, and the cost discrepancies exceed 1% of the total Agreement billings,
Consultant will be liable for reimbursement of the reasonable, actual cost of the audit.

5.3 Alteration in Character of Work. Whenever an alteration in the character of work results
in a substantial change in this Agreement, thereby materially increasing or decreasing the
scope of services, cost of performance, or Project schedule, the work will be performed as
directed by City. However, before any modified work is started, a written amendment must
be approved and executed by City and Consultant. Such amendment must not be effective
until approved by City. Additions to, modifications, or deletions from this Agreement as
provided herein may be made, and the compensation to be paid to Consultant may
accordingly be adjusted by mutual agreement of the Parties. It is distinctly understood and
agreed that no claim for extra services or materials furnished by Consultant will be allowed
by City except as provided herein, nor must Consultant do any work or furnish any materials
not covered by this Agreement unless such work is first authorized in writing. Any such work
or materials furnished by Consultant without prior written authorization will be at
Consultant’s own risk, cost, and expense, and Consultant hereby agrees that without written
authorization Consultant will make no claim for compensation for such work or materials
furnished.

5.4 Termination. City and Consultant hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants
contained herein, except that City reserves the right, at its discretion and without cause, to
terminate or abandon any service provided for in this Agreement, or abandon any portion of
the Project for which services have been performed by Consultant. In the event City abandons
or suspends the services, or any part of the services as provided in this Agreement, City will
notify Consultant in writing and immediately after receiving such notice, Consultant must
discontinue advancing the work specified under this Agreement. Upon such termination,
abandonment, or suspension, Consultant must deliver to City all drawings, plans,
specifications, special provisions, estimates and other work entirely or partially completed,
together with all unused materials supplied by City. Consultant must appraise the work
Consultant has completed and submit Consultant’'s appraisal to City for evaluation. City may
inspect Consultant's work to appraise the work completed. Consultant will receive
compensation in full for services performed to the date of such termination. The fee will be
paid in accordance with Section Il of this Agreement, and as mutually agreed upon by
Consultant and City. If there is no mutual agreement on payment, the final determination will
be made in accordance with the "Disputes"” provision in this Agreement. However, in no event
may the fee exceed the fee set forth in Section Ill of this Agreement nor as amended in
accordance with Section "Alteration in Character of Work." City will make the final payment
within 60 days after Consultant has delivered the last of the partially completed items and
the Parties agree on the final fee. If City is found to have improperly terminated the
Agreement for cause or default, the termination will be converted to a termination for
convenience in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 4
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



5.5 Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Consultant ("Indemnitor") must
indemnify, save and hold harmless City and its officers, officials, agents and employees
("Indemnitee") from any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses or expenses
(including court costs, attorneys' fees and costs of claim processing, investigation and
litigation) ("Claims") caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the wrongful,
negligent or willful acts, or errors or omissions of Consultant or any of its owners, officers,
directors, agents, employees, or subconsultants in connection with this Agreement. This
indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under workers'
compensation law or on account of the failure of Consultant to conform to any federal, state
or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. Consultant must indemnify
Indemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those arising solely from
Indemnitee's own negligent or willful acts or omissions. Consultant is responsible for primary
loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification applies. In
consideration of the award of this Agreement, Consultant agrees to waive all rights of
subrogation against Indemnitee for losses arising from or related to this Agreement. The
obligations of Consultant under this provision survive the termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

5.6 Insurance Requirements. Consultant must procure insurance under the terms and
conditions and for the amounts of coverage set forth in Exhibit “C” against claims that may
arise from or relate to performance of the work under this Agreement by Consultant and its
agents, representatives, employees, and subconsultants. Consultant and any subconsultant
must maintain this insurance until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any
warranty periods under this Agreement. These insurance requirements are minimum
requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in
this Agreement. City in no way warrants that the minimum limits stated in Exhibit “C” are
sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the
work under this Agreement by Consultant, Consultant’s agents, representatives, employees,
or subconsultants. Consultant is free to purchase such additional insurance as may be
determined necessary.

5.7 Cooperation and Further Documentation. Consultant agrees to provide City such other
duly executed documents as may be reasonably requested by City to implement the intent
of this Agreement.

5.8 Successors and Assigns. City and Consultant each bind itself, its partners, successors,
assigns, and legal representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners,
successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants
of this Agreement. Neither City nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in
this Agreement without the written consent of the other party. In no event may any
contractual relation be created between any third party and City.

5.9 Disputes. In any dispute arising out of an interpretation of this Agreement or the duties
required not disposed of by agreement between Consultant and City, the final determination
at the administrative level will be made by City Engineer.

5.10 Completeness and Accuracy of Consultant’'s Work. Consultant must be responsible for
the completeness and accuracy of Consultant's services, data, and other work prepared or
Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 5

Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23




compiled under Consultant’'s obligation under this Agreement and must correct, at
Consultant’s expense, all willful or negligent errors, omissions, or acts that may be discovered.
Correction of errors disclosed and determined to exist during any construction of the project on
architectural or engineering drawings and specifications must be accomplished by Consultant.
The cost of the design necessary to correct those errors attributable to Consultant and any
damage incurred by City as a result of additional construction costs caused by such engineering
or architectural errors will be chargeable to Consultant and will not be considered a cost of the
Work. The fact that City has accepted or approved Consultant’'s work will in no way relieve
Consultant of any of Consultant’s responsibilities.

5.11 Reporting. Written monthly reports, along with updated work schedules, will be made by
Consultant in the format prescribed by City. These reports will be delivered to City per schedule.
When requested by City, Consultant will attend Council meetings and provide finished documents
including correspondence for Council action, supporting charts, graphs, drawings and colored
slides of same.

5.12 Withholding Payment. City reserves the right to withhold funds from Consultant’s
payments up to the amount equal to the claims City may have against Consultant until such
time that a settlement on those claims has been reached.

5.13 City's Right of Cancellation. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to
cancellation by City under the provisions of Section 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.).

5.14 Independent Consultant. For this Agreement Consultant constitutes an independent
contractor. Any provisions in this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct
Consultant as to the details of accomplishing the work or to exercise a measure of control
over the work means that Consultant must follow the wishes of City as to the results of the
work only. These results must comply with all applicable laws and ordinances.

5.15 Project Staffing. Prior to the start of any work under this Agreement, Consultant must
submit to City detailed resumes of key personnel that will be involved in performing services
prescribed in the Agreement. City hereby acknowledges its acceptance of such personnel to
perform services under this Agreement. At any time hereafter that Consultant desires to
change key personnel while performing under the Agreement, Consultant must submit the
qualifications of the new personnel to City for prior approval. Key personnel include, but are
not limited to, principals-in-charge, project manager, and project Consultant. Consultant will
maintain an adequate and competent staff of qualified persons, as may be determined by
City, throughout the performance of this Agreement to ensure acceptable and timely
completion of the Scope of Services. If City objects, with reasonable cause, to any of
Consultant’s staff, Consultant must take prompt corrective action acceptable to City and, if
required, remove such personnel from the Project and replace with new personnel agreed to
by City.

5.16 Consultants or Subconsultants. Prior to beginning the work, Consultant must furnish City
for approval the names of consultants or subconsultants to be used under this Agreement.
Any subsequent changes are subject to City's written prior approval.

5.17 Force Majeure. If either party is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 6
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



required under this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other cause beyond the control
and without fault of the Party (financial inability excepted), performance of that act may be
excused, but only for the period of the delay, if the Party provides written notice to the other
Party within ten days of such act. The time for performance of the act may be extended for a
period equivalent to the period of delay from the date written notice is received by the other
Party.

5.18 Compliance with Federal Laws. Consultant understands and acknowledges the
applicability of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act
of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989 to it. Consultant agrees to comply with these
laws in performing this Agreement and to permit City to verify such compliance.

5.19 No Israel Boycott. By entering into this Agreement, Consultant certifies that Consultant
is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Agreement, not to engage in a
boycott of Israel as defined by state statute.

5.20 Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. 8 41-4401 prohibits City from awarding an Agreement
to any consultant who fails, or whose subconsultants fail, to comply with A.R.S. 8 23-214(A).
Therefore, Consultant agrees Consultant and each subconsultant it uses warrants their
compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees
and their compliance with § 23-214, subsection A. A breach of this warranty will be deemed a
material breach of the Agreement and may be subject to penalties up to and including
termination of the Agreement. City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any
Consultant’s or subconsultant's employee who provides services under this Agreement to
ensure that Consultant and subconsultants comply with the warranty under this provision.

5.21 Lawful Presence Requirement. A.R.S. 88 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit City from awarding an
Agreement to any natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present
in the United States. To establish lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying
identification and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming that the identification provided is
genuine. This requirement will be imposed at the time of Agreement award. This requirement
does not apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited
liability companies.

5.22 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Consultant warrants that no person has been
employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no
member of the Chandler City Council, or any City employee has any interest, financially, or
otherwise, in Consultant's firm. For breach or violation of this warrant, City may annul this
Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or
consideration, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

5.23 Non-Waiver Provision. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of this
Agreement or to require performance of the other Party of any of the provisions hereof must
not be construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor must it affect the validity of this
Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of either Party to thereafter enforce each and
every provision.

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 7
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



5.24 Disclosure of Information Adverse to City's Interests. To evaluate and avoid potential
conflicts of interest, Consultant must provide written notice to City, as set forth in this Section,
of any work or services performed by Consultant for third parties that may involve or be
associated with any real property or personal property owned or leased by City. Such notice
must be given 7 business days prior to commencement of the services by Consultant for a
third party, or 7 business days prior to an adverse action as defined below. Written notice
and disclosure must be sent in accordance with Section 6.7 above. An adverse action under
this Agreement includes, but is not limited to: (a) using data as defined in the Agreement
acquired in connection with this Agreement to assist a third party in pursuing administrative
or judicial action against City; or (b) testifying or providing evidence on behalf of any person
in connection with an administrative or judicial action against City; or (c) using data to produce
income for Consultant or its employees independently of performing the services under this
Agreement, without the prior written consent of City. Consultant represents that except for
those persons, entities, and projects identified to City, the services performed by Consultant
under this Agreement are not expected to create an interest with any person, entity, or third
party project that is or may be adverse to City's interests. Consultant’s failure to provide a
written notice and disclosure of the information as set forth in this Section constitute a
material breach of this Agreement.

5.25 Data Confidentiality and Data Security. As used in the Agreement, "data" means all
information, whether written or verbal, including plans, photographs, studies, investigations,
audits, analyses, samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting minutes, data field
notes, work product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar documents or
information prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to Consultant or its subconsultants in
the performance of this Agreement. The Parties agree that all data, regardless of form,
including originals, images, and reproductions, prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to
Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with Consultant’'s or its subconsultant’s
performance of this Agreement is confidential and proprietary information belonging to City.
Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, Consultant or its subconsultants must not
divulge data to any third party without City's prior written consent. Consultant or its
subconsultants must not use the data for any purposes except to perform the services
required under this Agreement. These prohibitions do not apply to the following data
provided to Consultant or its subconsultants have first given the required notice to City: (a)
data which was known to Consultant or its subconsultants prior to its performance under this
Consultant or its subconsultants by a third party, who to the best of Consultant's or its
subconsultants’ knowledge and belief, had the legal right to make such disclosure and
Consultant or its subconsultants are not otherwise required to hold such data in confidence;
or (c) data which is required to be disclosed by virtue of law, regulation, or court order, to
which Consultant or its subconsultants are subject. In the event Consultant or its
subconsultants are required or requested to disclose data to a third party, or any other
information to which Consultant or its subconsultants became privy as a result of any other
Agreement with City, Consultant must first notify City as set forth in this Section of the request
or demand for the data. Consultant or its subconsultants must give City sufficient facts so
that City can be given an opportunity to first give its consent or take such action that City may
deem appropriate to protect such data or other information from disclosure. All data must
continue to be subject to the confidentiality agreements of this Agreement. Consultant or its
subconsultants assume all liability to maintain the confidentiality of the data in its possession
and agrees to compensate City if any of the provisions of this Section are violated by

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 8
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



Consultant, its employees, agents or subconsultants. Solely for the purposes of seeking
injunctive relief, it is agreed that a breach of this Section must be deemed to cause irreparable
harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. Consultant agrees that the requirements of this
Section must be incorporated into all subagreements entered into by Consultant. A violation
of this Section may result in immediate termination of this Agreement without notice.

5.26 Personal ldentifying Information-Data Security. Personal identifying information,
financial account information, or restricted City information, whether electronic format or
hard copy, must be secured and protected at all times by Consultant or its subconsultants. At
a minimum, Consultant or its subconsultants must encrypt or password-protect electronic
files. This includes data saved to laptop computers, computerized devices, or removable
storage devices. When personal identifying information, financial account information, or
restricted City information, regardless of its format, is no longer necessary, the information
must be redacted or destroyed through appropriate and secure methods that ensure the
information cannot be viewed, accessed, or reconstructed. In the event that data collected or
obtained by Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with this Agreement is believed
to have been compromised, Consultant or its subconsultants must immediately notify City
contact. Consultant agrees to reimburse City for any costs incurred by City to investigate
potential breaches of this data and, where applicable, the cost of notifying individuals who
may be impacted by the breach. Consultant agrees that the requirements of this Section must
be incorporated into all subcontracts entered into by Consultant. It is further agreed that a
violation of this Section must be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive
relief in court. A violation of this Section may result in immediate termination of this
Agreement without notice. The obligations of Consultant or its subconsultants under this
Section must survive the termination of this Agreement.

5.27 Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made under and must be construed in
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without regard to the
conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof. Any action to enforce any provision of this
Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be brought in the courts
located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each Party hereby expressly and
irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court.

5.28 Survival. All warranties, representations, and indemnifications by Consultant must
survive the completion or termination of this Agreement.

5.29 Modification. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, no supplement,
modification, or amendment of any term of this Agreement will be deemed binding or
effective unless in writing and signed by the Parties.

5.30 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application to any person or
circumstance may be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this
Agreement and the application will not be affected and will be enforceable to the fullest
extent permitted by law.

5.31 Integration. This Agreement contains the full agreement of the Parties. Any prior or
contemporaneous written or oral agreement between the Parties regarding the subject
matter is merged and superseded.

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 9

Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



5.32 Time is of the Essence. Time of each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this
Agreement is hereby expressly made of the essence.

5.33 Date of Performance. If the date of performance of any obligation or the last day of any
time period provided for should fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday for City, the obligation
will be due and owing, and the time period will expire, on the first day after which is not a
Saturday, Sunday or legal City holiday. Except as may otherwise be set forth in this
Agreement, any performance provided for herein will be timely made if completed no later
than 5:00 p.m. (Chandler time) on the day of performance.

5.34 Third Party Beneficiary. Nothing under this Agreement will be construed to give any
rights or benefits in the Agreement to anyone other than City and Consultant, and all duties
and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive
benefit of City and Consultant and not for the benefit of any other party.

5.35 Conflict in Language. All work performed must conform to all applicable City of Chandler
codes, ordinances, and requirements as outlined in this Agreement. If there is a conflict in
interpretation between provisions in this Agreement and those in Exhibit "A", the provisions
in this Agreement prevail.

5.36 Document/Information Release. Documents and materials released to Consultant,
which are identified by City as sensitive and confidential, are City's property. The
document/material must be issued by and returned to City upon completion of the services
under this Agreement. Consultant secondary distribution, disclosure, copying, or duplication
in any manner is prohibited without City’'s prior written approval. The document/material
must be kept secure at all times. This directive applies to all City documents, whether in
photographic, printed, or electronic data format.

5.37 Exhibits. The following exhibits are made a part of this Agreement and are incorporated
by reference:

Exhibit A - Scope of Services / Schedule

Exhibit B - Compensation and Fees

Exhibit C - Insurance Requirements

Exhibit D - Special Conditions

Exhibit E - Subconsultant Documents (if applicable)
Exhibit F - Federal Requirements (if applicable)

5.38 Special Conditions. As part of the services Consultant provides under this Agreement,
Consultant agrees to comply with and fully perform the special terms and conditions set forth
in Exhibit “D”, which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement.

5.39 Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Laws. Consultant must comply with all
applicable City, state, and federal non-discrimination and anti-harassment laws, rules, and
regulations.

5.40 Licenses and Permits. Beginning with the Effective Date and for the full term of this

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 10
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



Agreement, Consultant must maintain all applicable City, state, and federal licenses and
permits required to fully perform Consultant's services under this Agreement.

5.41 Warranties. Consultant must furnish a one-year warranty on all work and services
performed under this Agreement. Consultant must furnish, or cause to be furnished, a two-
year warranty on all fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant,
subconsultants or suppliers under this Agreement. Any defects in design, workmanship, or
materials that do not comply with this Agreement must be corrected by Consultant (including,
but not limited to, all parts and labor) at Consultant’s sole cost and expense. All written
warranties and redlines for as-built conditions must be delivered to City on or before City's
final acceptance of Consultant’s services under this Agreement.

5.42 Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (S.A.V.E. - Strategic Alliance for Volume
Expenditures). In addition to City of Chandler and with the approval of Consultant, this
Agreement may be extended for use by other municipalities, school districts, and government
agencies of the State. Any such usage by other entities must be in accordance with the
ordinance, charter, or procurement rules and regulations of the respective political entity.

5.43 Budget Approval into Next Fiscal Year. This Agreement will commence on the Effective
Date and continue in full force and effect until it is terminated or expires in accordance with
the provisions of this Agreement. The Parties recognize that the continuation of this
Agreement after the close of the City's fiscal year, which ends on June 30 of each year, is
subject to the City Council's approval of a budget that includes an appropriation for this item
as an expenditure. The City does not represent that this budget item will be actually adopted.
This determination is solely made by the City Council.

5.44 Forced Labor of Ethnic Uyghurs Prohibited. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor
certifies and agrees Contractor does not currently use and will not use for the term of this
Agreement: (i) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (ii) any
goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of
China; or (iii) any contractors, subcontractors or suppliers that use the forced labor or any
goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of
China.

5.45 License to City for Reasonable Use. With this Agreement, Consultant and its
subconsultants hereby grant a license to City, its agents, employees, and representatives for
an indefinite period of time to reasonably use, make copies, and distribute as appropriate
the Documents, works or deliverables developed or created as a result of the Project and this
Agreement. This license also includes the making of derivative works.

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 11
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



This Agreement will be in full force and effect only when it has been approved and executed
by the duly authorized City officials.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

“CITY” CITY OF CHANDLER “CONSULTANT”
Consultant Engineering, Inc.

ﬁp«k ErAoaet— May 24, 2023
L33

MAYOR Signature Date
RECOMMENDED BY: Brian Lizzet, PE, CCM
/anf [(}t 4 Project Manager/Principal
Kimberly Moon, P.E. Title
CIP City Engineer blizzet@cei-az.com
APPROVED AS TO FORM: Signer Email Address
City Attorney Wb
ATTEST:
City Clerk Seal
Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page 12

Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



EXHIBIT “A"”
SCOPE OF SERVICES/SCHEDULE

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page A-1
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 12/8/22



® Arizona

California

Nevada

HELPING BUILD THE SOUTHWEST SINCE 1996

New Mexico

Texas
May 19, 2023 Utah
Mr. Scott Riter Email:  Scott.Riter@chandleraz.gov
Construction Project Manager
City of Chandler

Capital Projects Division
PO Box 4008, Mail Stop 407
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008

Re: Fee Schedule
Boston Street Improvements
City of Chandler Project No.: ST2203.451
CEl Project No. 0121887.04

Dear Mr. Riter:

Consultant Engineering, Inc. (CEI) would like to thank the City of Chandler for selecting our firm for the Boston Street Improvements
project.

Attached, please find our fee proposal, the Construction Management Scope of Services (Exhibit “A”) and Fee Schedules (Exhibit “B”) as
well as sub consultants’ fee schedules (Exhibits “E”) for your consideration. Our total fee for this project is $153,395. The proposal is
based on a total construction duration of 140 calendar days as well as pre-construction assistance and typical close-out services.

As requested, the proposal effort hours for the key staff members during construction includes Brian Lizzet (Project Manager) with an 4%-
time commitment; John Helton (Project Supervisor) with a 10%-time commitment and our Senior Inspector, Shelly Vidmar with a 100% -
time commitment. Please note, this includes 50% inspection time and 50% administration time. Shelly Vidmar will be handling the majority
of the workload for this project, both administratively and in the field. Both John and | will support her, however given the several unknowns
regarding this project, we recommend Shelly as a full-time participant for this project. Furthermore, Shelly has recent experience working
directly with Sunland Asphalt. We have also included allotted time for Saturdays. Our sub-consultant’s’ proposal includes Quality Testing
for QA Materials Testing services.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please feel free to contact me at 480-689-6472 or blizzet@cei-az.com.

CEl looks forward to working with you and the City of Chandler on this project.
Sincerely,

CONSULTANT ENGINEERING, INC.

ﬁ@ &Ofs}f—-

Brian Lizzet, PE, CCM
Project Manager/Principal

Attachment: Exhibit A — Scope of Services
Exhibit B — Fee Schedule
Exhibit E — Quality Testing, LLC (QT) Fee Schedule
cc: Contract Administration (CEI # 0121887.04)

. (; ) 602.866.5090 ' 10625 North 25" Avenue - Suite 200 « Phoenix, AZ 85029 ’ cei-az.com




®
@/ﬂ PING BUILD THE SOUTHWEST SINCE 1996

EXHIBIT “A”

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
SCOPE OF SERVICES

BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS

CITY OF CHANDLER PROJECT NO. ST2203.451

PROJECT TASKS

A.

A.

m

. J_:) 602.866.5090

1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE

Task 1.1 Preconstruction Assistance
i. Consultant must attend the pre-construction meeting.

2. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

Task 2.1 Weekly Construction Meetings

i. Consultant must conduct weekly construction meetings. Each meeting
includes agenda and minutes; Request for Information (RFl); Shop Drawing;
Request for Information (RFI); Field Directive (FD); Material Certification; and
Allowance Logs. Consultant assumes 18 weekly meetings will be held.

Task 2.2 CPM Schedule

i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor’s initial CPM schedule and
provide recommendations for acceptance.

ii. Consultant must review Contractor's monthly CPM schedule updates
submitted with each payment application, identify CPM tasks behind schedule
that may affect critical path items, project substantial and final completion
dates and initiate correspondence to City regarding those tasks. Consultant
assumes 4 reviews of updated CPM schedule.

Task 2.3 Requests for Information (RFI's)

i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor Requests for
Information (RFI's); and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all RFI's.
Consultant assumes 15 RFI responses.

. Task 2.4 Shop Drawing Submittals

i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor shop drawing
submittals; and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all shop drawing
submittals. Consultant assumes a maximum of 15 reviews.

Task 2.5 Requests for Proposal (RFP)

i. Consultant must pre[)are Requests for Proposal (RFP) documents detailing
requested additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor RFP
responses (cost derivations) with approval recommendations; and prepare
and maintain a submittal log list of all RFP’s. Consultant assumes 5 RFPs.

Task 2.6 Field Directives (FD’s)

i. Consultant must prepare Field Directive (FD) documents detailing requested
additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor FD responses with
aloproval recommendations; and prepare and maintain a submittal log list of
all FD’s. Consultant assumes 7 FD's.

Arizona

California

Nevada

New Mexico

Texas
Utah

o ’ 10625 North 25t Avenue - Suite 200 - Phoenix, AZ 85029 ’ cei-az.com




3.

4,

Arizona

California

HELPING BUILD THE SOUTHWEST SINCE 1996

Nevada

New Mexico

G. Task 2.7 Contractor Payment Applications

i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor monthly payment
applications and make recommendation for payment; maintain a weekly
record of constructed pay quantities and compile monthly totals; and
coordinate payment application with the City quantity report and the
inspectors’ daily logs. Consultant assumes 5 payment applications, with 2
reviews each.

H. Task 2.8 Public Outreach

i. Consultant must provide public outreach services, whether by Consultant or
subconsultant. Tasks may include: response to inquiries, complaints and public
interactions with property owners as a liaison between property owners and the
City.

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION
A. Task 3.1 Inspection Services

i. Consultant must provide weekly construction inspection to verify materials
and installations conform to construction documents; prepare daily inspection
reports documenting Contractor construction activities and progress during
field inspection visits; and perform intermittent erosion control inspections.
Consultant assumes 1 inspector half time, 20 hours per week for
approximately 4.5 months.

B. Task 3.2 Project Closeout

i. Consultant must compile non-conformance list prior to Substantial
Completion; schedule and conduct Substantial Completion inspection;
prepare Substantial Completion punch list generated from Substantial
Completion inspection; track items on punch list and note completed items;
and complete and distribute Substantial Completion certificates.

ii. Consultant must schedule and conduct Final Completion inspection; and
complete and distribute Final Completion certificates.

ii. Consultant must provide all documents in an electronic version that matches
the City’s filing system, so it can be imported into City’s files.

iv. Consultant must participate in a meeting with City staff and Designer to review
request for information log to discuss lessons learned during the course of
construction.

UTILITY COORDINATION

i. Consultant will coordinate with various utiIitg agencies throughout
construction. There are existing utilities that are to be adjusted by the facility
owner. Project Supervisor will coordinate this effort with respective utility
owner.

Texas
Utah

o ' 10625 North 25t Avenue - Suite 200 - Phoenix, AZ 85029 ’ cei-az.com




® Arizona
California

HELPING BUILD THE SOUTHWEST SINCE 1996 Nevada

New Mexico

Texas
Utah

5. MATERIALS TESTING
A. Task 5.1 Quality Control (QC) Test Program

i. Consultant must review and verify Contractor’s Quality Control material test
type and frequencies are consistent with City and MAG; review and evaluate
Contractor’'s QC test schedule and provide recommendations on acceptance;
and review and evaluate all Contractor sampling, test, and inspection results
for conformance with construction documents.

B. Task 5.2 Quality Assurance (QA) Test Program

i. Consultant must prepare and maintain a materials Quality Assurance plan per
City and MAG.

ii. Consultant must coordinate with Contractor’s testing representative to obtain
required QA tests and sample; complete sampling and compaction testing of
subgrade (including lime-stabilized subgrade base), aggregate base and
asphalt concrete materials in new asphalt concrete pavement areas; complete
sampling and compaction testing of subgrade, aggregate base (where
required) and concrete for new curbs, gutters, sidewalks and concrete
Bavement and structures; and complete sampling and compaction testing of

ackfill for new irrigation, sewer, water, storm drain pipe, and dry utilities.

6. RECORD DRAWINGS

A. Task 6.1 Record Drawings
i. Review and monitor Contractor’'s weekly updates on redline drawing set.

ASSUMPTION, CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS

1. Application fees for City reviews and permits will be paid by CITY.

2. The Owner’s Allowance will only be utilized with prior written approval from the City
representative.

3. The Direct Expense Allowance will be used for normal reimbursable expenses on the project.

Items must be billed at cost and backup must be provided with pay applications.

r .866. Q) 10625 North 25t Avenue - Suite 200 - Phoenix, AZ 85029 @) cei-az.com




EXHIBIT “B"”
COMPENSATION AND FEES

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page B-1
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 12/8/22



®
@/ﬂ PING BUILD THE SOUTHWEST SINCE 1996

EXHIBIT "B"

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

SCOPE OF SERVICES
FEE SCHEDULE

Arizona

California

Nevada

New Mexico

Texas
Utah

. J_:) 602.866.5090

o ’ 10625 North 25t Avenue - Suite 200 - Phoenix, AZ 85029

Task Description Cost
1 |PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE
1.1 |Pre-Construction Assistance 910.00
SUBTOTAL TASK 1: 910.00
2 |[CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
2.1 |Weekly Construction Meetings 11,475.00
2.2 [CPM Schedule 1,270.00
2.3 |Requests for Information (RFI) 8,290.00
2.4 |Shop Drawing Submittals 8,290.00
2.5 |Requests for Proposal (RFP) 3,490.00
2.6 |Field Directive (FD) 4,690.00
2.7 |Contractor Payment Applications 1,870.00
2.8 [Public Outreach 2,290.00
SUBTOTAL TASK 2: 41,665.00
3 [CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION
3.1 [Inspection Services 55,200.00
3.3 |Project Closeout 7,990.00
SUBTOTAL TASK 3: 63,190.00

@ cei-az.com




®
Page 2
HELPING BUILD THE SOUTHWEST SINCE 1996

4 |UTILITY COORDINATION

4.1 |Utility Coordination $ 4,800.00
SUBTOTAL TASK 4:( $ 4,800.00
5 |MATERIALS TESTING
5.1 |QC Test Program $ 3,490.00
5.2 |QATest Program $ 3,490.00
SUBTOTAL TASK 5:( $ 6,980.00
6 |RECORD DRAWINGS
6.1 |Record Drawings $ 7,990.00
SUBTOTAL TASK 6:( $ 7,990.00
SUBCONSULTANTS
Quality Testing, LLC $ 17,860.00
$ -
SUBTOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS:| $ 17,860.00
ALLOWANCES
Direct Expense Allowance
Owner's Allowance $ 10,000.00

SUBTOTAL ALLOWANCES:| $ 10,000.00

PROJECT TOTAL:| $ 153,395.00

. CONSULTANT ENGINEERING, INC.



Page 3
HELPING BUILD THE SOUTHWEST SINCE 1996
Senior
Project Project Senior Inspector-
Manager |Supervisor | Inspector oT < PROJECT ROLE
Brian John Shelly Shelly
Lizzet Helton Vidmar Vidmar < NAME OF PERSON
$ 195.00{$ 14000 $ 120.00|$ 180.00 $ - | <HOURLY RATES
TOTAL HOURS
TASK DESCRIPTION PER TASK
Task 1 Pre-construction Assistance 2 2 2 0 0 0 6
1.1|Attend the Pre-construction Meeting 2 2 2 6
Task 2 Construction Management 23 47 255 0 0 0 325
2.1|Weekly Construction Meetings 9 18 60 87
2.2 CPM Schedule 2 2 5 9
2.3 Request for Information's (RFI's) 2 5 60 67
2.4 Shop Drawing Submittals 2 5 60 67
2.5 Request for Proposal (RFP) 2 5 20 27
2.6 Field Directives (FD's) 2 5 30 37
2.7 Contractor Payment Applications 2 2 10 14
2.8 Public Outreach 2 5 10 17
Task 3 Construction Inspection 2 20 440 40 0 0 502
3.1 |Inspection Services 400 40 440
3.2|Project Closeout 2 20 40 62
Task 4 Utility Coordination 0 0 40 0 0 0 40
4.1|utility Coordination 40 0 |
Task 5 Material Testing 4 10 40 0 0 0 54
5.1 |Qua|ity Control (QC) Test Program 2 5 20 27
5.2 Quality Assurance (QA) Test Program 2 5 20 27
Task 6 Record Drawings 2 20 40 0 0 0 62
6.1]|Record Drawings 2 20 40 62 |
Total Hours: 33 99 817 40 0 0 989

CONSULTANT ENGINEERING, INC.




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

21

EXHIBIT “C”
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

General.

At the same time as execution of this Agreement, Consultant must furnish City a certificate
of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form. The ACORD form must be
issued by an insurance company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona
possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or better and legally authorized to do
business in the State of Arizona with policies and forms satisfactory to City. Provided,
however, the A.M. Best rating requirement will not be deemed to apply to required Workers'
Compensation coverage.

Consultant and any of its subconsultants must procure and maintain, until all of their
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement are
satisfied, the insurances set forth below.

The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this Agreement
and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement.

City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Agreement are
sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of
the Agreement services under this Agreement by Consultant, its agents, representatives,
employees, subconsultants, and Consultant is free to purchase any additional insurance as
may be determined necessary.

Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this
Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve Consultant from,
nor will it be considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all
times during the performance of this Agreement.

Use of subconsultants: If any work is subcontracted in any way, Consultant must execute a
written Agreement with subconsultant containing the same Indemnification Clause and
Insurance Requirements as City requires of Consultant in this Agreement. Consultant is
responsible for executing the Agreement with the subconsultant and obtaining Certificates
of Insurance and verifying the insurance requirements.

Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance. Consultant must provide coverage with limits of
liability not less than those stated below.

Professional Liability. If the Agreement is the subject of any professional services or work
performed by Consultant, or if Consultant engages in any professional services or work
adjunct or residual to performing the work under this Agreement, Consultant must maintain
Professional Liability insurance covering errors and omissions arising out of the work or
services performed by Consultant, or anyone employed by Consultant, or anyone whose
acts, mistakes, errors and omissions Consultant is legally liable, with a liability limit of
$1,000,000 each claim and $2,000,000 all claims. In the event the Professional Liability
insurance policy is written on a “claims made” basis, coverage must extend for 3 years past

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page C-1
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



2.2

23

24

3.1

completion and acceptance of the work or services, and Consultant, or its selected Design
Professional will submit Certificates of Insurance as evidence the required coverage is in
effect. The Design Professional must annually submit Certificates of Insurance citing that the
applicable coverage is in force and contains the required provisions for a 3 year period.

Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form. Consultant must maintain “occurrence” form
Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each
occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate. Said insurance must also include coverage for products
and completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury.
If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess
insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying
insurance.

Automobile Liability-Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles

Vehicle Liability: Consultant must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a
limit of $1,000,000 each accident on Consultant owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles
assigned to or used in the performance of Consultant's work or services under this
Agreement. If any Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this
paragraph, the Excess or Umbrella insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in
coverage scope than underlying insurance.

Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance: Consultant must maintain Workers
Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having
jurisdiction of Consultant employees engaged in the performance of work or services under
this Agreement and must also maintain Employers’ Liability insurance of not less than
$1,000,000 for each accident and $1,000,000 disease for each employee.

Additional Policy Provisions Required.

Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles. Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be
declared and approved by City. If not approved, City may require that the insurer reduce or
eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to City, its officers, officials,
agents, employees, and volunteers.

3.1.1. Consultant’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage.

3.1.2. Consultant's insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to City, its
officers, officials, agents, and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained
by City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees will be in excess of the coverage
provided by Consultant and must not contribute to it.

3.1.3. Consultant's insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

3.1.4. Coverage provided by Consultant must not be limited to the liability assumed under
the indemnification provisions of this Agreement.

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page C-2
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



3.1.5.

3.1.7.

The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation
against City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from Work
performed by Consultant for City. (Does not apply to Professional Liability coverage.)

Consultant, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial
General Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a minimum period of 3
years following completion and acceptance of the Work. Consultant must submit a
Certificate of Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during this
3-year period containing all the Agreement insurance requirements, including
naming City of Chandler, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and
employees as Additional Insured as required.

If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, City will
reasonably rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage, but this
acceptance and reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance requirements
or obligations of this Agreement.

3.2. Insurance Cancellation During Term of Agreement.

3.2.1.

3.2.2.

If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Agreement, Consultant
must forward renewal or replacement Certificates to City within 10 days after the
renewal date containing all the required insurance provisions.

Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement must
provide the required coverage and must not be suspended, voided or canceled
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to City, except when
cancellation is for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior notice may be
given. Such notice must be sent directly to Chandler Law-Risk Management
Department, Post Office Box 4008, Mailstop 628, Chandler, Arizona 85225. If any
insurance company refuses to provide the required notice, Consultant or its
insurance broker must notify City of any cancellation, suspension, non-renewal of any
insurance within seven (7) days of receipt of insurers’ notification to that effect.

3.3 City as Additional Insured. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

3.3.1.

The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or
be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: City, its officers, officials, agents,
and employees are additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of activities
performed by, or on behalf of, Consultant; Products and Completed operations of
Consultant; and automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by Consultant.

3.3.2. City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the
full limits of liability purchased by Consultant even if those limits of liability are in
excess of those required by this Agreement.

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page C-3

Project No.: ST2203.451

Rev. 5/3/23



EXHIBIT “D"
SPECIAL CONDITIONS

N/A

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS Page F-1
Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23



EXHIBIT “E"
SUBCONSULTANT DOCUMENTS WITH CONSULTANT

Any subconsultant assumptions, clarifications, exclusions, terms & conditions,
signature blocks, etc. included are strictly between the Consultant and their

subconsultants, and do not apply to the Agreement between the Consultant and
the City.

Project Name: BOSTON STREET IMPROVEMENTS

Project No.: ST2203.451
Rev. 5/3/23

E-1



/

NOZIYY:

Q

PROJECT NAME :

¥

EXHIBIT E
PROPOSAL SUMMARY

Boston Street Improvements

SCOPE OF SERVICES:

Quality Control Testing

LABOR FEES
LABOR REG REGULAR ASS'D OVERTIME | OVERTIME EXTENDED
CLASSIFICATION TYPE | HOURS RATE % OT HOURS RATE™" LABOR COST
Project Manager Direct 7 $ 128.00 $ 128.00 | $ 896.00
Administrative Assistant Direct 7 $ 50.00 $ 50.00(% 350.00
Field Technician Direct 136 $ 75.00 $ 11250 $ 10,200.00
$ -
Laboratory Technician Indirect 65 $ -
(1) Regular Rate X Overtime Premium of 1.5 SUBTOTAL DIRECT LABOR| $ 11,446.00
VEHICLE AND PER-DIEM CHARGES
NO. UNIT EXTENDED VEHICLE
DESCRIPTION UNITS A PRICE AND PER-DIEM
Trip Charge 44 EA $ 4500 % 1,980.00
SUBTOTAL VEHICLE AND PER-DIEM CHARGES | $ 1,980.00
OTHER PROJECT DIRECT CHARGES
NO. UNIT EXTENDED OTHER
DESCRIPTION UNITS A PRICE PROJECT CHARGES
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
SUBTOTAL OTHER PROJECT DIRECT CHARGES | $ -
LAB TESTING FEES
NO. UNIT EXTENDED
DESCRIPTION UNITS LI PRICE LABORATORY FEES
301 - Compressive Strength - Cylinder (1/100 CY) 76 EA $ 16.00|$ 1,216.00
305 - Compressive Strength - Prism (1/100 CY) EA $ 2200|% -
306 - Compressive Strength - Cube (1/100 CY) EA $ 22009 -
410 - Atterberg Limits (1/Material Type) 2 EA $ 8500]|8% 170.00
413 - Proctor - Std. Method (1/Material Type) 2 EA $ 120.00 | $ 240.00
416 - Sieve Analysis (1/Material Type) 2 EA $ 7500189 150.00
504 - AC Furnace Calibration 2 EA $ 699.00 | $ 1,398.00
505 - AC Content w/ Gradation (1/1000 TN) 2 EA $ 200.00 | $ 400.00
510 - Gyratory Bulk Density (1/1000 TN) 2 EA $ 190.00 | $ 380.00
509 - Maximum Specific Gravity (Rice) (1/1000 TN) 2 EA $ 155.00 | $ 310.00
503 - Drilled Cores 4 EA $ 30.00|% 120.00
501 - AC Core Density (1/1000 TN) 2 EA $ 2500]|% 50.00
TOTAL LABORATORY TESTING FEES | $ 4,434.00
TOTAL ESTIMATE OF ALL FEES $ 17,860.00

Jaye Richardson, Sr. Project Manager

Estimator

May 17, 2023

Date

COST PROPOSAL, 5/17/2023



mailto:=@if(A64%3C%3E%22%22,%22DAY%22,%22%22)

EXHIBIT E

N

S SCHEDULED PROJECTED MAN-HOURS

S
PROJECT NAME : Boston Street Improvements CONSULTANT : QT DATE: May 17, 2023

ESTIMATED FTEs IN THE MONTH
PRO PERSO _ ;
B CO OUR 2 ) 0 > ° 0 ou A % SUCLL, OTA
0 oud 0 0 D 0 D OUR O O
Project Manager 0.01] 0.01 | 0.01 | 0.01 7 m-h 0% m-h 7 m-h
Administrative Assistant 0.01] 0.01] 0.01] 0.01 7 m-h 0% m-h 7 m-h
Field Technician 0.20 | 0.20 | 0.20 | 0.20 136 m-h 0% m-h 136 m-h
m-h 0% m-h m-h

Laboratory Technician 0.09 ] 0.09 | 0.10 | 0.10 65 m-h 0% m-h 65 m-h
TOTAL FTEs (DIRECT LABOR ONLY) 0.02 | 0.02 | 0.02 | 0.02 ] 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 [ 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 [ 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 14 m-h 0% m-h 14 m-h
TOTAL FTEs (DIRECT LABOR & VEHICLE) 0.20 | 0.20 | 0.20 | 0.20 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 { 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 136 m-h 0% m-h 136 m-h
TOTAL FTEs (INDIRECT LABOR ONLY) 0.09 [ 0.09 | 0.10 | 0.10 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 [ 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 65 m-h 0% m-h 65 m-h
TOTAL FTEs (SUBCONTRACTED LABOR) 0.00 [ 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 m-h 0% m-h m-h
TOTAL FTEs (ALL LABOR CLASSES) 0.31] 0.31] 0.32 | 0.32 ] 0.00 | 0.00 [ 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 { 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 215 m-h 0% m-h 215 m-h
TOTAL ACTUAL POSITIONS 4 4 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
TOTAL VEHICLES 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

SCHEDULED PROJECT MAN-HOURS, 5/17/2023




EXHIBIT E

N
S SCHEDULED PROJECTED MAN-HOURS
S
PROJECT NAME : Boston Street Improvements CONSULTANT : QT DATE: May 17, 2023
ESTIMATED FTEs IN THE MONTH
PRO PERSO BTO
B CO - - OUR 6 8 9 0 4 6 8 9 40 4 4 4 44 4 46 4 48 > = . A BTO O
0 T 026 0 D 0 D 6 6 6 6 6 6 OUR O O OUR OUR
m-h 0% m-h m-h
m-h 0% m-h m-h
m-h 0% m-h m-h
m-h 0% m-h m-h
m-h 0% m-h m-h
ABO PERIOD O Q
TOTAL FTEs (DIRECT LABOR ONLY) 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00  0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00  0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 m-h 0% m-h m-h
TOTAL FTEs (DIRECT LABOR & VEHICLE) 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 [ 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 m-h 0% m-h m-h
TOTAL FTEs (INDIRECT LABOR ONLY) 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 m-h 0% m-h m-h
TOTAL FTEs (SUBCONTRACTED LABOR) 0.00 | 0.00 { 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 ) 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 [ 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 ] 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 [ 0.00 | 0.00 m-h 0% m-h m-h
TOTAL FTEs (ALL LABOR CLASSES) 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 { 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 { 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 m-h 0% m-h m-h
TOTAL ACTUAL POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL VEHICLES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SCHEDULED PROJECT MAN-HOURS, 5/17/2023



EXHIBIT E

COST ESTIMATE SUMMARY

SUB CONSULTANT: QT

PROJECT NAME : Boston Street Improvements

PROJECT OWNER: City of Chandler

PROJECT NUMBER: ST2203.451

GENERAL INFORMATION / ASSUMPTIONS
BASIS OF ESTIMATE

1 ESTIMATE Amount Based on Defined Scope: This cost proposal is considered an initial Time & Materials cost estimate, subject to
the GENERAL INFORMATION/ASSUMPTIONS as defined herein. For the estimate amount, QT will perform the requested Materials
sampling and testing, both field and lab, that is specifically identified this cost estimate.

Assumptions of Production:

We have assumed a total of up to 34 trips (or 136 hours) for materials testing services on this project. This is proposed as an
assumed on-call time and materials basis. Any work or site visits that are outside those specified in the cost breakdown are beyond the
scope of this project and subject to additional charges based on the referenced hourly or unit rates.

Work Outside of Defined Scope: If sampling and testing work is requested by the client that is not already defined in the proposal,
such work will be accommodated; however, compensation for such services shall be in addition to the Estimate amount. QT
encourages client project management to inform job-level project staff that requests for services outside the originally defined scope will
result in additional costs. Once identified, QT management will send client project management a Supplemental Agreement (SA) form,
defining the scope, cost, and description of any requested additional work. Preferably, the requested additional work will not be
performed until after the SA form is signed and returned by client management. However, because requests are often the result of
unplanned events, and in order to not impact the construction schedule, some work may be performed prior to the SA form being
generated and returned. Regardless, by requesting the additional services, and then allowing them to be performed on the project, the
client is accepting the responsibility to pay for the requested services.

Schedule: The estimated amount was developed prior to bid and without the benefit of a detailed project schedule. In order to properly
plan resource utilization after the bid, the client shall provide QT with a detailed base schedule prior to construction. Using this detailed
base schedule, QT will redistribute the pre-bid designated manpower and testing resources in accordance with the actual planned
sequence and duration of scheduled construction activities. This redistribution of resources will be provided to client management for
comment and to further clarify the scope of planned services. Significant deviation from the base schedule that results in extra field
presence, or extra samples, may be considered extra work.

References that Define Materials Testing Requirements: This cost proposal is based upon the QT's interpretation of sampling and
testing requirements from the supplied plans and specifications. If these interpretations are in error, if they change, or if the client elects
to alter the sampling criteria, QT reserves the right to revise the scope and fee to fit these changes to the assumptions.

2 Periodic Materials Testing Report Summaries: Reports will be provided on a weekly basis, although test results will be conveyed in
real-time as requested by the Client. Weekly Reports will be submitted to the designated client representative by the week following the
timeframe in which the work was performed. Reports shall show the sampling and testing activities performed by QT during the
reporting period. Reports from non-QT entities (i.e. suppliers, other firms, etc.) will be included if provided by the client. QT utilizes a
sophisticated materials testing information system for managing and reporting on project test information. Reports from this system will
be provided in pdf format for use by the client.

3 Invoicing: Invoicing will occur on a 4-week cycle. Each invoice shall include original scope charges that represent an appropriate, and
defined, fraction of the original scope estimate amount. In the event that extra work is requested and provided during the invoicing
period, such services shall be identified separately from the original scope charges on invoices. Additional work shall be calculated
based on the unit prices defined in this cost proposal, or as otherwise superseded in specific Supplemental Agreements.

4 Laboratory Facility: This estimate is based upon all laboratory testing being conducted in QT's AASHTO Accredited testing facility.
The QT facility is a full service production laboratory that services numerous project's simultaneously. Efforts are always made to
prioritize samples in accordance with project needs.

175 South Hamilton Place Build 6 Ste 114 Gilbert AZ 85233 Tel (480)496-2000, Fax (480)496-2001



EXHIBIT E

COST ESTIMATE SUMMARY

SUB CONSULTANT : QT

PROJECT NAME : Boston Street Improvements
PROJECT OWNER: City of Chandler

PROJECT NUMBER: ST2203.451

GENERAL INFORMATION / ASSUMPTIONS

5

LABOR POSITIONS

Materials PM/Supervisor - This person will begin immediately upon notice to proceed and will be involved during the entire contract.
This person will be dedicated to managing the day-to-day field and lab materials testing efforts. Initially, this person will work with the
client QC Manager to develop the Materials Testing Plan for the project. Then, this person will ensure that testing frequencies are being
satisfied, that non-conformance issues are being properly addressed and rectified, that both field and lab test data is being properly
reflected in the QT Materials Information Database, that project-specific Periodic Materials Testing Reports are being prepared,
transmitted and supported in a timely and accurate manner, and that both physical and personnel resources are provided to the job as
scheduled and appropriate. This person will also attend and participate in project meetings when requested and will be the focal point for
communication and coordination of materials testing activities between QT and the Client.

Field Technician(s) - In general, field technician(s) shall be assigned to the project in accordance with the SCHEDULED PROJECT
MAN-HOURS sheet of this cost proposal, or as modified by a post-bid schedule evaluation. The technician(s) will cover the requested
materials sampling and field testing requirements on the project per the scope of the originally defined estimate amount. For most
efficiency and familiarity, the use of a consistent personnel pool is always the objective, but cannot be guaranteed. Technician time is
charged on a portal-to-portal basis and related vehicle charges will apply.

Reporting Technician - A reporting technician will accumulate and draft weekly reports for the Materials Supervisor to review, evaluate,
finalize, and transmit to the Client in a timely fashion. This allows the Materials Supervisor to focus on report content in lieu of data
input.

Lab Technician - Lab Technician Indirect hours have been shown on the SCHEDULED PROJECT MAN-HOURS sheet of this cost
proposal for information only. A reasonable, approximate estimate of lab testing quantities is reflected in this cost proposal.

QT CONTINGENCY SERVICES

9

10

11

12

The hours estimated herein do not include Materials Testing/Inspection activities at fabrication yards or supplier production sites located
off of the project. In addition, non-compliance items and the associated travel, time, and retesting are out of scope and not accounted
for in this estimate. If requested, these services may require additional funding for the associated efforts.

QT's intent is to satisfy the project materials testing needs within the regular labor assumptions defined in this cost proposal. Based on
past similarly staffed projects, overtime is typically not intended, but often incurred due to the contractor's work schedule. Overtime
often results from long work days, uncontrollable field delays, weekend and night work, schedule intensity increases, owner agency
mandates, etc.. This cost proposal assumes zero (0) overtime. QT will attempt to accommodate short-term changes, weekend work,
night work, shift irregularity, and other unforeseen labor demands within this assumption. However, testing activities may go beyond the
capacity of the herein stated manpower and testing assumptions. QT will work closely with the client to minimize the additional funding
needed by prioritizing the testing, and adjusting technician schedules on an ongoing, Time & Materials, basis.

All of the QT positions discussed in the QT SERVICES above are based on an assumption of 0% overtime (i.e. 40 regular hours plus 0
overtime hours per week). Time will be billed as actually worked. Overtime will be considered time in excess of 40 hours in a week, or on
weekends, or in excess of 8 hours in a day, or night shifts.

Scheduling Cancellation:

For any unforeseen circumstances where a site visit is canceled upon arrival onsite for scheduled activities, the client will be responsible
for all charges associated with travel from portal to portal. These are considered services outside the originally defined materials testing
scope and will result in additional costs.

Jaye Richardson, Sr. Project Manager 5/17/2023

Name Date

et

Signature

175 South Hamilton Place Build 6 Ste 114 Gilbert AZ 85233 Tel (480)496-2000, Fax (480)496-2001



‘ .CHANDLER
ﬁwﬁarlzona

Community of Innovation

City Council Memorandum  Development Services Memo No. DS23-011

Date: June 15, 2023
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director/Historic Preservation Officer
Harley Mehlhorn, Planner, Assistant Historic Preservation Officer

From: Derek Horn, Development Services Director

Subject: PLH23-0028 McCullough-Price House Historic Preservation District
Landmark Designation and Introduction and Tentative Adoption of
Ordinance No. 5053

Request: City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5053,
PLH23-0028, McCullough-Price House Historic Preservation District
Landmark zoning overlay

Location: 300 South Chandler Village Drive
Applicant: City of Chandler

Proposed Motion:

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5053 approving
PLH23-0028, McCullough-Price House Historic Preservation District Landmark
zoning overlay subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and
Zoning Commission and the Historic Preservation Commission.

Background Data:
Existing Zoning:
e AG-1

Background:

The McCullough-Price House (House) sits just south of the Chandler Museum at
the intersection of Frye Road and Chandler Village Drive. The House has been a
fixture at that location since 1938 and provides significance to Chandler's history
in three ways. First, the House was owned and occupied by prominent Chandler
families and has a direct family connection to the City's founder, Dr. A. J.



Chandler. Second, it is a near intact example of Pueblo Revival style architecture,
one of the few remaining in the Valley. Third, it was designed by the well-known
and prolific local architectural firm of Lescher and Mahoney. The House was
placed on the National Register of Historic Places in 2009.

Discussion:

The Families:

William Davis McCullough, an industrialist from Detroit, Michigan, and his family
began traveling to Chandler in 1936 to spend the winters at the San Marcos Hotel,
a popular winter destination for wealthy and famous families. Deciding to stay for
longer times during the winter, Mr. McCullough purchased 200 acres southwest of
the town of Chandler in 1937, and two years later he purchased 40 more.
McCullough commissioned the Phoenix architectural firm of Lescher & Mahoney in
1938 to design the house in the Pueblo Revival style. The house was built on the
McCullough property later that year.

McCullough died in May 1940. Grace McCullough, his wife, decided to relocate
back to Detroit, so their property was conveyed to her recently widowed friend,
Odessa Lochhead, in July 1942. The Lochhead family, Roy and Odessa, owned
Pecos Valley Milling Company and had been operating businesses in Chandler
since the late 1920s. When Mr. Lochhead died in 1941, the business was sold to
Hal Bogle.

Odessa Lochhead lived in the house until she passed in 1943. Bogle, a trustee for
the Lochhead estate, worked with San Marcos Hotel manager John Quarty to hold
the house in trust for the Lochhead family while their son, Jim, finished his time in
the service and completed subsequent schooling. Quarty leased the house to
visitors as an extension of the San Marcos Hotel. In 1946 Jim and his new wife
Anna moved into the house where it became a social gathering place for residents
of Chandler. The Lochheads lived there until 1950 when they sold the house to
Arthur and Louise Price.

Arthur Price grew up in the state of Washington and attended Washington State
University, Harvard Law School and the University of Washington where he
received a law degree. Originally planning on starting his career in California, he
decided to try the Phoenix area instead. He passed the Arizona bar and became a
legal counselor to Dr. Chandler in 1913. Seeing the vision and potential of the new
town, Price decided to make Chandler his home and wrote its incorporation
papers, constitution, and by-laws and served as its first town attorney. He went on
to be active in the community for many years.

Price married Louise Chandler, a niece of Dr. Chandler, in 1918. They had three



children and initially resided on Washington Street in the Silk Stocking district
before moving into their new home.

After purchasing the house, the Prices spent their retirement years there until
Arthur died in 1971. Louise lived in the house for three more years. After her death
in 1975, the house passed into the hands of her daughter, Suzanne Price
Propstra.

The land around the McCullough-Price House remained primarily agricultural up
until the 1980s. Gradually, however, the land around the house was sold for
development, first on the west side for residential subdivisions, then in the early
2000s the remainder for a commercial complex that now includes the Chandler
Fashion Center Mall. Fortunately, the house remained on its original site.

After the deaths of the Prices, the house remained mostly vacant and fell into
disrepair. In 2001 Suzanne donated it to the City. Originally planned as a
community center, the development adjacent to the house forced a change in
plans. After a renovation by the City that restored the exterior and parts of the
interior to their original 1938 appearance, the house opened as a visitor center
and gallery in 2007. Today, it is listed on the National Register of Historic Places
and is part of the Chandler Museum complex.

The House:

When the McCullogh family decided to build a house near Chandler, they
commissioned the established and prolific Phoenix architectural firm of Lescher &
Mahoney to design their new home. The firm was known for both its aesthetic
designs and technical excellence. During its existence, the firm completed over
2,500 commissions, many of which still exist. Lescher & Mahoney did primarily
commercial and governmental buildings, so the McCullough house was a
departure from their standard practice. The design they produced is in the Pueblo
Revival style, which has its roots in the early Southwest. Examples of this style are
rare in Chandler.

The house was constructed on the original McCullough property, which was 240
acres at its height. It is about 3,308 square feet in area. The front primary facade
faces east and at one time was accessed from the east by a long driveway. It is
"L" shaped with the living room, dining room, den and kitchen located in the main
portion of the building. Four bedrooms and bathrooms were in the south leg of the
"L." To the north of and recessed from the primary facade is a service wing that
contained a maid's room, bathroom, laundry and three-car garage. The former
bedrooms are now used as offices and the service wing contains the archive of
the Chandler Museum. The garage is now a meeting room. The main living



room is largely intact and serves as the Price Gallery for the Chandler Museum.
The original plans show a rectangular stable building north of the house, but it is
unknown if it was ever constructed.

The house is constructed of brick with a stucco finish and has several notable
features including the wood lookouts, or "vigas," that run along the top of the
facade; embellishments with Native-American inspired designs on the walls; and
the original metal casement windows. The vigas, stucco exterior which mimics
adobe, and minimal window penetrations give the house its Pueblo Revival style
look. The house retains its original appearance from its construction in 1938.
Additional information and details on the architectural features and history of the
house and its families are in the National Register of Historic Places Registration
Form, which is attached to this memo.

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North Open Space/Commercial South Open Space/Commercial
East Commercial West Price Park, then Residential

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:

Existing Proposed

General Plan Regional Commercial Regional Commercial

Country Crossing  |Single Family Residential Single Family Residential

Review and Recommendation

Review:

Since its construction in 1938, the McCullough-Price House has been a part of the
agricultural, commercial, and social heritage of the City of Chandler. Its families -
the McCulloughs, Lochheads, and Prices - contributed to the founding, growth and
development of Chandler. Former residences of founder Dr. A. J. Chandler no
longer exist, so given the relationship of Louise Chandler Price to Dr. Chandler,
the house is the closest to a founder's home in Chandler and its importance to
Chandler's history cannot be understated. The house retains its original
architectural integrity on the exterior and is judged the best example of both
Pueblo Revival Style of architecture and of Lescher & Mahoney buildings in
Chandler. It is also listed on the National register of Historic Places.

The McCullough-Price House, therefore, meets the following qualifications for
historic designation:
e |t is listed on the National Register of Historic Places



e |t is associated with events and/or people important to Chandler's history
e |t is an example of a significant architectural style associated with the past

The request to add the Historic Preservation Landmark zoning overlay does

not change the underlying zoning of AG-1 nor does it add land use entitlements.
The overlay honors the history of the house and its families along with ensuring
the house remains a historic structure and landmark of Chandler's history.

Recommendation:

In conclusion, the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Historic Preservation
Commission recommend the City Council approve Ordinance No. 5053,
PLH23-0028 designating the McCullough-Price as a Historic Preservation District
Landmark and be listed on the City's Historic Property Register.

Public / Neighborhood Notification

e This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.

¢ A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site.

* A neighborhood meeting was held on April 27, 2023. No one attended other
than City staff.

e As of the writing of this memo, Development Services staff is not aware of
any opposition to the Landmark designation

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report

Planning and Zoning Commission meeting May 17, 2023
Motion to Approve: In Favor: 7 Opposed: 0

Historic Preservation Commission meeting May 4, 2023
Motion to Approve: In Favor: 6 Opposed: 0 Absent: 1 (Finbraaten)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
The Planning and Zoning Commission and the Historic Preservation Commission
recommend the City Council approve Ordinance No. 5053, PLH23-0028,

McCullough-Price House Historic Preservation District Landmark zoning overlay
subject to the following conditions:

1. The property shall be subject to the General Design Guidelines for Historic
Preservation Districts and Landmarks.

Attachments



Vicinity Maps
Ordinance 5053
National Register of Historic Places Registration Form
Original Building Plans
Existing Building Photos
Newspaper Excerpt
Arthur Price in Uniform
Roy Lochhead

William McCullough
Propstra Family

Royal Lescher

Leslie Mahoney



(e
(m)
1)
(O]
<C
-
s
[h'd
L
—
(m]
Z
<
T
(@)
- n
-
(m]
(@)
(@]
=
Z
L
N
n
W CHICAGO ST
W CINDY ST
/ =
0% 2
Y
LLEYST otetede ::’o’v
AG-14<5
PARK Pty
Price  KXXXY
Park 90%%%
WELGIN S S
Q
N W
/ﬁ%@@

Project Site

S GALLERIAWY

A

101/Price Fwy.|

PAD

R PLH23-0028 McCullough-Price House Historic Landmark District

2

Proposed Project Details
300 S. Chandler Village Dr.
Request Historic Landmark Designation

City of Chandler Planning Division
chandleraz.gov/planning

For more information visit:
https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning




” "l 5 .
3 : B

hPrice House His

Proposed Project Details
300 S. Chandler Village Dr.
Request Historic Landmark Designation

City of Chandler Planning Division
chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:
https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning




ORDINANCE NO. 5053

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER,
ARIZONA, AMENDING THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED
THERETO, BY CREATING A HISTORIC PRESERVATION DISTRICT
LANDMARK ZONING OVERLAY ON A PARCEL ZONED AS
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT (AG-1) IN CASE PLH23-0028 (MCCULLOUGH-
PRICE HOUSE) LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF WEST FRYE
ROAD AND SOUTH CHANDLER VILLIAGE DRIVE WITHIN THE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA;
PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND
PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES.

WHEREAS, an application for designating a Historic Preservation District Landmark zoning
overlay on a certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, Arizona, has been filed in
accordance with Article XX VI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of the time, place, and date of public hearing;
and

WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to
the public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the probable impact of this ordinance on the cost to
construct housing for sale or rent; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Historic Preservation Commission as required by
the Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by
the Zoning Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona,
as follows:

Section 1. Legal Description of Property:
EXHIBIT ‘A’

Said parcel is hereby zoned AG-1 with Historic Preservation District Landmark
Overlay, subject to the following conditions:

1. The property shall be subject to the General Design Guidelines
for Historic Preservation Districts and Landmarks.



Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

Ordinance No. 5053
Page 2

The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such
changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said Zoning
Code in compliance with this Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed.

In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this
Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such
building, structure, or land.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of
competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no force
or effect.

A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the
enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City
Code. Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense.

INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler,
Arizona, this 15th day of June, 2023.

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

MAYOR

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this 29" day of

June, 2023.

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

MAYOR



Ordinance No. 5053
Page 3

CERTIFICATION

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 5053 was duly passed and
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the
29th day of June, 2023, and that a quorum was present thereat.

CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY /fA

Published in the Arizona Republic on:



Exhibit A

Legal Description

That portion of the South half of Section 36, Township 1 South, Range 4 East, of the Gila and
Salt River Base and Meridian, Maricopa County, Arizona, described as follows:

BEGINNING at the Northeast corner of Hearthstone Unit 3, according to Book 276 of Maps,
page 41, records of Maricopa County, Arizona;

THENCE North 89° 50' 28" East at right angles to the East line of said Hearthstone Unit 3, a
distance of 175 feet;

THENCE South 00° 09' 32" East parallel to said East line, 373.38 feet;
THENCE South 89° 50' 28" West 175 feet to a point on the East line of said Hearthstone Unit 3;

THENCE North 00° 09' 32" West, along said East line, 373.38 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.



NPS Form 10-200 OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service \
. . . . APR €8 “CC
National Register of Historic Places
Registration Form MG

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in National Register Bulletin, How
to Complete the National Register of Historic Places Registration Form. If any item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for
"not applicable.” For functions, architectural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories from the
instructions. Place additional certification comments, entries, and narrative items on continuation sheets (NPS Form 10-900a).

1. Name of Property

Historic name  McCullough-Price House

Other names/site number

2. Location

street & number 300 S. Chandler Village Dr. B [ not for publication
city of town  Chandler [ vicinity

State Arizona code AZ county Maricopa code 013 zip code 85226

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended,

| hereby certify that this £ nomination request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation
standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and
professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the property §€ meets does not meet the National Register Criteria. | recommend that this
property be considered significant at the following level(s) of significance:
national statewide X local
M W. (auwvian b _Arr/e ?dp 7
Signature of certifying officiat” Date
AZ STHRE Histrl e PRESERVATI0 OFFTCLR Qﬁé@t . ..M_ Pari<s
Title State or Federal agency and bureau
In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria.
Signature of commenting official Date
Title State or Federal agency and bureau
4. National Park Service Certification { G

I, hereby, ify that this property is: Date of Action

5.20-09

entered in the National Register

determined eligible for the National Register

determined not eligible for the National Register

removed from the National Register

other (explain:)




McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona

County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply) (Check only one box)
private X | building(s)
X | public - Local district
public - State site
public - Federal structure
private building(s)
object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing  Noncontributing

1 buildings

sites

structures

objects

buildings

1 Total

Number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register

N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC / single dwelling

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

RECREATION AND CULTURE / museum

GOVERNMENT / government office

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

LATE 19™ & 20™ CENTURY REVIVALS:

Pueblo Revival

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)

foundation: CONCRETE

walls: STUCCO

roof: ASPHALT

other:




McCullough-Price House Maricopa, Arizona
Name of Property County and State

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current physical appearance of the property. Explain contributing and noncontributing resources
if necessary. Begin with a summary paragraph that briefly describes the general characteristics of the property, such as
its location, setting, size, and significant features.)

Summary Paragraph

The McCullough-Price House is located in Chandler, Arizona, a suburban city of approximately 235,000 residents,
located 20 miles southeast of Phoenix. The building is located on Chandler Village Drive, adjacent to the Chandler
Fashion Center mall, approximately one-half mile south of Chandler Boulevard and one-half mile west of Price Road and
the Loop 101 freeway. The property was originally part of a rural estate owned by the McCullough family that
encompassed approximately 200 acres. Over time, the estate was divided so that the parcel containing the McCullough-
Price House now consists of only 1.5 acres. The house, which was constructed in 1938, is a one-story, stuccoed brick
building designed in the Pueblo Revival Style. According to the original drawings, the building had an L-shaped plan,
with a living room, dining room, den and kitchen at the front, and four bedrooms and three bathrooms at the rearell. A
service wing extended from the north side of the building, with a maid’s room, bathroom, laundry room and three-car
garage. A large patio with an outdoor grill was located at the rear of the building, adjacent to the bedroom wing. In
2001, the building was acquired by the City of Chandler, who rehabilitated it for use as a visitor center, gallery, event
facility and office. The rehabilitation was completed in June 2007. The footprint of the building is unchanged, as is the
exterior appearance, except for a few door and window openings at the service wing and garage which were
reconfigured to create public restrooms and a meeting room. The most significant interior spaces have been preserved,
including the entry vestibule, living room, dining room and den. Despite these modifications, the building still retains
sufficient integrity to convey its historical significance.

Narrative Description

See Continuation Sheets, Section 7



McCullough-Price House

Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona

County and State

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing)

A

DD

Property is associated with events that have made a
significant contribution to the broad patterns of our
history.

Propenrty is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics

of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses high
artistic values, or represents a significant

and distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information
important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply)

Property is:

A

owed by a religious institution or used for religious
purposes.

removed from its original location.

a birthplace or grave.

a cemetery.

a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
a commemorative property.

less than 50 years old or achieving significance
within the past 50 years.

Period of Significance (justification)

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

ARCHITECTURE

Period of Significance
1938

Significant Dates
1938

Significant Person
(Complete only if Criterion B is marked above)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder
Lescher & Mahoney

J.W. Mougeot

The period of significance for the property is 1938, which is the year the house was buiit.

Criteria Consideratons (explanation, if necessary)

N/A



McCullough-Price House Maricopa, Arizona
Name of Property County and State

Statement of Significance Summary Paragraph (provide a summary paragraph that includes level of signficance and
applicable criteria)

The McCullough-Price House is locally significant under Criterion C in the area of Architecture. Buiit in 1938 as a winter
home for Michigan businessman William D. McCullough and his family, the imposing 3,308-square foot buiiding was one
of the largest residences in the Chandler area at the time. With its smooth stuccoed walls, tapered parapets, exposed
roof beams, and ornamental cast concrete and stone, the house is the best early twentieth-century example of the
Pueblo Revival Style in Chandler. The house also is one of the most impressive examples in the entire Phoenix
metropolitan area of a Pueblo Revival-style residence built during the historic time period. The house was designed by
the Phoenix architectural firm of Lescher & Mahoney, who primarily designed commercial and institutional buildings,
including several Arizona landmarks. Of the firm’s 2,541 commissions, only 25 of them were in Chandler or the
surrounding area. Of these 25 commissions, only six are known to have survived. The McCullough-Price House
represents the best remaining work of Lescher & Mahoney in the city of Chandier.

Narrative Statement of Significance (provide at least one paragraph for each area of significance)

See Continuation Sheets, Section 8

Developmental history/additional historic context information (if appropriate)

See Continuation Sheets, Section 8

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography (Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets)

Previous documentation on file (NPS): Primary location of additional data:
_____preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67 has been ___State Historic Preservation Office
requested _____ Other State agency
_____previously listed in the National Register _____Federal agency
____previously determined eligible by the National Register _ X _Local government
designated a National Historic Landmark _____University
____recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey # _____Other
recorded by Historic American Engineering Record # Name of repository: _City of Chandler

Historic Resources Survey Number (if assigned):




McCullough-Price House Maricopa, Arizona
Name of Property County and State

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 1.5 acres
(Do not include previously listed resource acreage)

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet)
1 12 416050 3684470 3
Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing
2 4
Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing

Verbal Boundary Description (describe the boundaries of the property)

That portion of the South half of Section 36, Township 1 South, Range 4 East, of the Gila and Salt River Base and
Meridian, Maricopa County, Arizona, described as follows:

BEGINNING at the Northeast corner of Hearthstone Unit 3, according to Book 276 of Maps, page 41, records of
Maricopa County, Arizona,

THENCE North 89° 50’ 28" East at right angles to the East line of said Hearthstone Unit 3, a distance of 175 feet;
THENCE South 00° 09' 32" East parallel to said East line, 373.38 feet;

THENCE South 89° 50’ 28" West 175 feet to a point on the East line of said Hearthstone Unit 3;

THENCE North 00° 09’ 32" West, along said East line, 373.38 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Boundary Justification (explain why the boundaries were selected)

The boundary for this nomination is the property line for the 1.5-acre parcel containing the McCullough-Price House.
The nominated property includes the building itself and the grounds within the 1.5-acre parcel.

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitte Kevin Weight, Consultant

organization City of Chandler - Community Services Dept. date March 28, 2009

street & number 6604 S. Pearl Dr. telephone (480) 802-1028

city or town Chandler state AZ zip code 85249
e-mail kevin.weight@yahoo.com

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
o Maps: A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources. Key all
photographs to this map.

¢ Continuation Sheets

* Additional items: (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)



McCullough-Price House Maricopa, Arizona
Name of Property County and State

Photographs:

Submit clear and descriptive black and white photographs. The size of each image must be 1600x1200 pixels at 300 ppi
(pixels per inch) or larger. Key all photographs to the sketch map.

Name of Property: McCullough-Price House

City or Vicinity: Chandler
County: Maricopa State: Arizona
Photographer: Kevin Weight

Date Photographed: June 8, 2007
Description of Photograph(s) and number:

1 of 15: Primary fagade & main entrance (looking southwest)

2 of 15: Primary fagade & driveway (looking west)

3 of 15: South fagade (looking northwest)

4 of 15: North fagade — former garage & service wing (looking south)
5 of 15: Front door (looking west)

6 of 15: Living room (looking southwest)

7 of 15: Fireplace in living room (looking west)

8 of 15: Former bedroom wing, now gallery & offices (looking southwest)
9 of 15: Den (looking southeast)

10 of 15:  Dining room (looking northwest)

11 0of 15:  Kitchen (looking west)

12 of 15:  Rear patio & barbecue (looking northwest)

13 of 15:  North fagade of bedroom wing (looking southwest)

14 of 15.  Rear patio (looking southeast)

15 of 15: West fagade of service wing (looking northeast)

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C.460 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, PO Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Project (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.



NPS& For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __7 Page __1 N/A
Name of muiltiple property listing

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION

Setting

When the property was first purchased by the McCullough family in 1937, it consisted of approximately 200
acres, located within the section of land bounded by Chandler Boulevard on the north, the Gila River indian
Community on the south, Price Road on the east, and McClintock Road on the west. Over time, the large,
rural property was divided several times. Today, the house is located on a much smaller parcel, which is only
1.5 acres in size.

The setting around the McCullough-Price House is now largely commercial, with the Chandler Fashion Center
mall located immediately to the northeast. Other large retail establishments, including Target and Costco, are
located to the southeast. Two major freeways, the Loop 101 and Loop 202, are located approximately one-
half mile to the east and south, respectively. A neighborhood of single-family homes, known as Hearthstone,
is located to the west.

The McCullough-Price House is located on Chandler Village Drive, which is the half-mile street between
McClintock Drive and the Loop 101 freeway. The house is located just south of the intersection with Frye
Road, which is the half-mile street between Chandler Boulevard and the Loop 202 freeway.

Adjacent to the 1.5-acre parcel containing the McCullough-Price House are two larger landscaped parcels (4.1
acres and 3.9 acres), which are also owned by the City of Chandler. Collectively, the three City-owned parcels
are nearly 10 acres in size and present a welcome respite from the surrounding commercial and residential
development.

The 1.5-acre parcel is accessed from Chandler Village Drive via a circular asphalt driveway. The circular drive
is a replication of the driveway shown on the original plans; however, there is no evidence that this type of
driveway actually existed prior to the City's ownership of the property. Aerial photos show that there was a
long driveway extending one-half mile west from Price Road directly to the garage, with no circle. The current
driveway has a planting island at the center of the circle, containing desert landscaping and a large fountain.

A paved parking area is located to the north of the circular driveway, and a gravel parking area is located to
the south (the rehabilitation plans show it is to be paved in the future).

On the north, east and west sides of the house there is a spacious green lawn. The lawn now comes right up
to the front of the garage, whereas originally the driveway extended to this area.

At the rear of the building is a large patio, which is shown in the original plans. The patio consists of a grassy
area framed by a 4-foot high stuccoed wall. At the northwest corner of the patio is a built-in outdoor grill
composed of stuccoed brick. The grill includes a chimney, which is approximately 13 feet in height. In front of
the grill is a flagstone hearth, which is part of the original design. Additional flagstone pavers have been
installed around the perimeter of the patio, inside the wall, as part of the recent rehabilitation.



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002} OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __7 Page _ 2 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

Yo

The original plans show that a stable was also to have been built on the site, just northwest of the garage. Itis
unclear whether this building, with a rectangular plan measuring approximately 20 x 100 feet, ever actually
existed. -

- "o
CEILST -FLO0L ALEN -
ot g

,‘ B S AhcRICIDINCE FOR MR WILLIAM D ASCULLOUGH -~
-"{r'ol.~CUAGDLEI'AQIZOI}'

4 2

Figure 1. Original floor plan for the McCullough-Price House, designed by Lescher & Mahoney, February
1938.

Exterior

The 3,308-square foot building has an L-shaped plan, measuring approximately 77 feet in width by 125 feet in
length. The living room, dining room, den and kitchen are iocated in the main portion of the building, with the
former bedrooms and bathrooms at the rear ell. A service wing extends from the north side of the building,
with what was originally a maid’s room, bathroom, laundry room and three-car garage. The service wing is
recessed behind the main portion of the building by approximately 25 feet.



NPS For 10-300-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __ 7 Page 3 N/A
Name of mulitiple property listing

The building has a concrete foundation, with a small basement located near the center of the rear ell. The
walls are constructed of brick, which has been sheathed with a smooth stucco finish. The building is painted a
light tan color, with tan and salmon-colored trim. The roof is flat with a raised parapet, which is tapered at the
top and at the corners.

The main portion of the building consists of a raised central pavilion (approximately 14 feet in height) with
lower projections at both the north and south ends (approximately 11 % feet in height). The north projection is
recessed behind the central pavilion while the south projection extends to the front. The pavilion is highlighted
by an offset entry with a single door. The wood door has a diamond-shaped window at the center and a
diagonal design in the panels. The frame has a zigzag design. Also present is a large door surround, which is
composed of cast concrete and natural “desert stone.” The surround includes several cast stone inserts with
“Indian hieroglyphics,” including a very large panel directly over the door. Adjacent to the door surround, on
each side of the front entry, are wrought iron light fixtures.

The windows on the house are steel casements. They are typically paired and have four lights, although some
of the smaller windows are single casements with three lights. All of the windows have cast concrete lintels
with zigzag designs. The windows do not have projecting sills; instead, the openings are tapered at the
bottom and on both sides.

Perhaps the most significant ornamental features are the vigas, or “wood lookouts,” which run along the top of
the facade. The vigas are meant to mimic structural timbers, but in this case they are purely ornamental.
They measure approximately 8 inches in diameter. Wood scuppers are also present to allow water to drain
from the roof.

The rear bedroom wing is generally rectangular in plan, although the middie portion projects approximately 5
feet to the south and the rear portion projects approximately 9 feet to the north. The wing is approximately 11
4 feet in height, with a ceiling height of 8 ¥ feet. A small, tapered chimney is located along the south wall,
approximately 25 feet back from the front fagade, although it is apparently no longer functional. The bedroom
wing has the same vigas and fenestration pattern as the front fagade of the house, although on the north side
of the wing there is an exterior stairway leading up to small roof deck. Underneath the stairway is a second
stairway leading down to a small basement underneath the middie portion of the bedroom wing. The
basement measures 15 x 25 feet and is 9 feet in height.

The service wing is located north of the main entrance to the house, and is recessed approximately 25 feet
behind the front fagade. The wing is generally rectangular in plan, with a large garage at the far end, which is
also rectangular in plan. The wing measures approximately 11 by 35 feet, and the garage measures
approximately 21 x 31 feet. Like the bedroom wing, the service wing is approximately 11 %z feet in height with
a ceiling height of 8 ¥z feet. The wing’s most prominent feature is a front porch with a “log” roof. The “logs”
are rounded timbers, 6 inches in diameter, set atop 8 x 8 inch wood beams supported by 8 x 8 inch posts with
Southwestern-style corbels. The front fagade of the service wing features an intact steel casement window,
along with three other openings that have been filled in to accommodate the new restrooms. The rear facade



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House

Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number _ 7 Page __ 4 N/A .
Name of multiple property listing

.

of the service wing features three intact steel windows and two new openings that serve as the entrances to
the new restrooms.

N

\lf' o 'a.g h: —'—‘-"’1".'——-""-—"9', e o
W= 4 I — LN,
, il [‘l .LU . :’*' S et
ey
‘ i SRR
i - :H*"‘f""*‘l”i l : ‘ »L‘"W.'! L' o e ""‘“ ’ -
1 ToE Ca i . :
{ EEER! toresr 4. =3
o {52 ) ,
- A, -3 . R TS
el R o H [4'1-4
B L T S T ', ,t.!...
COLCINTE LOVTLE MIER CARIGL 30218 ; .

-~

T2 e 1" 9 o o o O—“ é,

= R IPET N - "+ R . i ¢
. - )‘ LRSI y 2.
: B {11 Y .Y By o5 e
‘ i . R AL ParereT |
’ L LT
I | e i gt T "
’ . rm—— - .—V t—,.——— _r l. Aln 5
| SmImESES—E sl o i I ;
'“n teas | kttarTiew l..
T - - Lo h i s NeY -
b . . N RESIDENCE - FOR-WL WICGLIAM D #ECULLOUGH - Teéchte § WiNDR Ty )
:-‘,- o CYEST-QOF - CAAEILIR AR TOUL eyl iudnziel S fz.,

Figure 2. Original elevations for the McCullough-Price House, designed by Lescher & Mahoney, February
1938.

The garage is connected to the service wing by way of the front porch. The garage measures apprpxirpately
10 ¥ feet in height, with a ceiling height of 9 feet. The original garage doors have been replaced with fixed
panels, although the new panels replicate the diagonal pattern shown on the original plans. The center panel

includes a pair of three-light French doors.

At the rear of the main portion of the building is a porch similar in design to the one at the front of the service
wing. The main difference between the two is that the rear porch is supported by tapered s?upco columns
instead of wood posts. A large chimney is also located in this area; like the other chimney, it is tapered at the




NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __7 Page _ 5 N/A
Name of muitiple property listing

top. The rear porch is accessed from the living room via two pairs of French doors (one on each side of the
chimney) and from the dining room via a third pair of French doors. The porch floor features flagstone pavers,
which appear to be original.

Interior

Just inside the front entry of the McCullough-Price House is a small entry vestibule, which measures
approximately 8 x 10 feet. The vestibule features a tongue-and-groove wood ceiling with exposed 6 x 6 inch
wood beams. At the center of the ceiling is a large metal light fixture. The opening leading from the entry
vestibule to the living room has decorative 2-inch wood “poles” across the top. Like the vigas on the exterior
of the house, these poles are intended to mimic structural elements, but are actually purely ornamental. The
end poles facing the living room and vestibule are plastered, whereas the middle poles are exposed wood.

The living room is located immediately south of the entry vestibule and is the largest, most elaborate room in
the house, measuring approximately 16 x 26 feet. Unlike the rest of the house, which has a ceiling height of 8
Y feet, the living room ceiling is 10 feet in height. The living room has a tongue-and-groove wood ceiling with
exposed beams, similar to the one in the entry vestibuie, although the beams at the living room ceiling are
larger, measuring 8 x 8 inches. Beneath each beam, at the juncture with the wall, are ornamental wood
brackets, measuring 8 x 10 inches.

In addition to an original concrete floor, the living room also features a prominent fireplace at the center of the
west wall. The fireplace is composed of cast concrete and “desert stone,” with a projecting wood mantie.
Above the mantle are two decorative tile grilles, which allow warm air to flow, and a pair of ornamental lamps.
On each side of the fireplace, there is a pair of three-light French doors leading to the rear patio.

The dining room is located immediately west of the entry vestibule. It measures approximately 14 x 16 feet
and, like the living room, has a ceiling height of 10 feet. The dining room also features a tongue-and-groove
wood ceiling with exposed beams, although the beams are rounded. These 8-inch diameter “log” beams are
supported by a second set of log beams, measuring 10 inches in diameter. Beneath the lower logs, at the
juncture with the wall, are brackets in the form of rounded log ends. The log ends measure approximately 1
foot in length and are lashed to the beams above them. At the center of the ceiling is a large wrought iron light
fixture. The dining room also has an original concrete floor and a pair of three-light French doors leading to
the rear patio.

The den is focated immediately north of the entry vestibule. It measures approximately 8 2 x 10 feet, with a
ceiling height of 8 ¥ feet. The den features wood paneling on all four walls, with an elaborate wood frieze at
the top. The frieze, which circles the entire room, has a Southwestern motif. Along the edge of the ceiling is a
% x 3 ¥ inch redwood board cut in an ormamental pattern.

North of the den is the kitchen, which connects the main portion of the house to the service wing. The kitchen
was originally composed of two rooms—one was a small pantry—although the pantry has been removed to



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __7 Page _ 6 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

make the kitchen larger. The kitchen is generally configured the same way as in the original plans, although
the cabinets and appliances have been modernized.

The service wing, which originally consisted of a maid’s room, bathroom, laundry room and several small work
rooms, now consists of two modern restrooms and a janitor's room. The garage is now a meeting room. No
significant interior features remain in these rooms.

Likewise, the interior of the bedroom wing has been reconfigured from four bedrooms and three bathrooms to
a large gallery space with offices at the rear. Aside from the concrete floors, no original interior features
remain.

Integrity

The McCullough-Price House retains sufficient integrity to convey its significance under Criterion C as an
outstanding local example of the Pueblo Revival Style. Although the building now has a new use, it still has
high integrity of design, particularly on the exterior, with the only modifications being a few door and window
openings at the service wing and garage. The most significant interior spaces have been preserved, including
the entry vestibule, living room, dining room and den. The building also has excellent integrity of materials,
with its brick construction, smooth stucco walls and steel windows still intact. The integrity of workmanship is
also very high, with all original Pueblo Revival details still intact.

The building remains in its original location, never having been moved. However, when the large agricultural
tract was divided and sold for commercial and residential development, the rural setting was compromised and
the association with farming was lost. Thus, the property does not retain sufficient integrity to convey its
significance under Criterion A.



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __ 8 Page 7 N/A
Name of muitiple property listing

NARRATIVE STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

History of the Property

Early History

Following the establishment of the nearby Vulture Mine in 1864 and Camp McDowell in 1865, there was
considerable interest in creating an irrigation system in the Salt River Valley to meet the demand for
agricultural products. In 1868, the first canal of the modern irrigation system was dug and, very quickly, a
network of irrigation channels marked the modern landscape.

Unfortunately, the Salt River, which provided water to the canal network, proved unpredictable, with periods of
heavy flooding followed by long periods of drought. Valley land owners recognized that the only permanent
solution to the area’s water problem was to construct a storage reservoir on the upper Salt River, where the
water flowed through steep canyons. A potential dam site had been surveyed in 1889, but area farmers
lacked the resources to undertake such a monumental project.

Congress solved the problem when it approved, and President Theodore Roosevelt signed, the National
Reclamation Act of 1902. The act provided federal assistance for construction of irrigation works, including
water storage dams. In February 1903, Valley land owners incorporated the Salt River Valley Water Users’
Association (SRVWUA) to entice the federal government, through the newly created U.S. Reclamation Service
(USRS), to build Roosevelt Dam. The dam was one of the five original federal projects authorized on March
13, 1903 and was the first major project to be completed, on March 18, 1911.

The SRVWUA opened up membership to the landowners in 1903, and over the next decade area farmers
signed up their acreage. Because the Reclamation Act limited to 160 acres the amount of ground for which
any one owner could get water, several major landowners in the Valley were forced to subdivide their holdings.

One of these landowners was Dr. Alexander John (“A.J.") Chandler, a member of the SRVWUA'’s executive
committee and owner of approximately 18,000 acres in southeastern Maricopa County. In 1911, Dr. Chandler
subdivided his vast ranch, creating a townsite that would become the city of Chandler. The townsite was
located three miles east of Section 36, Township 1 South, Range 4 East—the section of land where the
McCullough-Price House would later be constructed.

Early USRS records indicate that, unlike other sections which had been claimed by homesteaders, Section 36
was “State Lands.” However, by 1911, William S. Austin had entered 77 acres in the north half of the
northeast quarter of Section 36 into the SRVWUA. Austin apparently leased the land from the government, as
state trust lands were not sold until after the State Land Code was established in 1915. Austin had arrived in
the Chandler area as a youth in 1888, traveling by covered wagon from Texas. In 1893, he married his wife,
Lourena Cosner, a Tempe resident. In 1899, they purchased land and built a house near the intersection of
present-day Price and Ray Roads. The Austin family raised barley, oats and bees, as well as cotton after



NPS For 10-800-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __ 8 Page _ 8 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

1918. One of their three sons, Wilfred, served for approximately 30 years as a sports coach, teacher, principal
and district superintendent for Chandler schools.

In 1914, the Board of Survey established the lands that were eligible for membership in the Salt River Project
(SRP). All of Section 36, T1S, R4E was designated as “Class C” lands, meaning that they were located within
the irrigable district but not irrigated or for which no attempted appropriation of the flow in the river had been
made. The 1914 Board of Survey map confirmed that the north half of the northeast quarter (the W.S. Austin
property) was included in the SRP water delivery district. A 1921-1922 SRP zanjero map shows water delivery
to the north end of the section. Water was delivered from the Consolidated Canal, via the Banta Lateral, or
Lateral 13, which ran parallel to the road that is now Chandier Boulevard.

In 1926, Mormon Flat Dam was completed several miles downstream from Roosevelt Dam, thus allowing the
water storage supply to be increased and additional lands scattered throughout the Salt River Valley to join the
SRVWUA. In 1927, the remainder of Section 36 joined the SRVWUA as “Mormon Flat Lands™. 198 acres in
the south half of the northeast quarter and north half of the southeast quarter of the section by John Andersen;
and 232 acres in the south half of the southeast quarter and all but the northeast quarter of the southwest
quarter and the southwest quarter of the northwest quarter by Arthur & Louise Price.

By the 1930s, the main landholders of Section 36 continued to be the Austin, Price and Andersen families.
W.S. and Lourena Austin still owned the north half of the northeast quarter; the Prices still owned the same
acreage they had owned in 1927; and John Andersen’s brother-in-law, Thomas Andersen, had acquired the
southeast quarter of the northwest quarter. However, by 1937 the land previously owned by John Andersen
was in the possession of the General American Life Insurance Company.

The McCullough Family

The family associated with the construction of the current McCullough-Price House had their roots in Detroit,
Michigan. William Davis McCullough was the owner of a subcontracting business that sold automotive parts to
the Chrysler Company. The McCulloughs also owned a ranch in the Detroit area that raised show horses. In
1936, the family began traveling to Chandler to stay for the winter season, which usually lasted from
December until April. William and his wife, Grace, his daughter, Virginia, and his son, Jack, stayed at the San
Marcos Hotel (NRHP listed 4/29/1982). By the 1930s, the hotel had become a favorite winter destination for
many wealthy and famous families, such as the Vanderbilts, Firestones, Fords and Rockefellers. Prominent
families from the East and Midwest flocked to the hotel, one of the few resorts in the Valley at the time.

The McCullough family decided to build a house and stay for longer amounts of time during the winter. On
April 30, 1937, William McCullough purchased 200 acres in Section 36, T1S, R4E, from the General American
Life Insurance Company. Nearly two years later, on April 3, 1939, McCullough purchased an additional 40
acres from Thomas & Marva Andersen, expanding his property to 240 acres.



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __8 Page _ 9 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

. . . .
In 1938 McCullough hired the Phoenix architectural firm of Lescher &
Mahoney to design the present-day house. He hired J.W. Mougeot, a WINTER VNTORS TO «
Mesa contractor, to build the large Pueblo Revival-style home, which was . M AKE HOME HERE; Now

completed in October of the same year. FURNISHING NEW HOUSE

According to the Chandler Anzonan, the McCulloughs hosted a “steak fry W. D. McCullough, of Detroit,

and housewarming party” on October 29, 1938. They invited a few friends Michigan, who has' been a winter
. . - visitor at Chandler for the past
from Chandler, Mesa, and Phoenix to celebrate the completion of their new two seasons, Is here this week,

‘ranch.” Guests included Dr. & Mrs. J.M. Meason, Dr. & Mrs. C.L. von :g:vchtf:::;fe_frzmh;:i . ;g;c;h?v hf}gg
Pohle, Mr. & Mrs. O.G. Johnson, Wayne Stapley and O.A. Gamble from has just been completed  on his
Chandler; Jack Leyda and JW. & O.L. Mougeot of Mesa; and E.R. ;’100 sacre ranch west ;r Ch{,‘"d{f,'
. . . -accom ~ S
Larraway of Phoenix. The family left and then returned some time later, ron e e T er the ‘Mosa
staying in their new home for the winter season. Since the land was RaﬁCh icngolll n(;xt Mo:da)d o
already under cultivation, the family rented out the farm. The farming proporly west of Chandler the
operations were run from the foreman’s home along Price Road, south of yga{ and {t is now partfis::l{ x;)ln!nt-
[:] o crops, and part o 8 belng
Chandlgr Bqu[evard. A barn and stables also were located on the farm put th, shape to pldnt at tho pres-
near this building. fent time. The home, in which
Mr. McCullough will live when he

L . . returns here fater in the winter, |
While in Chandler, McCullough met and became friends with local alfalfa {was built by J. W. Mougeot ot
mill owner Roy Lochhead. Lochhead invited McCullough to come to the _z‘;"gi g;g’;n{fagezrc‘;:;gecg“h":;
mill's feedlot and herd cattle. Roy’s wife, Odessa, became friends with ‘Ithe present time, it 8 Jut béing
Mrs. McCullough, and the children of the two families became acquainted |completed, and ‘at.a later date,
may be opened for-inspection by

as well. : cha.nd!er people for a short time.|.

“v

William McCullough died on May 30, 1940. Upon her husband’s death, Mrs. Flgure 3 Amcle from

McCullough decided to sell the family’s property in Chandler and remain Chandler Arizonan, October
permanently in Detroit. She sold the property to her friend, Odessa 28, 1938. Courtesy Chandler
Lochhead, shortly after Mr. Lochhead had also passed away. Historical Society.

The Lochhead Family

Prior to purchasing the McCullough property, Odessa Lochhead had lived with her husband, Roy, and their
son, Jim, in a Phoenix rental home. On December 9, 1941, Roy died, and Odessa decided she wanted a
permanent home with a farm. She purchased the property from the estate of William D. McCullough on July
25, 1942. Odessa may have wanted to live closer to the Pecos Milling Company, which she had taken over
after her husband's death. Jim was serving in the Air Army Corps at the time.

The Lochhead family had been operating a business in Chandler since the late 1920s. With roots in a Texas
flour milling family, in 1912 a young Roy Lochhead began his own alfalfa milling company in Hagerman, New
Mexico, called the Pecos Valley Milling Company. He eventually expanded, establishing milling operations in
other states such as Arizona, Texas, Oklahoma, and later in Missouri and Ohio. Roy located his Arizona




NPS For 10-200-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __8 Page __ 10 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

operation in Chandler in the late 1920s, an ideal location due to the dry climate and abundance of sunshine.
in addition, many local farmers grew alfalfa, which created a ready market.

During the late 1930s, over 10,000 tons of alfalfa were raised per year in the Chandler area, as well as 16,000
tons grown on the Gila River Indian Reservation. The company purchased much of this alfalfa, processed it,
and then sold the hay locally for cattle feed, as well as to national companies such as Ralston Purina, who
sold mixed feed for animals like horses and chickens. The mill was located east of the railroad tracks on what
was to become Pecos Road, named after the company. In 1937, Roy decided to permanently locate his
company headquarters in Chandler. He also built a cattle feedlot near the mill, holding over 3,000 head of
cattle.

In 1942, several months after her husband's death, Odessa Lochhead sold the company to Jack Bogle, a
Chandler resident who was Roy’s business partner. Odessa had also sold their family house and farm in New
Mexico. She lived in the Chandler house until March 28, 1943, when she passed away. Jack Bogle then
worked out a deal with San Marcos Hotel manager John Quarty to hold the house in trust while Jim Lochhead
finished his time in the service and began schooling at the University of Arizona. Between 1943 and 1946, the
hotel rented out the house in the winter to George Puliman, who was related to the Pullman Company family.

In 1946, while attending the University of Arizona, Jim Lochhead met Anna Grijalva, a native of Superior,
Arizona. Anna’'s family came from the pioneer Mexican American communities of Phoenix and Prescott. Her
father, Raoul, worked as an accountant for the Superior Mining Company, and her mother, Marian, taught first
grade for many years. Soon after meeting, Jim and Anna decided to marry. At the age of twenty, they moved
into the vacant Lochhead house, and both attended Arizona State College for a brief period of time.

When the couple arrived at the house, Odessa’s furniture still remained as it had been when she had resided
there. Each bedroom included sets of different styles of furniture, and each of the four bathrooms was
designed with a different color scheme: green, pink, coral, and black. The interior of the house included
unusual features, such as a built-in bread box in a cabinet near the stove, and closets with automatic lights
and drop boards to fold linens. The house also included servants’ quarters with a bedroom and bathroom, and
a separate entrance, located just off the kitchen. The house was surrounded by farm fields, set back half a
mile from Price Road. A row of eucalyptus trees lined the irrigation ditch behind the house, and flowers grew
along the walkway and the back patio wall. Grass grew in a front and side lawn, as well as in the courtyard
area. Anna later recalled her first impressions of the house:

Well, | thought it was beautiful; sitting out in the middle of 350 acres made it more dramatic. It
went down a long driveway to the house. And all the fields were planted. It was really special.
| had never lived on a farm. My grandfather had, but that wasn't like my grandfather’s; it was
much finer. It was really lovely and we enjoyed it very much. It was a lot of house for two
people at the time.

Jim and Anna settled in quickly, enjoying their spacious, unique home and often relaxing on the patio while
barbecuing on the outdoor grill. It could get warm in the house with only evaporative cooling, and the couple



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __8 Page _ 11 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

often traveled to cooler climates during the summer. Like many wealthier families in the Valley, Jim and Anna
employed domestic help, a black couple named Roy and Hiawatha White. The Whites lived in south Phoenix,
and drove to the Chandler area every day to work. Roy did much of the cooking and heavy work around the
house, while Hiawatha cleaned and shopped for groceries. Roy White had worked for Odessa’s family in
Texas, and came west with them. Once the Whites stopped working for them, Jim and Anna employed other
black women from Chandler to help with the household chores.

The Lochheads had many social gatherings at the home, where they played cards and entertained other
Chandler residents at dinner parties, such as the Bogles, Neats, Bevels, Elisworths and Baldwins. Jim and
Anna traveled three miles east into the small town of Chandler to shop at Basha's Grocery, Dudding’s Drug or
Stapley’s Hardware and pick up necessities like gas and tires. They patronized the San Marcos Hotel to play
golf and attend the annual Chandler Service Club Ball; Anna took knitting lessons there as well. Sometimes
Anna attended mass at St. Mary’s Catholic Church. They often went with friends to see the latest movies in
Mesa, or drove forty minutes west along Baseline Road, past rows of citrus groves and flower gardens, to visit
downtown Phoenix. In 1948, Jim and Anna moved to San Francisco, where their son Jim, Jr. was born. They
didn't stay long and moved back to the house by the next year.

While living in the house, Jim tried his hand at farming the surrounding 350 acres, growing common crops like
cotton and alfalfa, and less common crops as well. He later recalled:

You think you are gonna find a wonderful new crop to grow, and its going to be the answer to
all the farming problems. So one year | grew castor beans because they were using castor
bean oil in the lubrication of jet engines. And then a couple years later | decided that flax might
be a good crop—I think | grew 40 acres of it—the paint companies contracted and they used it
for linseed oil. | tried that one year. | never did find the perfect answer, so | just went back to
cotton and alfaifa.

Other farms surrounded the Lochheads’ farm. East of the house, the Andersen family grew cotton and alfalfa.
Further north, the Thude family owned a small dairy and raised cotton and alfalfa. Arthur Price owned
farmland west of the Lochheads, and just north of the house along Chandier Boulevard was a small dairy.
Next to the dairy was the tiny settlement of Hightown, where primarily agricultural workers of Mexican and
Yaqui descent lived.

Jim hired local crews, including entire families, to work in the cotton fields. Workers helped thin plants in the
spring and harvested in the fall. Entire families worked long hours in the fields, filling their sacks as quickly as
possible. Most of the workers were local black, Mexican American or Yaqui residents, coming from south
Phoenix, Guadalupe and Tempe.

Jim continued his family’s close business ties with the Bogles, selling his alfalfa to the Pecos Valley Milling
Company and ginning his cotton at the Bogle Gin in the Ocotillo area of Chandler. One part of the farm
contained very sandy soil which, he soon discovered, would destroy the young cotton plants when the winds
whipped up the dust. He also found that the water from the well on his farm contained a high salt content,






NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __8 Page _ 13 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

In 1950, Jack Bogle spoke to Jim about selling the farm and the house, due to their concerns over the high
salt content in the water. The Lochheads decided to move to north Phoenix and sold the land to Arthur and
Louise Price, who owned much of the adjacent land to the west of their property.

The Price Family

After purchasing the land, Arthur and Louise Price moved from downtown Chandler into the home. Louise’s
family’s roots in the Chandler area date to the late 1800s when her uncle, Dr. A.J. Chandler, first arrived. In
1888, A.J.’s younger brother, Harry, traveled from Michigan to Arizona to visit. In a memoir, Harry’s wife,
Bertha, recalled that he “felt that the west had opportunities, and (he) was instrumental in getting men with
money interested in the (Arizona) country.”

Following Harry and Bertha's marriage in 1891, the newlyweds moved to Phoemx where Harry operated a
drug store and a shoe store. The couple lived in an adobe home located near 2™ Avenue and Adams Street,
where the Orpheum Theatre now stands. By 1897, Harry and Bertha had moved to Mesa, with their daughters
Marian (born 1893) and Louise (born 1895), both of whom spent their early years with their mother in
Michigan. Harry organized and became president of the Southside Gas and Electric Company in Mesa. He
operated this business, which served Mesa, Tempe and Chandier, until 1929, when he sold it to the Central
Arizona Light & Power Company. He began a farm in 1905, growing alfalfa and grains, and added dairy and
beef cattle and hogs after 1911. His daughter Marian eventually managed the operations of the farm before
and after Harry's death. Harry also helped organize the Mesa Public School system and was president of the
Roosevelt Water Conservation District.

Meanwhile, Marian and Louise grew up in the Mesa area and eventually entered the private Mt. Ida School in
Newton, Massachusetts. Upon graduation from Mt. Ida, both sisters entered college. Louise enrolled at the
University of California in Berkeley, pursuing a degree in Literature. While living in Mesa, Louise met a young
Arthur Price, who worked closely with her uncle, A.J. They married in 1918 in Arkansas, during the time
Arthur was serving in World War |. After her marriage, Louise returned to school, finished her studies and
graduated in 1921.

Arthur Price, born in 1889 in Eberton, Washington, graduated from Washington State University in 1909,
majoring in history and economics. He then attended Harvard Law School for two years before returning to
his home state where he received a law degree from the University of Washington in 1912. He traveled to
California looking for a place to begin his career but decided to try the Phoenix area for business opportunities.
In Arizona he passed the state bar exam and became a legal counselor for A.J. Chandler in 1913, at the age
of twenty-four. Price originally intended to stay in Chandler for a short time in order to gain more legal
experience before returning to Phoenix, but changed his mind after working for Dr. Chandler, whom he called
“a natural builder with foresight to the future.” Price ultimately opened his own law practice, with an office in
the Bank of Chandler building.

As the only lawyer in the fledgling settlement of Chandler, Arthur wrote the town'’s incorporation papers,
drafted the town’s constitution and by-laws, and became the first Town Attorney. He helped organize



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number ___8 Page __14 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

Chandler's Chamber of Commerce in 1914 and served as Chamber’s charter president. In 1916, he became
Chandler’s first Justice of the Peace. Arthur served in World War | with the first contingent of soldiers from
Arizona and was commissioned at Camp Pike in Little Rock, Arkansas. He served in France and became an
artillery instructor. Once he returned to Chandler, he and Louise purchased a home on Washington Street
near present-day Chandier Boulevard. Arthur worked as company attorney for Dr. Chandler's Chandler
Improvement Company until 1930, when he shifted his focus to land development and farming as he began
purchasing land in west Chandler and Chandler Heights.

By this time, Arthur and Louise had three children: Harriet, born 1920; Suzanne, born 1922; and Arthur, born
1927. The children grew up in Chandler, attending Chandler Grammar School and Chandler High School.
They spent many hours with their grandfather, Harry, and their great-uncle, A.J., or “Uncle Alex,” as they
called him. Harriet attended Stanford and remained in California, and Arthur died in a plane crash at the age
of twenty-one. After graduation from Chandler High in 1939, Suzanne attended Mills College in Oakland,
California, and then the University of Arizona. She married Jack Propstra in 1943. After their marriage, they
lived in Colorado and Washington, traveling to Arizona to visit Arthur and Louise with their three children,
John, Diane, and Marilyn.

By 1950, Arthur and Louise had purchased the present-day Price House and 350 acres from the Lochhead
family. The Price family may have owned as much as 1,000 acres of land in west Chandler by this time. They
joined other families such as the Thudes, Andersens, Dobsons and Taylors as major operators of west
Chandler farms. By moving to this home, Arthur could be closer to his land and farming operations in the west
Chandler area. He primarily raised cotton and cattle, importing many of his cattle from Mexico.

During the 1950s, the small town of Chandler began to increase in popuiation as post-war migration brought in
new residents. Local homebuilders started new subdivisions and the town slowly spread out to the north, but
agricultural fields continued to dominate the landscape. In 1954, the town of Chandler gained municipal status
and became a city with a population of 5,200 residents, yet agriculture remained a major part of the economy.
By the early 1950s the cotton industry contributed $3 million to the local economy, twelve cotton gins operated
in the area, and alfalfa crops continued to be processed primarily at the Pecos Valley Milling Company. Many
Chandler farmers invested in mechanized picking machines to cut down on labor costs and speed harvesting.
Local ranchers raised over 9,000 head of cattle and sheep. Families like the Prices still traveled down dusty
dirt or concrete roads to make the trip into town for shopping, entertainment, and everyday needs.

Suzanne and her family visited Arthur and Louise more frequently after they moved to Phoenix in 1953, where
Jack opened his business, the House of Trophies. The house remained mostly unchanged from the time of its
construction. Louise maintained the house with the help of her maid, Julie, an African American woman.
Diane, Suzanne's second-oldest child, has many memories of the house she visited from the early 1950s to
the 1960s:

| remember it seemed palatial, and now it looks small compared to what has been built since. It
was very peaceful driving down the road there. My grandfather (Arthur) loved to have flowers
and in the spring you'd smell the sweet peas and the stock, and there’s still a little vestige of the






NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __ 8 Page __16 N/A
Name of muitiple property listing

Chandier included it as part of a nearly eight square mile annexation that doubled the city’s size. By this time,
Chandler’s population had reached nearly 15,000.

The land around the McCullough-Price house was used for farming up until the 1980s, when it was sold for
residential development. Rows of new homes ate up former cotton fields when Pulte Homes purchased a
large amount of land just west of the house and constructed the Hearthstone subdivision. In 2001, Suzanne
negotiated with retail developer Westcor to initiate the construction of the present-day Chandler Fashion
Center. Today the house, surrounded by subdivisions and parking lots, sits on what remains of the original
farmland.

Reflecting on how the McCullough-Price house symbolizes the pioneering spirit of early Chandler settlers,
Diane Propstra Willian commented:

It's important to remember what the city was like before development hit. Nobody thought
anything of Chandler ... If you think about how he (Arthur Price) came from Washington, how
he got to Arizona at that point in time is just remarkable—to think that people would have the
foresight to say this place is really worth developing. It had to be so hot and so miserable, and
these people could have lived anywhere. | think the home is like an outward and visible symbol
of how he thought and how he lived his life.

Conclusion

The history of the McCullough-Price House begins with a wealthy Midwestern family looking for a place to
spend mild winters and take part in the burgeoning agricultural opportunities in the Chandler area. The crops
planted on the home’s surrounding fields bolstered the local economy and provided the raw materials like
alfalfa and cotton for products in national and international markets. These fields also provided work for local
African American and Mexican American laborers. The house became a home for a newly married couple just
beginning their lives and later provided a quiet place for an older couple with deep ties to the city’s founding
and agricultural development. It eventually housed families who tried their hand at rental farming, as the city's
urban growth crept nearer and nearer. The house, with its distinctive southwestern flair that contrasted with
other traditional farmhouses scattered about Chandler, remained virtually unchanged over time.

As in 1913 when Arthur Price arrived in the tiny, dusty town of Chandler and soon realized its potential for
development, at the age of 79 he continued to predict the city’s successful growth, as an urban center rather
than a farming community. In 1968, three years before his death, a local newspaper provided the following
quote from Arthur Price:

This community and the surrounding area are really just beginning to move toward larger
things. We have a lot going for us—industry in Chandler, proximity to the new freeways and
other factors. | think Chandler is on the threshold of great growth and that all of this area will be
intensely developed.



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __ 8 Page _ 17 N/A
Name of muitiple property listing

The McCullough-Price House now stands completely surrounded by the urban growth that Price predicted,
symbolizing Chandler’s rural yet progressive past.

The Architecture

The McCuliough-Price House is significant as the best example of Pueblo Revival-style architecture in the city
of Chandler. Relatively few examples of this style were built in Chandler during the historic time period, and
the McCullough-Price House is best of the group, in terms of size, workmanship and design. It also ranks
among the best examples of Pueblo Revival-style houses in the Phoenix metropolitan area.

Pueblo Revival Style

The Pueblo Revival Style was derived from late eighteenth and early nineteenth century Southwest Pueblos of
the Rio Grande Valley, New Mexico and Arizona. It blended aspects of both Native American pueblos and
early structures built by Spanish colonists in Mexico. Although it was an authentic regional style, the Pueblo
Revival was first introduced in California where actual pueblos were not built. In 1894, Boston architect A.C.
Schweinfurth designed a new hotel in Montalvo, California, generally considered the first modern building done
in the Pueblo Revival Style.

The style became most popular, however, in Arizona and New Mexico, areas where the original prototypes
survive. The style was especially popular in New Mexico, a state which contributed a modified replica of the
Acoma church and convent to the Panama-California Exposition at San Diego in 1915. It is particularly
common in Albuquerque and Santa Fe, where it endures today, in part because of special design standards in
the cities’ historic districts.

Pueblo Revival buildings imitate the hand-finishes of their Native American prototypes. Corners are often
blunted or rounded, and wall surfaces are typically given irregular, stuccoed textures. In addition, rough-hewn
“vigas” or roof beams, window lintels and porch supports carry out the hand-built theme. The stepped-back
roof line of the original pueblos is often used. Like the original pueblos, many of the revival buildings feature
adobe construction, although brick, concrete block and wood frame construction are also common.

A local variation of the style, termed the “Southwest Style” in Historic Homes of Phoenix: An Architectural &
Preservation Guide, combines elements of the Pueblo Revival and Spanish Colonial Revival styles. This
variation, which utilizes both the stuccoed, flat roofed, boxlike forms of the Pueblo Revival and the low-pitched
gables and red tile roofing of the Spanish Colonial Revival, was much more common in the Salt River Valley
than was the pure Pueblo Revival. it represents a natural borrowing and blending of neighboring design
influences—pueblo forms from New Mexico and Texas to the east, and Spanish motifs from California to the
west. A second local variation, which combines the Pueblo Revival form with elements of the Modernistic
styles, is termed “Pueblo Deco.” This variation was also more common than the pure Pueblo Revival and
appears in several upscale residences and commercial buildings from the late 1920s to the 1940s.



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Page __18 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

Section number __ 8

Although the Pueblo Revival Style was primarily used for residences, it was also commonly used for buildings
associated with parks or resorts. Examples of park buildings utilizing the style include the Arizona Museum at
University Park, and the Webster Auditorium (NRHP listed 6/14/1990) at Papago Park, both in Phoenix. The
administration building at South Mountain Park is also designed in the Pueblo Revival Style, although it
features walls of native stone rather stucco. Several resorts utilized the style, using it to evoke a romanticized
view of the “old Southwest.” Examples include the Wigwam Resort in Litchfield Park; the Jokake Inn and
Squaw Peak Inn (NRHP listed 7/19/1996) in Phoenix; and the Camelback Inn in Paradise Valley.

In Chandler, the Pueblo Revival Style is rare, as are other Period Revival styles, such as Tudor, Colonial,
Classical and ltalian Renaissance. According to the Chandler Historic Resource Survey, prepared by Alliance
Architects in 1998, less than one tenth of the historic housing stock in the survey area represented the Period
Revival era. Where Period Revival designs occur, they usually follow the precedent of the San Marcos Hotel
and the several Mission Revival-style commercial buildings found in the Chandler Commercial Historic District
(NRHP listed 9/22/2000). Only one example of the Pueblo Revival Style is recorded in the survey, located at
308 N. Washington Street. While this house is a good representation of the style, it is much more modest in
size (1,221 sq. ft. vs. 3,308 sq. ft.) and workmanship than the McCullough-Price House.

The McCullough-Price House also compares favorably to other examples of Pueblo Revival-style residences
found throughout the Valley. The table below lists 16 of the best examples, along with their location, architect,
construction date and size. Of the examples listed, the McCullough-Price ranks fifth in terms of size.

HOUSE
YEAR SIZE
NAME ADDRESS CITY ARCHITECT BUILT (sq. ft.)
Converse, Ralph, House 6617 N. Central Phoenix Unknown 1935 7,262
Ave.
Eisendrath, Rose, House 1400 N. College Tempe Robert Evans | 1930 5,250
Ave.
Pueblo Revival Residence 9 E. Country Club Phoenix Unknown ca.1922 4,896
Dr.
Encanto Model Home (“The | 2040 Encanto Dr. Phoenix Unknown ca.1929 3,345
Indian House™)* SE
McCullough-Price House 300 S. Chandier Chandler | Lescher & 1938 3,308
Village Dr. Mahoney
Arnold, Oren, Residence™* 34 W. Pasadena Phoenix Unknown ca.1944 3,072
Ave.
Boies, Cal, House 301 W. Mariposa St. | Phoenix Unknown ca.1930 2,357
Bohn, Louis, House 8001 N. 7" st. Phoenix Unknown 1928 2,328
Pueblo Revival Residence 8048 S. 14" St. Phoenix Unknown ca.1930 2,097
Pueblo Revival Residence** | 1146 W. Culver St. Phoenix Unknown ca.1931 1,773
Pueblo Revival Residence 46 E. Greenway Rd. | Phoenix Unknown ca.1927 1,751
Boone, Daniel, House 1720 W. Eim St. Phoenix Unknown 1940 1,592
Clark, W.W._, House 345 E. Catalina Dr. Phoenix Unknown 1939 1,535




NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __8 Page __19 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

HOUSE
YEAR SIZE
NAME ADDRESS CITY ARCHITECT BUILT (sq. ft.)
Pueblo Revival Residence*** | 1102 W. Culver St. Phoenix Unknown ca.1936 1,453
Wilkie/Pueblo Revival House | 1290 S. Maple Ave. | Tempe Unknown 1937 1,222
Williams, R.L., House 308 N. Washington | Chandler | Unknown ca.1940 1,221
St.

Table 1. Pueblo Revival-style residences in the Phoenix metropolitan area built prior to 1957. Sources:
Maricopa County Assessor and historic property surveys obtained from the cities of Chandler, Phoenix and
Tempe. *Listed on National Register as contributor to Encanto-Palmcroft Historic District. **Listed on National
Register as contributor to Medlock Place Historic District. ***Listed on National Register as contributor to F.Q.
Story Historic District. The remaining residences are not listed on the National Register either as individual
properties or as contributors to a historic district.

The Architects

The McCullough-Price House is one of only a handful of buildings in the Chandler area designed by the prolific
Phoenix architectural firm of Lescher & Mahoney. This firm, who primarily designed commercial and
institutional buildings, was responsible for many of Arizona’s architectural landmarks. The McCullough-Price
House represents the best remaining work of Lescher & Mahoney in the city of Chandler.

The firm was known for its aesthetic designs and technical excellence, responding to the needs of each client
and to the popular styles of the era. Lescher & Mahoney’s designs do not necessarily have a personalized
style, as do the work of some contemporary architects whose designs have a signature “look,” but rather have
forms that respond to the time, place and function of each commission. Considering that their work spans a
period of 65 years and represents nearly every conceivable architectural style, the high aesthetic qualities that
they were able to maintain are truly remarkable.

Royal W. Lescher

The senior partner in the firm, Royal W. Lescher, was born August 12, 1882, in Galesburg, lllinois. He moved
with his family at an early age to Carpinteria, California, and in 1902 graduated from the Throop Polytechnic
Institute (now the California Institute of Technology).

After graduation, Lescher worked for the Pacific Railway Company of Los Angeles under the direction of E.S.
Cobb, a bridge engineer. In 1904, Lescher relocated to Buffalo, New York, where he worked for an
architectural firm. After four years, he moved to Phoenix, Arizona, to work with Thornton Fitzhugh, one of the
leading architects in the Arizona Territory. For Fitzhugh, Lescher helped with the design of the First Federal
Savings & Loan Building and a ward of the territorial hospital in Phoenix; the territorial prison at Florence; and
the Chandler Court apartments in Mesa. After working for Fitzhugh for two years, Lescher decided to start his
own practice. In 1910, he purchased the office equipment of W.A. Bleisner and opened his own firm.



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __ 8 Page __20 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

For his first project, Lescher won a competition to design the West End School, a two-room schoolhouse in
Phoenix. Following this first commission, Lescher received two other school design jobs—a new building for
the Littleton School District in Cashion and a two-room addition to the original Murphy School. Over the years,
Lescher and his associates became the leading designers of school buildings in Arizona. They designed
elementary and high school buildings in every county in the state.

Lescher & Kibbey

After the three small school jobs, Lescher received his first big commission. In 1911, he received a contract to
design the Woman's Club of Phoenix at a cost of $16,500. Two years later, Lescher’'s expanding practice led
him to take in John R. Kibbey as a partner, and the firm became known as Lescher & Kibbey.

Significant Lescher & Kibbey buildings include the Mohave County Courthouse and Jail (NRHP listed
8/25/1983), Graham County Courthouse (5/25/1982), Florence Union High School (6/22/1987), Globe High
School, Gilbert Elementary School (6/16/1980), Brophy College Chapel (8/10/1993) and Aspen Hall in
Phoenix.

Lescher, Kibbey & Mahoney

The increasing number of large commissions led Lescher to expand his firm once again. In 1917, 25-year old
Leslie J. Mahoney joined the firm. Born January 21, 1892, in DeSoto, Missouri, Mahoney was the son of a
building contractor and traveled widely with his father during childhood. He studied liberal arts at Santa Clara
College and later became a designer with the Los Angeles architectural firm of Allison & Allison. When a
friend wrote that he was leaving his job with Lescher & Kibbey because Phoenix was too hot for his taste,
Mahoney said he would take his place. He wrote to Royal Lescher and asked for $50 in train fare to come to
Phoenix.

By 1921, Mahoney had been taken in as a partner and the firm became known as Lescher, Kibbey &
Mahoney. However, in 1923, Kibbey left the firm, succumbing to the lures of California, where he became a
movie set designer.

Significant Lescher, Kibbey & Mahoney buildings include Peoria High School, Scottsdale High School, Jerome
High School, and Temple Beth Israel and Balsz Elementary School in Phoenix.

Lescher & Mahoney

Upon Kibbey's departure, the name of the firm was changed to Lescher & Mahoney. From 1923 until the firm
was sold in 1975, the firm was both prolific and groundbreaking. Mahoney kept careful track of each job; by
the time he retired, the list of jobs totaled 2,541. Over 19,000 of the firm's drawings are preserved at the
archives of the Arizona Historical Society in Tempe. The firm designed many of the major public and
institutional buildings in Phoenix through the 1950s and designed buildings throughout the state. The vast



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002)

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number __ 8

Page __21

OMB No. 1024-0018

McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

N/A
Name of multiple property listing

majority of their early work centered on public buildings such as schools, courthouses and hospitals. After
1930, their major projects shifted to commercial commissions, primarily in Phoenix.

The firm worked in numerous styles, conforming to the trends of the time. Major buildings in the early years
were primarily Classical Revival in style. By the mid-1920s, the firm’s work shifted toward other Period Revival
styles, particularly Spanish Colonial Revival, though often retaining the formality and symmetry associated with
the earlier Classical Revival forms. During the shift, the firm became more active in commercial buildings.
This is best represented by the Spanish Colonial Revival-style Orpheum Theatre (NRHP listed 9/4/1985),
constructed in Phoenix in 1929. The firm’s pragmatic approach to architecture and design versatility served
them well as predominant styles changed. This stylistic shift continued with the Art Deco-influenced Title &
Trust Building (NRHP listed 9/4/1985), constructed in 1931, and was essentially complete with the construction
of Hanny's (NRHP listed 9/6/1985), an International-style department store which opened in 1947.

A Guide to the Architecture of Metro Phoenix, published by the Central Arizona Chapter of the American
Institute of Architects in 1983, lists and briefly describes 10 buildings designed by Lescher & Mahoney. This is
a large number for a single firm and includes a diverse body of work: two schools, two government buildings,
an office building, a theater, a post office, a church, a building on the Arizona State University campus, and
Veterans’ Memorial Coliseum.

As of November 12, 2007, a total of 25 buildings designed by Lescher & Kibbey or Lescher & Mahoney were
individually listed on the National Register of Historic Places. These buildings are shown in the table below:

ARCHITECT STATE | COUNTY | RESOURCE NAME DATE LISTED
Lescher & Kibbey AZ Graham Graham County Courthouse 5/25/1982
Lescher & Kibbey AZ Maricopa | Brophy College Chapel 8/10/1993
Lescher & Kibbey AZ Maricopa | Gilbert Elementary School 6/16/1980
Lescher & Kibbey AZ Mohave Mohave County Courthouse & Jail 8/25/1983
Lescher & Kibbey AZ Pinal Florence Union High School 6/22/1987
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Arizona Citrus Growers Association 9/4/1985
Warehouse
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Cartwright School 8/12/1993
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | El Zaribah Shrine Auditorium 3/9/1989
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Glendale High School Auditorium 5/2/2006
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Hanny's 9/6/1985
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Irving School 11/8/2000
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Kitchell, Denison, House 5/19/1994
‘Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Knights of Pythias Building 9/4/1985
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Maricopa County Courthouse 2/10/1989
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Moeur, B. B., Activity Building 9/11/1985
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Orpheum Theater 9/4/1985
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Pay'n Takit #5 9/4/1985 ]
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Ross, John M., House 2/24/2000




NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __8 Page __ 22 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

ARCHITECT STATE | COUNTY | RESOURCE NAME DATE LISTED
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Title & Trust Building 9/4/1985
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | U.S. Post Office 2/10/1983
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Whitney, J. T., Funeral Home 9/4/1985
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Whittier, John G., School 8/12/1993

' Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Wickenburg High School & Annex 7/10/1986
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Maricopa | Wickenburg High School Gymnasium 7/10/1986
Lescher & Mahoney | AZ Yuma Mohawk Valley School 12/29/1986 |

Table 2. National Register-listed properties designed by Lescher & Kibbey and Lescher & Mahoney. No
Lescher, Kibbey & Mahoney-designed properties are listed. Source: National Park Service.

In addition to these properties, the John R. Kibbey-designed C.H. Tinker House in Glendale, Arizona, is also
listed (1/11/2006).

The firm also designed contributing buildings in several National Register-listed historic districts. These
include the Country Club Park (12/21/1994) and Windsor Square Historic Districts (12/13/2000) in Phoenix,
the Fort Tuthill Historic District in Flagstaff (4/6/2004), the Florence Townsite Historic District (10/26/1982), the
Kingman Commercial Historic District (listed 5/14/1986) & the Globe Downtown Historic District (5/28/1987).

Of the firm's 2,541 commissions, only 25 of them were in Chandler or the surrounding area. The table below
shows a list of the commissions (sorted chronologically):

COMMISSION
NAME LOCATION | ARCHITECT DATE NUMBER STATUS
Arizona Eastern Railroad | Chandler Lescher & Kibbey Unknown | 126 Demolished
— Station Agent's
Residence
San Marcos Hotel — Chandler Lescher & Kibbey 1917 225 Unknown
Help's Quarters
Peterson, H.L., Chandler Lescher & Kibbey 1918 248 Intact
Residence
Friedberg, Joseph, Store | Chandler Lescher & Kibbey Apr. 270 Intact
Building 1919
First National Bank Chandler Lescher & Kibbey 1919 271 Intact
Building
Reliable Hardware Co. Chandler Lescher & Kibbey 1919 274 Intact
Store Building
Church of Jesus Christ of | Chandler Lescher & Kibbey Jun. 276 Demolished
Latter-Day Saints, 1919
Chandler Ward — Church
Building




NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002)

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

OMB No. 1024-0018

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

McCullough-Price House

Name of Property
Maricopa, Arizona
County and State
Section number __8 Page _ 23 N/A
Name of multiple property listing
COMMISSION
NAME LOCATION | ARCHITECT DATE NUMBER STATUS
Stapley, O.S., Store Chandier Lescher & Kibbey Dec. 308 Intact
Building 1919
Johnson, W.M,, Chandler Lescher & Kibbey 1920 335 Unknown
Residence
Ames, Dr., Residence West of Lescher, Kibbey & May 338 Unknown
Chandler Mahoney 1921
Chandler Ice Co. — Ice Chandler Lescher & Mahoney | Apr. 455 Demolished
Storage Building 1926
San Marcos Hotel — Hotel | Chandler Lescher & Mahoney | Nov. 471 Unknown
Building 1926
Chandier, Dr. AJ., Unknown Lescher & Mahoney | Oct. 575 Demolished
Residence (“Hacienda de 1929
la Chandler”)
Brinton, Helen, Guest West of Lescher & Mahoney | Dec. 755 Unknown
Cottage Residence Chandler 1936
(additions & alterations)
McCullough, Mr. William West of Lescher & Mahoney | Feb. 828 Intact
D., Residence Chandler 1938
Chandler Improvement Chandler Lescher & Mahoney | 1941 1042 Unknown
Co., 50 Houses — FHA
Chandler, Dr. & Mrs. A.J., | San Lescher & Mahoney | May 1155 Demolished
Cottage (additions) Marcos 1944
Hotel,
Chandler
El Rancho Theater (Mr. & | Chandler Lescher & Mahoney | Aug. 1164 Never Built
Mrs. J.H. Woods, owners) 1944
White Cross Drug Co. Chandler Lescher & Mahoney | 1944 1189 Unknown
(alterations)
Porter, Mr., Near Lescher & Mahoney | Nov. 1295 Unknown
Slaughterhouse Chandler 1945
Heights
Williams Air Force Base — | Chandler Lescher & Mahoney | Nov. 2000 Unknown
Officer's Club (additions) 1955
M.S.T.&T. Chandler — Chandler Lescher & Mahoney | May 2263 Unknown
1962 Dial Building 1961
(addition)
Williams Air Force Base — | Chandler Lescher & Mahoney | Jun. 2496 Unknown
Medical Facilities 1969




NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002)

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

McCullough-Price House

OMB No. 1024-0018

Name of Property
Maricopa, Arizona
County and State
Section number __8 Page _ 24 N/A
Name of multiple property listing
COMMISSION
NAME LOCATION | ARCHITECT DATE NUMBER STATUS
Williams Air Force Base — | Chandler Lescher & Mahoney | Apr. 2520 Unknown
Housing (remodel & 1972
additions — Phase i)
Chandler, Dr. A.J., Stable | Phoenix Lescher & Mahoney | Unknown | Unknown Unknown

Buildings (alterations)

Table 3. Commissions in the Chandler area by Lescher & Kibbey; Lescher, Kibbey & Mahoney,; and Lescher
& Mahoney. Source: Arizona Historical Society.

Of these 25 commissions, the McCullough-Price House is one of only six properties known to have survived,
and is one of only two known residential properties still in existence.




NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __9 Page _ 25 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHIC REFERENCE

National Register Forms

Dorigo, Gabriela. Sacred Heart Home for the Aged, Phoenix, Arizona. Draft National Register of Historic
Places Registration Form. No date.

Weight, Kevin. Chandler High School, Chandler, Arizona. National Register of Historic Places Registration
Form. June 7, 2007.

Historic Property Surveys
Alliance Architects, L.L.C. Chandler Historic Resource Survey. 1998.
Laird, Linda, & Associates. City of Chandler Historic & Architectural Survey — Final Report. 1984.

Books

American Institute of Architects, Central Arizona Chapter. A Guide to the Architecture of Metro Phoenix.
Phoenix: Phoenix Publishing, Inc., 1983.

Baker, John Milnes. American House Styles: A Concise Guide. New York: W.W. Norton & Company, 1994.

Blumenson, John J.-G. Identifying American Architecture. Nashville: Association for State and Local History,
1981.

Cooper/Roberts Architects, AIA. Historic Homes of Phoenix: An Architectural & Preservation Guide. Phoenix:
City of Phoenix, 1992.

Luckingham, Bradford. Phoenix: The History of a Southwestern Metropolis. Tucson: The University of
Arizona Press, 1989.

McAlester, Virginia & Lee. A Field Guide to American Houses. New York: Alfred A. Knopf, 1986.
Portrait and Biographical Record of Arizona. Chicago: Chapman Publishing Co., 1901.
Rifkind, Carole. A Field Guide to American Architecture. New York: Bonanza Books, 1984.

Solliday, Scott. Chandler: Pioneer City of the New West. Chandler, Arizona: Chandler Historical Society,
1996.



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __9 Page _ 26 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

Stevens, Robert Conway. A History of Chandler, Arizona 1912-1953. Tucson: University of Arizona Press,
1955.

Willian, Diane, and Mary Melcher. The Chandler Clan: Suzanne’s Story — A Family History. Phoenix, Arizona:
MP Printing & Graphics.

Newspapers

Chandler Anizonan. “Winter Visitors to Make Home Here; Now Furnishing New House.” October 28, 1938.
Chandler Arizonan. “Winter Visitor Starts Work of Improving Property Near Here.” Date unknown.
Chandler Arizonan. “Informal Party Given at McCullough Home Saturday Eve.” November 4, 1938.
Chandiler Arizonan. “Jack McCullough is Engaged to Michigan Girl, News Announces.” October 2, 1942.
Chandler Arizonan. “Roy Lochhead Dies Tuesday in Phoenix Hospital.” December 12, 1941.

Chandler Arizonan. “A.E. Price Funeral Service Held Monday.” October 20, 1971.

Internet

http://en.wikipedia.org/w/index.php?titie=Chandler%2C_Arizona&oldid=75946499
http://genealogy.az.gov/

http://recorder.maricopa.gov/

http://southwest.library.arizona.eduwhavé/index.htmi
http:/iwww.cr.nps.gov/nhl/DOE_dedesignations/Roosevelt.htm

http://www.familysearch.org

http://www .fcd.maricopa.gov/Maps/

http://www.maricopa.gov/Assessor/GlS/map.htmi
http:/ilwww.maricopa.gov/parks/cave_creek/History.aspx

http://www.nr.nps.gov/



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number __ 9 Page __ 27 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

Miscellaneous

Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records, History and Archives Division. Land ownership maps,
1909-1929.

Jacquemart, John. Interview with author. June 6, 2007.
Lescher & Mahoney Architectural Archives. On file at the Arizona Historical Society, Tempe, AZ.

May, Catherine L. Memorandum to John S. Campbell regarding USA Easement Abandonments for Chandler
Fashion Center, USBR Case No. 01-013. February 9, 2001.

Reynolds, Jean. History of the Price House. 2005.

Ryden Architects, Inc. Sacred Heart Home for the Aged, Phoenix, Arizona. Historic Preservation Certification
Application — Part 1. November 18, 2002.



NPS For 10-900-a (Rev. 8/2002)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number Additional Documentation Page __28

\

OMB No. 1024-0018

McCullough-Price House

Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

N/A

Name of multiple property listing

PHOTO KEY 1

P mam e d
. - - TR
' D N
| A4
T
i
l * ‘
J b H .
.,3 .. N T :
: % 1 . a -
b
: 1 o ! b i i
! . e : l
. [ - e —
: x H J P |
. ~ - v
o . . R
E LI J L Lt e ans |
. - T i I , L
1 T eevi semies : : .
. R, e o a ' -..
! !cu:_,.ui ' } -
t’rrrrr“‘ g by e LA ! i ; : @ g
- . i § IV ity
Ok e :
s < el

m oL o T

Pou
L aLE B0

&

= =2 ¢ b Wi A =
et e e
(”
F
K
Ao




NPS For 10-900-a {Rev. 8/2002) OMB No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet
McCullough-Price House
Name of Property

Maricopa, Arizona
County and State

Section number Additional Documentation Page 29 N/A
Name of multiple property listing

\

) . PHOTO KEY 2 k.
) w4l TN, ® ¥ :
. ey e e T
—1 ".— 4 i at L

s
.
I3 ;.
2
:
k]
. . "
.f.‘((' S
.- 2y
" N
[
!
1
!

sed I1Cw

_4__
e

. s
b i
R
. L and f“i - L
,
P
;;‘ f S gl
- -
" -
- : %
tH -
s N -
T, M I
. v s
s 4 '
AT 4 '
£ ogies -
- Ik A .
J 0 :
LI [
", o 0 i e
1y 0] v

-

- wAe
. T
N

Gy {pccn 7Rt e g
r “Q '
O s
s
&
I3
-1
oy
e
i
. :";
=

) ’ ,{4‘.!" X3
T N .4 ot I
toe” K A PR S ORI VI _,,TMLJ.“' P
e et aid R e P =t
pLENE SR .t-u,_L.!.l »SJ}{
: L} AN
Y]
[
; It
[ thanl »
i i
RN N rﬁi'
TS i :

ol
., PLATRY \,'1" :

Lor XCG 2304

H
»
-t ——— - . *
+ - v - ‘-ETT: t
L __:'I;‘ 4t
N T
_ Y 3 LY P < uf e
- - i - T

CFLAST -FLOOR-PLAN
oy

Fibas




Fafasy Owiar e

L)

e Tt

rrm— -

-
=

. |

S

-
__! ﬂf*jpﬂ

LS Ty LY

i

*

&l

Thﬂiﬂfrl'l LIVIHG ROOM

praLE gt et

P o

M-mm..?_ "

SECTI04 1

i T § ACHIEIUEF
RN ek

SEET IO

-‘I.I.EIJF :——I.- -

o
]
H'!
¥
o
F "
e _F

DETAILS OF ROOF DUAIGS
ARD: GUTTER BOYES

C RS T

ELEVATION l£

ThanE e

e

T R e

clis  aran

U b o

ﬁ‘"“ i -8 P 1?4

| llln-'l-llr' .':

e

TR e

LT L L Lo

.0 SR ¢ &

whaytl w2

40R BLEWAThhid Aol sioasi
1

-

HE A e

Y L s e
TR T T R B

A —— ; iR
e ?‘ s
A ..'-.'--
-
- #

'tlJt..l-r.r AF KL A

Y W-
ol
o W
)

LEARELIBY

CrALder s
i i
AE T

AN D.
ir Y .._-:.l_ a

ﬁc{i‘# LJ:G\}»EI-I

= e 'ﬂ-. i'

LESCHER 4 MAHONEY
0 e B ow

JSd ol

T T = N £
S S g eyl
¥

s

7. & E? .



rafads w da) 1 |

B4 Ll adly
= =
R
s i ]
dLar
.
= e -1_1 b= §
." (")
§ ST
wrea o s anoney, F ##ﬁms* .+j_
P o . L(._ﬂ;'-ﬂ
aakl) _IJ,._ "'.-|||:l--..--u1
e _ -
= 2 P—-*aan= f
FoE geanm o ¥
ELEN BAET WiLL IJ.I.I'..:lTI.lIEIﬂ.-l-r""-' ELEY SSWTH WNLLL + ELET MOERTE WiLL
4 x . i B . T ":' | -
i T N G B b F H.rl.h.l.-_?-E--J'."-.-l H N LN BT ﬁ R YETAIL l.'.'.FﬂfiI;L_El-. BINRET
!
R R FE FEAL maed -
_I.un-“"'f‘ 1"”- —y
— rop g ey
G W it TVO, WIT 4 PANTRY CAR DITAILS
| * = 1 0 i % LR oAy S Al e
mmﬁﬁt T‘I?]E‘L‘-‘.!ﬂyﬂ. I":-Bﬂm §d T AN | .\‘*-H.'-. . .$JI"F¢ %. LT T T
3 “"_:‘-ru-l" dida rm sy sl
=S5~

L T e o o

~EXTRANCE PQOR JAME -

Tl §° el

7 "J '\1" l"a

- ...-"-:-\"* AN

LBV AT 08 . gl - '
EETE LM 1

LTEL R REAR TR BE JARE
LY Fadl. WrbAe FEQE A
R ERRERLSE TN

FETAIL O0FE STHIRS TO ROOF & BASCMINT

b || el AT L L LTy

BOOR

TAIL 01 GARIGE

weare ke s vha™

pRpe s ..:'.#4: | Lk;"'_“ .r

. ﬂ
i

I

LY

]

l
2 |
® ' ! L, 5
£ _ TYPICAL INTIRIORD- DOOR — g d (o _-I;'__ BLLE ELEVATIOHN ErETIOA SECTI N WELF BLEW aNel BILE LR EETEIDL
| - 4 R e e YETAIL OF_LINEN CABINET YETALL OF JRESSING ROOM WIRDROBE L) R S ks
\
|.-|. ol il - = 1|
: -+ A-RESIDENCE - T—ﬂﬁﬁ&, WILLTAM n._ MECULLOUGH - e LASAAER ¢ ﬂﬁiﬂﬂif
*WEST:-OF ~ CRAKNDLER AR ZONA:- g . = SiNLateh & B
: . Wﬂffi#&

- - — : - ] : e
. B r E 2 R



fh.u-i Ewia

FiLOonT QHTLJ-M&.'. I]"ﬂTI.I'H.Ei =1
wilbubdt 1Eow

_ D‘h‘l“ﬂ-.l]. aaE Lhu‘l‘r

e
£Ltu.rr|nu or fove :i".tn-u_
M:EET

"

L—1|_ e e g

EUTRANEE WALl
CraLE ‘ﬁ. = me

Covoance Hate bignr

_MERICArn Tin

E.Lwnhﬂn :L«t! H

32!11-!1- oR TINTURE (unmlﬂr Ran’)
Lemle wita

_.E}fmtlﬁ {veerrer (Prenl ELE»GTML

.Llu:HT rqﬂ'ukﬁs__ U HECULLOO&H HOQiE

i e —— .

T S pilrie —




- - — - "
w 1 - w - = —— e il e w

FSD uosue HieRoglpmes [sToOus) | |
- ES/DENCE of C0 MeCulloner Sy | b |

——

A




N

AN

b Y

) g
Xx_'.
B e g e T
\\-x.'“
e i ey \

ThEE
AR

\:q..\'_
"‘l ..l'|.

a
ol __.a-//-":

sl 77 77
: U
a -'*’:
o d

7 2/

 ~ S RREY 5r i i HFol. A ™
5 CALE -0

VILLIAM D. ME CULLOUGH RESIDENCE

LESCHER MARONEY ARCHITRLTS
1100 TITLE AMND TZUST BUILDING

P EOLRAR —  ARLZOWA
oRAWH BY RB.AAK JUNE LS 1838

e ——— = = =




iy e
: ¢ I -lﬁ?ﬂn LWL )ION-¢ EDULE - - ROGM- - '
- #ien  [rees EiEE L ien |1 e TE REMAR RS Fd e FrrTs Eaaw em
i ll'.-'lh‘ ...-:.r . M £ P i T .li'l & EF panE .n-:-.-nm i Pl _‘_.-pu_,u_ e (AR dvmeeT| S | ks :""""'_'“ ; ,w“_-_“_;_--”'l-
! TR i -" LA S i A i Ot W ol W e e
1 AT o ata| & |erane 4 | ek . Frate | mrarce sien| sovare matl B L T |
e Rt P Aik | aa | diza T e, [k 450 | (RLtAas Tutt wwus | Crerey A (SR i A tnsa -ap::ﬂ' TR R
] 1T=] #’rﬁ*l#r T e _..”.r T T — 1} i::r.;q,r J.'ﬂfr :_ Mm e "‘] el mﬁ“""-"
feriad — daar 2 = — . e 0 . B R R T M""
By ,ﬂ-..ll.i!-ﬁ--'.ll.'ll" e W I ardang - m-i'm-_ = - ” R A “'] e e e
- —= —_— — - — [EAERCE At PTRERR | SRAECE | by s | e A |
L I e T o K ¥ L ~ ] { ALAGAR WL | TGS CEmELF i':i"#_ -'l;u.q..-.f e pr
[ . E | Al e Fion E.l'q- PR AR T rm lfﬂilli- Fra] AdrE . L . e SR Ridp. p"irm L
L £ P P A ST -  Fiaakr B e ,o | F
_.i_':ki-'"a--r'fr' e 'M.m- 1 :‘::" e = BEFTEN maas FiAL | IR wis§ SRR AR T
5 |2ig- = Fio” s e AT S e, i S 4 . - 3 e i A
& |algtarian RLL G #e : e ot o | SRR coma aes cheir
P e — - i = A e =T | rl. Aurd | o aa
| rlare rﬂ-'_ i e AL COMPED BB s e CALIGRE PRAT  waph  htwin Ay, | aams csis | Aer. e
B | | B -‘“ﬂ"ﬂlﬂ"’ - A 'n_ _m“ T Eroar Ll Fr Y FF T T R
!, El aia r rige fﬁ FEAENL . i [ard.| B ad ol e | pm | o e g, |
2 19| atas € rta” s PP s P [T . *j-:ﬂ"-l B R Y s i B R I |
N | &L= @ z= | ﬁ%!‘ [rr ey = | R ) S B s s i o,
T T i B [ASE.an o S LRV, Aca¥, | BAr® gpan. | NE; Sma
| e e ot iﬁ:.-ﬂ; i"" - | Tl s FE | bard e TRATE AR : g 3
FFEREY bl rein ) aa g ..-;-q- E"ﬂ'ﬁ—q ST T
1 .p.uhl-.r-\..p. e - B T .H,' AR T R e
Sa#EAT Fr m | meaae . J...m“
'r-mi--tm-' el o -l:-n:.lw Fail AaAE. | e ARk
| b ot Fr S FFS
|are s LT Frudl -*rlwru AT LA, ‘L;_ﬂ#;” mw-g_
T ST - LT A
B R S L - B m”‘ |
rr BT s = Fr B | e
:Jjuq-_ e ] - | FT S 14 +a {
» | |
! | z = ]
} s - e e o
'I-_ PAT I O
1 || |
EAET
i " - i *
‘ i
: _ 4 Y i
i AEior ; e LR r} s
| - _i__
gy : | .
Rk, st ME st L ok w44 = 7 3 et
( %
e
T .
] o r
e
| y i \
G-.'-ﬂ'll.';-F
D e E— . WE -
i -
A pis 5'_
! 5
, | .
ol = | i .t g
| A TN H"-!"_.- Rt i R C » ?" 4
iy o l u AL T 1 FT =
B ' ) W | o
| .. ¥ ; | E,‘. P - S T
bi NG Iﬂﬂ.ﬁ L AdPs AATF] - AATES E
! B3 — e #ia” R S 1 S 0 =
N s | -y £ . [
cECES 2 f
% | L, ol
LT - . s . —
- NV 2 ) 5 |
1 LY
L | j - =
I 3, u a ol y — s L L 4
"B’ - - — l-l—-_I *I
LivING nooM | % |
| | Y
|
-.:;I e i | W
] " , | et G e |
. AR == L
| o wal [Pyl el |
|
. | |
. |
R -4 F AR S . E2 il L EI i |
L Aige ”l I
| . 'l
- - 4 BN L Sl - YIRS o 1zEs e i
. - FIZST-FLODR-PLAN- ‘
. 1 | = — 4 P E T T _ A RSN NA———— = &
T T S 1
Fabd AF TR A W L:ECHEE Et‘ MA“GHEH{
il e +A:RESIDENCE - FOR- HR. ’EILJ.;I# LI AAHONEY
P _.'::; 'M"' _* i LRt RN o
| T -k A B, . SOD Frred & REESS pidd
P -ﬁ"’..i'i_,;-}" ..-"3:-"-5_ i i : A o AT
= -—-——-——-—————4—-—5— ——




A AT BT -
o = L - - -

P G T h‘ﬂi- — = er=—
W .-‘;:_r-— o 1 A A P o |
|

- SR B o e
----- r—-_a : LA R

© RAVIHG 3o0E

—wm a1

ROOF J01ST 3 AND W
e e

-
.

ELEvelidd GF f0 E ¥
AHT DO
£T N RN

“;.,.; t]_!

_ RET S | | A oo il 87 : R 1 i ey @ soll=e g "T
| e “r e i — IAYPICAL MEA) N 5
z : AL AT K CROOF JOIST A-"E - ANR L -

LT ™ :I."-l- LRLr

.. P LA S L I |

= il : f —1 P L L : ; <
- .‘... I 